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We focus on creating smarter
services that deliver better
outcomes for our clients and
their customers

We play a key role in our clients’
operations, designing, transforming and
delivering their customer management
and adrministration services and
providing professional support services

We harness innovation, deploy the
best of IT and use our expertise to
help our clients to operate efficiently
and provide excellent, accessible
customer services

In this growth market, we operate in
11 market sectors primarily in the UK
and across Northern Europe where
there 1s 1ncreasing demand for our
services We also have additional
operations and delivery centres in the
Channel Islands, India, South Africa,
North America and the Middle East

What drives the market

for our services?

There’s an ever greater pace of
change in society with people living
and working 1n an increasingly
digital, mobile and regulated world
Consumers of services are demanding
much more in terms of consistency
of quality and 24-hour access
across communication channels

of therr choice

The pressure on private and public
sector organisations to adapt and flex
to keep up with people’s demands in
a farr, considered and cost-effective
way 15 constantly growing They are
increasmgly turning to companies
ke Capita to access expertise and
resources to help transform their
business practices and adapt therr
business models

Who we are and
how we operate

Capita is the UK’s leading provider of customer
and business process management (BPM) services
to both private and public organisations.

How do we add value

to our clients?

We consistently grow our skills and
capabilities to help our clients meet
these demands We listen to the needs
of both our clients and thewr customers
and design and create new service
models that meet these needs But we
don't stop there, we also deliver these
transformed services on behalf of our
clients, under long term contracts with
high service quality standards and
defined cost models

We work in partnership with our
clients, enabling them to flourish

and give their customers the best
experience possible Together, we are
helping orgarisations and people thrive
now and tomorrow

What is our business strategy?
Qur business strategy 1s to
continuously develop and grow our
capabilities and organisation in a
controlled, profitable manner to
address and satisfy the needs of clients
and their customers We consistently
seek to service a greater number

of market sectors and territories,
increasing our market penetration

We are a cash-generative business and
deploy our capital investment carefully
to support our continuous growth

We build our existing internal talent,
products and services, find and acquire
businesses that meet our nvestment
return criteria and bring new talent,
capabilities and infrastructure to
provide an entry platform in new
market segments and sectors

This strategy enables us to continuously
enhance our propositions for existing
and new clients and achieve greater
penetrauion across our diverse markets,
growing our business year-on-year and
fuelling further organic growth

How does our business strategy
and model allow us to achieve
our goal?

We deliver this strategy through our
efficient, profitable business model

The model focuses on maintaiming
strong leadership and managernent,

a responsible approach and robust
infrastructure and systems across [
our internal operations and external
relationships This includes asset
allocation, management and operations
forecasting and reporting, acquisitions
and sales qualification and process,
embedded policies, procedures and
systems across finance, business
operations and support services,

and extensive governance and risk
management systems and oversight

This allows us te grow cur business safely
and maintain and protect our reputation

How do we address the needs
of our shareholders and

wider stakeholders?

The way that we operate and manage
our growth through our business strategy
and robust business model allows us

to gradually achieve greater market
penetration in a growing number of
diverse markets, supporting a growing
number of clients and their customers
and generating double digrt Group
operating margins This consistent,
disciplined approach to achieving
profitable, sustainable growth allows us
to achieve our business goal of delivering
tong term value, directly and indirectly,
to all our stakeholders - shareholders,
employees, clients, suppliers and the
communities in which we work and
deliver services
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Our
business model

Creating a sustainable business

Strategy

Internal development Investment
in securing talent, deploying
innovation and developing services
and our infrastructure

Acquisiiions Small 1o medwum
sized complementary organisations
adding capability, opening up new
markets and generating future
orgamic growth

Q) See pages 20-34
.

Careful asset allocation

Consistent, frequent forecasting
and reporting

Rigorous sales and acquisitions
qualification and processes to
generate consistent growth
with double digit Group
operating margins

Ermbedded procedures and
systems across finance, operations,
governance and risk management

@ See pages 36-48

\,

- ' 'S ™
Generate controlled Support and control
profitable growth by growth by Create a sustainable business
continuously expanding and maintaining clear policies, capable of delivering relevant
enhancing our services to meet procedures and robust systems, vaFiue to all our stakgehol ders
client needs across a growing led and delivered by an inspiring,
number of markets strong management team
. —

\/

Shareholders

Employees

Clients

Suppliers

The communities in which we work

() see pages 49-53

Y »,

This strategic report explores our business strateqy and
model in greater depth and reports on how we are performing

against our goal
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2014
performance

2014 was a year of excellent financial
performance, with 9% organic revenue growth,
sustained high returns and levels of cash
generation, and an active year for acquisitions
We have significant scope to increase penetration
of our farge and growing addressable market,
supported by a number of structural factors
such as fiscal pressure, digitisation, regulation
and demographics and our own competitive
advantages This leads us to look forward to

the medium to long term with confidence

Andy Parker
Chief Executive’

Image removed

*Andy Parker succeeded Paul Pindar as Chief Executive on 1 March 2014
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Strong financial
and operating
performance in 2014

Underlying revenue growth’
of 14%2, including 9%
organic growth

Underlying profit before tax?
up 13% to £535 7m?

Underlying earnings per
share up 10% to 65 2p?

Total dividend up 10% to
29 2p (2013 26 5p)

Underlying operating cash
conversion® rate of 112%?
(2013 106%3)

Underlying free cash flow up
18% to £368m? (2013 £312m?)

Post-tax ROCE" 14 8%?
{2013 15 5%3)

Reported profit before
taxup 36% to £292 4m
{2013 £2150m)

£1 7bn contract wins
(2013 £3 3bn), with contract
win rate of 11n 2 (by value)

£310m* spent on 17 acquisttions
to enhance capabibty and facilitate
future organic growth

An excellent start to 2015
£11bn contracts secured to
date (2014 £588m), ncluding
Fera preferred bidder and
Sheffield extension

Bid pipeline increased to £5 1bn
(Noverber 2014 £4 tbn), 53%
private and 47% public sector

Agreement to acquire avocis adds
significant future growth platform
in Germany and Switzerland

Good visibility of low double
digit revenue growth in the
full year

Graph removed Graph removed
Graph removed Graph removed
Graph removed Graph removed

() See pages 46-49

1 Excludes non-underlying items detaided in note 5 on page 123

20n an angoing basis, 2014 numbers exclude the sale of our Occupational Health business, see note 4 on
page 122 2013 numbers have not been restated on this basis

3 2013 numbers exclude the partial sale of our Insurance Distribution and planned SIP business closure
4 As previously announced

5 Excludes non-underlying items detailed in note 5 on page 123 2014 numbers exclude the sale of our
Oceupational Health business, see note 4 on page 122 2013 numbers exclude the partial sale of our
Insurance Distribution and planned SHP business closure




. . . Strategic report

2074 performance continued

Overview

2074 was a year of double digit revenue
and profit growth, with sustained high
cash flow and returns, alongside strong
acquisition activity

Underlying revenue increased by 14% to
£4,372m? (2013 £3,851m3), including
9% organic and 5% acquisition growth
Underlying operating profit? rose by
119% to £576 3m2 (2013 £516 9m3)

and underlying profit before taxation’
increased by 13% to £535 7m?

(2013 £475 0m?) Underlying earnings
per share? grew by 10% to 65 2p?

(2013 59 4p3) We in¢reased our total
dividend for the full year by 10% to 29 2p
per share (2013 26 Sp} Underlying free
cash flow' was up 18% to £368m?
(2013 £312m3) and ROCE? was 14 8%?
{2013 15 5%3), which compares to our
estimated post-tax WACC of 7 2%

The majornity of our divisions performed
well in 2014, with strong growth
particularly in Workplace Services and
Justice & Secure Services, supported

by new contracts, and sigrificant
improvements in the profitability of IT
Services and Property & Infrastructure,
helped by the macroeconomic backdrop
These positives were partially offset by
insurance & Benefits and Health, and
the end of the Disclosure and Barring
contract inMarch 2014

The aggregate value of new and extended
major contracts secured in 2014 was
£17bn, representing a 11N 2 winrate

We are pleased to report an increase in
the bid ptpeline to £5 1bn since the IMS

in Novemnber 2014 (£4 1bn) and that

we have secured £1 1bn of new business
since the year end We are seeing good
levels of activity in both the private

Capitaple 06

sector, across telecoms, financial services
and utiities, and the public sector,
particularly in health, local government
and defence

We continued to focus on acquiring
small- to medium- sized businesses

In 2014, to enter new markets, build
capability in existing areas and enhance
our sales propositions to facibitate future
organic growth We mnvested a total

of £310m* on acquisitions, excluding
deferred and contingent considerations,
acquiring 17 organmisations in markets
such as utilittes & transport software,

IT networking, mortgage administration
and Germany

() seepages 25-27

Major contracts wins

lanuary

15 contracts worth £17bn

In aggregate won in 2014

1 Excludes non-underiying items detailed in note 5 on page 123

Transport for London
(TfL)

February

NHS Scotland and other
public sector bodies

Value £145m new
contract + £30m early
take on of existing services

Contract Congestion charge
and low emission zone,

plus processing of traffic
enforcement notices
Duration 5 years

Type New

Detads Provision of IT systems,

back office and contaci
centre operations to run
the schemes and assoctated
enforcement processes

(D) see page 54

2 On anongoing basis, 2014 numbers exclude the sale of our Occupational Health business, see note 4 on

page 122 2013 numbers have not been restated on this basis

3 2013 numbers exclude the partial sale of our Insurance Distribution and ptanned SIP business closure

4 As previously announced

Value £325m

Contract Scottish Wide Area
Network (SWAN}

Duration 9 years
Type New

Details Delivery of a single
public services network to
facilitate data-sharing for all
public service organisations
within Scotland

() seepage12
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Shareholder returns

Dividends The Board i1s recommending a
final dvidend of 19 6p per ordinary share
(2013 17 8p), making a total of 29 2p

for the year (2013 26 5p}, representing
an increase of 10% Dwidend cover 15

2 2 times? for 2014 The final dividend
will be payable on 28 May 2015 to
shareholders on the register at the close
of busingss on 17 April 2015 The Group's
total dvidend has grown at a compound
annual rate of 12% over the five years to
31 December 2014

Return on caprtal employed Our
post-tax return on average capitat
employed (ROCE)' in 2014 was 14 8%?
(2013 15 5%3), which compares to

our estimated post-tax WACC of 7 2%
ROCE reflects how productively we deploy

March

capital In 2074, it was (ncorporated into
the Board Directors’ long term incentive
scherne, 25% of which 1s now based upon
performance against ROCE targets and
75% based upon EPS growth targets

Total shareholder returns Over the 10-
year period to 31 Decemnber 2014, Caprta
has delivered £1 5bn {net of £274m equity
raising in April 2012) to shareholders
through dividends, share buybacks and
special dvidend Capita’s total shareholder
return over the same period 15 269%
compared to 108% for the FTSE All-

Share Index

May November

Delivering profitable organic growth
Qur sales team focuses upon value
enhancing transformational outsourcing
and partnering opportunities, where

the Group has sustainable competitive
advantage and can leverage its unique
blend of commercial skills We are also
increasing our emphasts upon expanding
existing chent relatronships in our
targeted vertical markets

The aggregate value of new and extended
major contracts secured in 2014 was
£17bn (2013 £3 3bnin aggregate,
including Telefdrica UK (©2)), representing
a 11n 2 winrate for the Group by value

We have had a good start to 2015, with
£11bn aggregate contracts secured to date
including our appointment as preferred
bidder on Fera and Sheffield extension

Defence Infrastructure

BAE Systems Maritime -

Organsation (DI10) Submarines
Value £400m Value £60m
Contract Ministry of Defence Contract IT

Duration 10 years
Type New

Details A Captta-led
partnership comprising two
integrated sub-contractors,
URS and PA Consulting, to
manage and transform the
UK's national and iaternational
defence infrastructure

@) seepage 28

John Lewts

Value £93m

Contract Online contact centre
Duration 5 years
Type New

Details Supporting Jehn Lewis
ontine growth strategy by
delivering an online contact
cenire, built around John Lewis’

service transformation
Dyration 5 years
Type New

Detalls Strategic partnership
to transform the existing
method of IT service delivery
for BAE Systems submarsne
building business in Barrow-in-
Furness, Cumbria

The Co-operative Bank
Value £325m

Contract Mortgage processing
Duration 10 years

Type New

Details Preferred bidder ta
transform The Co-operative

Bank’s mortgage servicing
operation in the UK

@ See page 45

Other major contracts
worth between £25m
and £50m

Combined value £290m

Details We have secured a
further 8 contracts worth an
apgrepate value of £250m
including a new contract with
Genesis Housing Association
and an extension to our
Metropotitan Police radio
managed services contract

For further details on
our contract wins, visit
www capita co uk

1 Excludes non-underlying items detailed 1n note 5 on page 123

2 On an ongoing basis, 2014 numbers exclude the sale of our Occupational Health business, see note 4 on
page 122 2013 numbers have not been restated on this basis

3 2073 numbers exclude the partal sale of our Insurance Distribution and planned 5IP business closure

customers that integrates with
the full range of customer
contact channels
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2014 performance continued

Bid pipeline replershed

Since our IMS in November 2014, we
have worked hard to replerish the bid
pipeline which now stands at £5 1bn
(Novemnber 2014 £4 1bn) The pipetine

1s comprised of 28 bids with an average
contract tength of eight years, inciuding
54% new business and 6% renewals and
extensions We are seeing good levels of
activity in both the private sector (53%
of the pipeline}, across telecoms, financial
services and utilities, and the public
sector {47% of the pipeline), particutarly
in health, local government and defence
Behind the pipeline 15 a farger active
prospect bist of opportunities, from which
we expect to be able to replenish the
pipeline as decisions come to frurtion over
the course of this year

We have no matenial (defined as having
forecast annual revenue in excess of 1%
of 2014 revenue) contracts up for rebid
for the next four years

Our bid pipeline contamns atl bids worth
£25m or above, with bids capped at £1bn
and where we have been shortlisted to the
last four or fewer We announce the value
of the pipeline three times a year and it

1s therefore a snapshot at a specific point
In tirme

Q) seepagez4

1 As previously announced

Market update

We operate predorminantly in the
Business Process Management (BPM}
market in the UK and Ireland, a large
addressable market with sigruficant
scope to Increase penetration and drive
growth over the medium to long term
We continually lock for changes in sector
dynamics and management, which can
act as agents of change and catalysts for
potential outsourcing opportunities, and
are gradually increasing our addressable
market over time by diversifying through
new contracts and acquisitions, such as
our entry inta mortgage administration

In 2014, we commussioned market
research from Ovum, one of the UK's
leading independent industry anatysts
Ovum estimates that Capita’s total
addressable market for professional
services in the UK 1s £128bn per annum
and that the value of outsourced BPM
services was £13bnin 2014 (2013 £12bn)
Growth in BPM 15 expected to cut-pace
other outsourcing markets Ovum ranks
Capita as the number one BPM vendor
by revenue, with 26 9% market share In
2014 (2013 24 9%)

() Secpage 14

Enhancing capability and value creation
through acquisitions

Qur strategy Is to make acquisitions

to enhance our future organtc growth
potential and drive value creation for
shareholders, with a 15% post-tax ROCE
hurdle rate We focus upon acquiring
small to medium-sized businesses, to
enter new markets, build capability

In existing areas and enhance our

sales propositions to facilitate future
organic growth For example, following
our acquisitions in the customer
management sector we were able to
secure contracts with O2 and npower
and, more recently, n mortgage
administration the acquisition of Crown
{(now Capita Mortgage Services) was
followed by being selected as preferred
brdder on Co-operative Bank In 2014,
we nvested a total of £310m", excluding |
deferred and contingent considerations, I
in acquining 17 organisations

@ See page 25

Our organisational structure

We maintain a straightforward and
efficient divisional structure that
supports Capita’s major sales effort,
large scale customer management and
business process management contracts,
specialist businesses and service lines

We have good visibility of strong revenue growth in 2015, which will
be driven by the conversion of our bid pipeline, acquisitions and the
full benefit from last year's contract wins and acquisitions

Andy Parker
Chref Executive
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Each division 15 led by a divisional
executive director, who 15 a member

of the Executive Board along with the
Group's two senior divisional finance
directors and the heads of corporate
development and communications,
strategic business development and
acquisitions Company-wide support
services, such as [T, finance, legal and
commercial, business assurance, risk
and compliance, health and safety and
environment, HR, corporate marketing
and commurications, procurement and
property and facilities management
continue to report directly to Group
Board Executive Directors to ensure
robust control, consistent standards
and shared benefits across the Group

Q) See page 56

Our Board and people

The Board would like to take this
opportunity to thank all our people

for their hard work and dedication
which ensures that we can continue

to deliver quality services for chients
Our employees join us through direct
recruitment, contracts or acquisitions and
their commitment and enthusiasm play
a vital role in helping us to meet client
expectations and sustain our growth

We operate in a large
addressable market and
have significant scope to

Increase penetration of it

() Seepage 4

Platform to drive further value creation

As announced in November 2014, Gordon

Hurst will retire from Capita and step
down as Group Finance Director and

from the Group Board with effect from

28 February 2015, after 27 years with the
Company Gordon will remain employed
by the Group as a consultant until

30 September 2015 The Board warmly
thanks him for his significant contrsbution
to the success of Capita and wishes him all
the best for the future

In line with Capita’s senior management
succession plan, Nick Greatorex,
previously Executive Director of Capita's
Insurance & Benefits Services division, will
Join the Group Board and succeed Gordon
as Group Finance Director effective from
1 March 2015 Nick was released from

his previous role from 1 December 2014,
allowing him to work closely alongside
Gordon through the 2014 annual results
and 2015 annual business planning peniod

On 1 January, we appointed

Andrew Williams as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and to the
Nomination, Remuneration and Audit

and Risk Committees Andrew s Chief
Executive of Hatma ple, a leading specialist
in safety, health and environmental
technologies and a FTSE 250 company

We focus upon leveraging
our cornpetitive advantages
of scale, unique breadth
of capabilities and
experience in delivering
transformational
partnerships

® See page 20

4 Future prospects
We have good visibility and are
on track to deliver low double digit
revenue growth in 2015, driven by
the conversion of our bid pipeline,
the timing of which 1s likely to be
more evenly spread than last year,
acquisitions and full benefit from last
year's contract wins and acquisitions
We expect our operating margin
to rermain broadly stable and will
continue to manage the business to
deliver a combination of sustainable
growth, high levels of cash flow and
return on capital

We operate In a large, addressabie
market with scope to increase
penetration supported by a number
of structural factors such as fiscal
pressure, digitisation, regulation
and demographics and our own
competitive advantages, which lead
us to look forward to the medium
to long term with confidence

We continue to manage
the business to deliver strong
EPS growth and cash flow and

return on capital

@) Seepage 46
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Financial

Key Performance Indicators

2014 progress against

our principal financial key
performance indicators (KPls)

L Key performance indicator

Operating margin?

@ See page 46

Alm

Context

Progress in 2014

Consistently maintain
underlying operating
margins

We constantly moritor operating
margins and manage operating
costs to keep the business efficient
and cost effective

13.2%

2013 13 4%

Earnings per share
{eps)

() seepagear

Achieve long term,
consistent growth
in EPS

Long term growth In EPS 15 a
fundamental driver of shareholder
value Board Directors’ mcentive
schemes have EPS targets to

align their interests with those

of our shareholders

() seepage 92

65.15p

2013 59 4p

Free cash flow?!

() seepage 47

Maintain an operating
cash conversion ratio
of at least 100% and
high level of free cash
flow

We focus on secuning timely
payment terms and cash conversion
underpinned by providing valued
services and maintaining an efficient
finance operation

£368m

2013 £312m

Capital expenditure

@) seepageas

Contamn net capital
expenditure (capex)
at or below 4% of
revenue

This helps us to focus iInvestment
on the opportunities that generate
the best return for shareholders and
avold tying up too much capital n
long term projects

3.3%

203 37%

Return on capstal Deliver ROCE which ROCE reflects how productively
employed (ROCE)? 1s wellin excess of our  we deploy capital and in 2014 1 4 80/
cost of capital It was incorporated into senior . o)
managements’ long term incentive 2013 155%
schemes, which are now 25%
based upon performance aganst
ROCE targets
Q) See page 48 @ See page 92
Gearing - Maintain an efficient It 15 importarit for our chients that
interest cover caprtal structure, with we are a low sk, stable partner, 1 4 2 .
an appropnate level of particularly where we are * tl mes
gearing delivenng large scale operations 2013 12 3umes
@ seepage a8 on their behalf
Economic profit? Deliver value for Group economic profit allows us to
shareholders through  assess the value created in excess £ 2 4 O m

() seepage 48

positive and steadily
growing economic
profit

of the required return of the
Company's investors (equity
shareholders and debt holders)

2013 £211m

1 Excludes non-underlying items detaled in note 5 on page 123 2074 numbers exclude the sale of sur Occupational Health bustness,
see note 4 on page 122 2013 numbers exclude the partial sale of our Insurance Distribution and pianned SIP business closure
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Non-financial
Key Performance Indicators

204 progress against our principal

non-financial key performance
indicators (KPls)

Key performance indicator

Alm

Shareholder value

@ See page 4%

Steadily grow
ordinary dividends
in line with profits
{annual growth of
total dividends)

Context

Progress in 2014

Demonstrates the financial health
of the business and commitment
to creating shareholder value

10%

2013 13%

Client resources

Continue to develop
our infrastructure of
business centres to
meet the needs of

Reflects the scale and breadth
of our offering for clients

30

multi-service

our business delivery centres
2013 73 multi-service
(D) seepoge33 delivery centres
Create successful Annually audit all A proactive approach to
supplier relationships  strategic supphers procurerment helps us secure best 1 O O 0/
against Capita’s value goods and services, which can O
standards of business  improve our performance and that 2013 100%
Q) seepage 34 of our clients
Employee resources-  Maintain high We need to have the nght

leadership

@ See page 30

retention rate for
senior managers
{dvisional directors
and senior
management teams)

leadership and skills to deliver the
Group's long term growth strategy

97%

2013 98%

Employee resources -
skilts & flexibibity

@ See page 30

Controlling our
environmental impacts

Maintamn overall
employee retention at
or above industry
average?

Our people are vital to our success
in delivering high quaklity, efficient
services to our clients

/8%

2013 82%

Continue to measure
and assess our carbon
footprint? and
minimise wherever

Alithough we are a low impact
organisation, our aim s to manage
and reduce our environmental
impacts and use our resources

139,672

2013 0,34

Q) seepage s possible eificiently {tonnes COzeq)

Supporting our Continue to grow Cur business places us at the heart

communities and measure our of the communities that we operate £ 2 2 m
community in and positive relationships are .
investment annually,  therefore vital to the long term 2013 £18m

() seepage 51

using London
Benchmarking Group
methodology

health of the business

This symbol 1s used to indicate our KPIs throughout the report

1 CIPD 2013 (88 1%)

2 Based on latest available greenhouse erission factors from Defra




. . . Strategic report

Capita plc 12

Delivering the Scottish Wide
Area Network (SWAN)

In October 2012, NHS Scotland and a number of other
public bodies announced that they planned to commission
a new wide area network, open for use by all public sector

bodies in Scotland.

Capita bid for the contract supported by Updata
- a networking company with which Capita had
existing partnership agreements Following a
competitive tender process, the framework
agreement and customer-specific call-off
contracts were signed in February 2014 Over the
followtng 12 months, four additional customers
have committed to joining the service, bringing
the total to eight

The award of the contract has confirmed Capita’s
place at the heart of the public sector in Scotland
designing, instaltling and mamntaining crucial
infrastructure for the entire region SWAN 1s already
enabling the public sector to share infrastructure
and service costs, mcrease efficiencies and facilitate
data shaning and cross-organsational working across
Scotland's public secter

It 15 also testament to the strength and reputation
of Capita’s market-leading IT enterprise services
business During the first 12 months since the
contract was signed, over 2,800 sites have already
been connected, a core network and operations
centre has been constructed and the tearn has
received Public Service Network (PSN) accreditation
and has achieved ISO27007, recognising
international information secunty best practice

In April 2014, Capita purchased Updata

SWAN is a key development in public sector
telecommunications procurement The ambitious
delivery model s likely to shape sirmilar programmes
across the UK and the world in the future Once the
imitial roll out 1s complete, more than 4,300 sites wall
be connected to the new network, with other public
bodies having the option to join the service when
their existing network contracts expire

The Scottish Wide Area Network

1S @ major step forward in Scottish
public sector infrastructure which
will create major savings and deliver
an excellent service SWAN 1s a good
deal for the Scottish taxpayer and
anyone who uses public services,
whether in schools, councils,
hospitals or elsewhere

lan Cnchton
Chief Executive, NHS National Services Scotland
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. Contract won . Core business
! February 2014 i Delivery of a new wide area network for public
Value sector bodies in Scotland

|
Up to £325m over nine years ;
I

SWAN faalitating data sharing and
cross-organisational working across
Scotland’s public sector

Strengthens - — — e - — —— o —
Capita’s position

at heart of the

public sector

in Scotland

Contract buildson ~ ——-
Capita’s extsting
capacity and expertise

- - - Designing, and
implementing
a world-leading
infrastructure
delivery model

4,900 sites will be
connected to the
new network
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. . . Strategic report

Operating in
growth markets

Exploring the drivers across the customer and
business process management (BPM) market and
the growth sectors within it.

Our core focus 1s on transformational
deals withm the customer management
and BPM market across the UK

and Ireland

Ovum has agan ranked Capita as the
number one BPM vendor by revenue,
with 26 9% market share in 2014
{2013 24 9%), a greater share than the
rest of the top ten vendors combined

Creating organic growth across
existing, emerging and potential
new markets

From our entry point in local government
In 1984, we have deliberately diversified

During 2014, Capita enlisted Ovum to
review the total addressable UK market for
customer management and BPM Ovum's
research estirmates that Capita’s total UK

Our revenue split continued to be spread
between public and private sectors at 48%
and 52% respectively As we continue to
secure further growth in the private sector,

our market reach, giving us the flexibility
to target the rnght opportunities, shifting
our focus depending on the level of
activity and potential in each market

addressable market 1s £129bn per year,
of which only £13bn was outsourced in
2014 (2013 £12 4bn) Of thus £13bn, 72%
was mn the private sector and 28% tn the
public sector”

the shift 1s1n ine with our expectations
that Capita's revenues will reflect the
current market oppartunity over time

we operate Iin

Our business model means we can

bring together the right resources and
capabilities to meet the demands of our
clients across a wide range of sectors
Thes approach has allowed us to grow
from a company with 320 employees and
arevenue of £25mn 1991 to a FTSE 100
company with over 68,000 employees
and revenue of £4,372min 2014

UK customer management and BPM market pa

Our business model means we can bring together the
right resources and capabilities to meet the demands
of our clients from a growing range of sectors

C

Total
potential market

£129bn

Total
outsourced today

£13bn

Public sector

28%

Private sector

72%

1 Ovum methodology
Ovum's market sing and methodology was firstly to identsfy the composition of the labour market in the UK
Secondly, assumptions were made on how big a proportion of jobs in each occupational level could potentially
be outsourced As it 1s unkikely that all job functions would be outsourced, the following caps were appled a
maximum of 25% for rmanagers and senor officials and a maximum of 40% for all other occupational levels
Using vanious sources of information, average salary levels were then applied Other ¢osts were taken into
account atong with the assumption that outsourcing would bring a reducticn in cost base
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1584 Pre 2000 Post 2000

Local government
Central government

Local government
Central government
Education
Insurarice

Local government

Education
Insurance
Financial services
Life and pensions
Health
Other private sector

N

Extending our reach, through new

Post 2010

Local government
Central government
Education

Insurance

Financial services

Life and pensions
Health

Other private sector
Retail

Telecoms and utilities

Justice and
emergency services

Defence

Retall mortgage
admmistration

2015 onwards

Local government
Central government
Education

Insurance

Financial services

Life and pensions
Health

Other private sector
Retal

Telecoms and utilities

Justice and
ermergency services

Defence

Retall mortgage
admimstration

Agniculture
Science services

markets and new market segments

During the year, we have continued

to explore new and emerging markets
where we believe there are oppartunities
for further organic growth for Capita
These have inctuded geographic reach
into Germany, and further geographic
expansion in the Republic of ireland as
well as vertical expansion into mortgage
processing and the agniculture sector

The competitive landscape

Our continued growth into new areas
means Capita operates amongst a diverse
peer group, with competitors differing
depending on the market we are engaged
in We believe our breadth and scale of
operations and ability to deliver innovative
solutions, coupled with our robust
approach to governance and business
management, stand us apart from others
in the BPM landscape, enabling us to
cement our market leading position

Understanding our markets

We resource our busmess developrment
teams with market experts who
understand the unique challenges and
opporturnties facing the sectors we

work in We are constantly in ongoing
dialogue with existing and potential
clients, Ustening to thesr challenges

and shaping potential sclutions We also
continually look for changing market

and company specific dynarmics that
may act as a catalyst for new outsourcing
oppartunities, where we can rmprove our
clients’ services whilst still providing value
for money

The development in digital technologies
over recent years, and the mncreasing
choice and power being delivered to end
customers has prowvided a further catalyst
for us to help our clients improve their
customer services We have a series of
specialist practices providing expertise
i areas including digital, behavioural
scrence, analytics, user experience

and service design, which all help to
keep our customers at the forefront

of theirr markets

Banking
Narthern Europe

Market drivers

There are broader changes in the way that
consumers value the products and services
delivered to them that increasingly play
inte Capita’s strength and expertise in
managing custormer experiences and
delivering customer transformation
According to research conducted by

Ipsos MORI, "experience ts the new brand”
with product or service quality now taken
for granted, “how a product and service
makes us feel matters more than mere
functionality” According to MORI, data
protection 1s also increasingly important
to customners with personal data safety
being increasingly used in purchase
decision making
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Operating in growth markets continued

Established markets:

Public sector

Local government

The latest local government funding
settlement will see £2 6bn cut from local
authonity budgets in 2015-16, continuing
pressure on local authority finances

This continues to drive a need to achieve
efficient operations, which often involves
accessing the skills of a specialist third party
Cencurrently, there is significant growthin
the demand for adult social care services
and associated legistative change which

IS creating pressure to bring professional
managerment disciplines to bear, areas
Capita is well ptaced to debwver in

With central funding being reduced,
there 1s also an increased recognition of
the role for commercialisation of council
assets and services to develop revenue
streams, with a role for joint activity

and sometimes actual public sector
subsidiary partnerships with commercial
organisations who can bring investment,
specialist experttse as well as product,
pricing, sales and marketing knowledge

Central government

Aside from any areas that may be
‘ring-fenced’ at the outset of the next
parbament, public sector budgets are
widely expected to be subjected to
further significant annual reductions
The Government has stated it plans to
save £25-30bn by 2020, but to do so
will require more innovative approaches
as future savings wiil be more difficult to
achieve A recent Cabinet Office paper'
outlines the requirement on government
“to be more creative with how it delivers
public services, from a stronger push

on digital technology to introducing
structural and transformational reform
in government departments, agencies
and public bodies”

Irrespective of the type of government
that will be formed as a result of the 2015
general election and that there may be a
short interruption in the flow of services
being procured from the supplier market,
the core pressures to improve public
services and reduce delivery costs remain

1 Efficency and Reform in the next Parliament

2014 revenue by vertical market

Public sector

48%

Chart removed

Private sector

52%

Public sector 2014 2013 Private sector 2014 2013
1 Local government 17% 16% 7 Other private sector 21% 21%
2 Central government 9% 0% 8 Ulfeand pensions 0% 13%
3 Education 10% 10% 9 Retal, utilities and telecoms  12% 3%
4 Health 4% 5% 10 Financial services 7% %
5 Justiceandemergencyservices 5% 4% 11 Insurance 2% 3%

6 Defence 3% 3%

Public bodies will need to innovate and
transform their services by drawing

on new capabilities, many of which
Capita 1s well positioned to provide
Delivening transformation through
collaboration and partnering plays to
Capita’s strengths as we can bring new
commercial models, initiatives and
expertise to Improve services, create jobs
and support economic regeneration

Building on the success of AXELOS, our
public sector subsidiary partnership with
the Cabinet Office, and The Defence
Infrastructure Organtsation (DIO), we
expect more opportunities to emerge to
create open and transparent partnership
arrangements with a focus on shared nisk
and reward, which will help government
secure greater commercial value from
public assets We also expect to see
greater opportumities to help government
deliver on its digital and channel

shift chjectives

Health

Funding pressures are expected to

be pronounced in the NHS, with NHS
England's 'Five Year Forward View'
suggesting that its £30bn funding
challenge will be met by £22bn of NHS
savings and £8bn of additional funding

As a consequence, NHS providers
desperately need to update their
technology to help staff work more
productively, but have no way to fund

it - except through resources released
frorm areas such as surplus property, an
approach supported by NHS England
Capsta Is positioned well to deliver the
combined technology and property offer
that NHS Trusts are seeking

We are also well placed to support

the newly implemented Climical
Commussioning Groups {(CCGs) in delivering
health and social care integration as we not
only support NHS commussioners but also
work with local authorities

The large, central health orgarisations
such as NHS England, also now need to
match the savings being demandad of
frontline NHS services




Justice & emergency services

Police and Justice services will remain
under pressure and there 1s a continued
dnive for collaboration i and between
services as they seek cost savings and
operational efficiencies

Ministers across Government recognise
that there is significant replication and
wasted effort caused by the mability to get
access to and share important information
from all respending agencies dealing with
the serious 'interventions’ which require
multi-agency collaboration This focus

will help to drive the collaborative /
transformational agenda which we

are tdeally placed to help deliver

Education

In common with other public services,

the education budget 1s under pressure
The latest spending round saw the
Government announce that the schools
budget would be cut by a further 1%, in
real terms, in 2015-16 - driving the need
for efficiencies Alongside this, however,
are reforms that have meant that schools
now have greater discretion over how they
spend thetr budgets The introduction of
the academy system where institutions
have autonomy to select their own
suppliers for support functions 1s indicative
of Government’s desire to encourage
Innovative approaches in the sector

Defence

in the defence sector, the MoD 1s undertaking
a major transformational exercise as 1t looks
to rebalance capabilities, improve equipment
procurement and support and manage a
declining budget The 2015 Strategic Defence
and Security Review {SDSR) will set the
department’s long term goals which will

have 2 follow-on impact across the MoD and
armed forces Capita will continue to focus on
looking for opportunities to provide support
services and help the MoD to release value
from therr assets

Established markets

Private sector

Across the private sector, we continue

to see more emphasis on improving
end-customer experiences through
better utibsation of digital technologies,
particularty In our growing and emerging
markets As part of this, customer insight
and analytics are playing a crucial role in
developing new solutions that support
customer retention and sales

Life & pensions

The life industry 1s coming to terms with
the impact of announcements in the 2014
budget that give providers an opportunity
to refresh thewr propesition set to reflect

a new, more engaged lifetime journey of
savings accumutation and de-cumulation

Regulatory changes such as the Retail
Distribution Review and the EU Gender
Directive are having a significant impact on
the UK life & pensions industry and many
firms are looking for gudance, both around
how best to respond to developments, and
on how to mittgate the costs of compliance
Automatic enrotment into workplace
pension schemes has also increased costs
for providers, which they will look

to offset through reductions
elsewhere Capitais well
placed to assist organisations
in changing their service
models, embracing digital
imtiatives and reducing

therr cost bases to address
these changes

Retail

In retail, much of the
interest remamns around
transforming custormer-
facing functions, but
there 15 also great
potential for outsourcing
activity around back-
offtce processes such as
finance and accounting
(F&A), human resources
(HR) and supply-

chain management

Driving this are some
fundamental changes
in the retail industry,
particularly with

the ongoing shift to
digital platforms and
e-Commerce which are
foraing traditional retail
powerhouses to change
how they deliver their
products and address
thewr customers

As aresult, retailers are
more focused than ever

on customer retention,
with many turning to

thurd parties to deliver
Improvements in customer
services, Including through

Common drivers
in our markets

Transformation
and modernisation
of services

Service digittsation

increased regutation
and competition

Maximising the value
of existing assets
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the use of social media and customer
analytics We are ideally positioned to
support these actvities and build on our
experience with clients such as the John
Lewis Partnership and Debenhams

Utilities
Many of the major pan-European
utilities have high levels of debt and
see outsourcing as a means of reducing
costs and improving efficiency (Ovum)
Utilities are expected to pursue strategies
to transform customer expenences as
new technological innovations such as
smart metering shape the market and
the requirement for agility increases
Capita will be able to leverage both
our infrastructure and customer
expertise to maximise our sector
growth from supporting the
build of new power sources
to transforming the
customer experience

Water retail competition
in the non-household
space 1s also due to go bive
in Apnil 2017 which will
require sigmificant change
within water companies
There are opportunities
for Capita both at the
centre of this, helping
with central market
operations In supporting
market flows and within
water companies, as

they transform ther
operating models

Telecoms

A key area of demand

for services n recent
years has come from
telecom operators looking
for customer-facing
support services

This1s unsurprising,

given the competitive
nature of the market

and the relative ease

with which customers are
able to switch providers
Operators are tooking

for capabilities to help
them manage customer
engagement across a
number of channels, to aid
retention and dnive channel

shift to lower support costs
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Operating in growth markets continued

retention and drive channel shift to lower
support costs

We also see promise in the dwversification
of many firms into areas such as digital
services, as the customer support
functions must also pessess the skills
required to make the most of cross-sell
and up-sell opportunities We have a good
track record of supporting clients like O2
with ‘best of breed’ technology platforms,
to run and improve their customer services
whilst the businesses enhance and expand
their digital service offering to customers

Insurance

Insurance companies continue to operate

in a highly competitive environment,
resutting In a greater need for them

to focus on improving multi-channel
experience to increase customer retention
Where premium growth remains modest,
firms are focused on improving operational
effiaency and orgamsational flexibility, areas
Capita 1s well placed to help them address

Financial services

Financial services organisations’ margins
remain under pressure as business models
and product offerings are becorming

more similar Many firms are looking to
reduce costs by standardising processes,
rationalise products and automate
functions across the front, middle, and
back-office Regulatory changes to the
Government'’s Funding for Lending Scheme
(FLS) will make 1t easier for businesses to
borrow, with the potential to stimulate
demand for commercial mortgages

As well as improving operational
efficiencies, Capita is well placed to help
address the challenges bought by digital
disruption and multi-channel operations,
increasingly viewed as a key differentiator
in the market

Emerging markets

Mortgages

Capita has extended its capabilities
beyond commeraial mortgages
admerustration o residential mortgage
adminustration The market for mortgages
is subdued, reflecting fragile consumer
confidence The stamp duty changes
announced m 2014 should help to
stimulate the market, but interest rate
rises are expected in 2015 and banks
are starting to gear up to respond
Banks have been reasonably successful
In addressing the pre-2020 cohort of

interest-only mortgage holders, but more
needs to be done on those with longer
maturity products in order to mitigate
this We are well positioned to support
financial institutions as they address
vulnerable customers in both these areas,
managing the portfolios and transitioning
custorners into the providers’ more
sustainabte products

Banking

The dynamics of this market are changing
rapidly, with a raft of challenger banks
emerging The banks spun out of larger
groups to satisfy regulators are also
attracting interest with therr ‘back to the
future’ approach to community banking
The tier 1 banks are responding to this, but
some still have scme way to go to regain
publc trust Banks are reshaping thewr
operating models to reflect the shifting
channel preferences of their chent base
and to cope with the continuous increase
in compliance and regulation

With this changing competitive
environment, customer Services IS
therefore top of mind for retail banks, both
as a means of retaining existing custormers
and as a differentiator that enables them
to attract new ones

Scence services
Capita sees exciting opportunities to build
a high-end presence in the science services

Q) See page 14

Total outsourced
today:

£€19.5bn’

market, which we estimate to be worth
£2 4bn per annum

Our recent selection by the Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
(Defra) to form a partnershup to operate
the Food and Environment Research
Agency (FERA) provides us with a strong
platform for growth in this market

We have a proven ability to combine
professional technical capability with
commercial expertise to deliver high value
knowledge based services and we see the
high value science services market as being
ready for a similar approach

Germany

Having built relattonships and developed
potential opportunities with our UK
chients’ northern European parent
companies and subsidiaries, we have
recently acquired a number of custorner
management businesses in the DACH
region to provide a platform for growth
in this new market for Capita The DACH
region has 110 million German speakers
and, with Germany the largest economy
in Europe, offers an excellent opportunity
for growth

The German outsourced Customer
Management and BPM market in 2014
was estimated to be worth €19 5bn and 15
expected to grow by 6% annually to 2018"

German customer management and BPM market pa

Ovum's market sizing and methodology
for Germany followed the same principles
as that applied to the UK market

Total potential
market

1 5ource MNelson Hall
2 Source Ovum
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Case
study

Acquisition of
SouthWestern

The purchase of SouthWestern has provided Capita with
an established foothold in the irish BPO market, building
on our existing financial services operations in the country.

The Irish BPO market 1s estimated to be

worth €770m (of which approximately

€300m s i SouthWestern's core services of

customer management, finance and accounting
administration) and
15 growing at arate

CEEEEE—— o ©f 5% per year

Since the acquisition

This deal will significantly enhance  was finalised in 2014,

Capita’s presence in the Irish
business process outsourcing
market, which i1s estimated to
be worth €1bn and growing by
5 per cent each year

Vie Gysin

Joint Chief Operating Officer

the business has now
fully integrated into

Caprta and 1s lookmg
to accelerate growth

Drawing on expertise
frorm the wider Group,
SouthWestern s
working with a number
of Its larger existing
clients to offer maore
strategic transformative services, designed to increase
customer satisfaction, drive revenue and secure therr
position as a market leader in the Irnsh outsourced
services industry

Acquisition of a key regional -

outsourcer, providing
new services In existing
geographical markets

Acquisition date Employees

August 2014
Core business

1,000 employees, primarily
based in Ireland wath smaller

Outsourced managed services  offices in Poland and the UK

Value
€35m {£28m) on a cash free,
debt free basis

The acquisition has also allowed Capita to begin
pursuing new outsourcing opportunities in Ireland,

with SouthWestern's reputation providing a

foundation from which to drive interest in services

from other parts of the business

In addition, Capita's major sales team s able to
leverage SouthWestern's expertise and experience
in the agniculture sector opening up a number of
new opportunities in a new market segment for

Capita in the UX and Europe

Opening up new opportunities
within Ireland and the
agnculture sector

i

| Key customers

Agriculture sector, ncluding Department
for Environrent, Food and Rural Affarrs
(DEFRA) and Insh Department of
Agriculture, Food and the Marne

Private sector, including Vodafone,
ewrcom and Bord Gars
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Generating profitable
growth and creating value

Capita’s growth is predominantly fuelled by organic growth
from our multi-service major contracts and through growth
from our individual businesses. To help fuel future organic
growth, we acquire small to medium-sized businesses to
broaden our capability and enter new market sectors.

The capability and scale we have built
across the Group allows us to create
smarter services and deliver better
outcomes for our clients This in turn
drives our orgaric growth, sustaming
our business and creating value for all
our stakeholders

We develop our major sates solutions by
fully utiising the assets and experience at
our disposal, bringing together capability
and expertise from across the Group to
create taillor-made solutions, directly
addressing the unique needs of our clients
and their customers

Creating organic growth
Capita's evolution across a number of
markets has enabled us to develop a
broad-based services business which
generates revenue from muttiple clients
and contracts across a wide range of
diverse sectors

The Group's long term performance

s primarily dniven by our medium

to long term custorner and business
process management (BPM} contracts
which provide a high degree of visibility
of future revenues

Our businesses also generate revenue
through single service contracts, annual
rollover contracts and project work

Major
contract attributes:

clients with whom we can
build a strong relationship
and deliver real benefits

defined bid processes with
clear decision criteria

opportunities in line with
our core competencies in
service transformation

potential to build
economies of scale

fair nsk/reward
balance and acceptable
contractual obligatians

birmited requirement for
capiial investment, unless

there is a real value
proposition for Capita

Identifying the rnight opportunrties

Given the long term nature of major
contracts, it 1s essential for us to pursue
only those relationships that can both
meet chents’ expectations and generate
reasonable returns for Capita This high
level of selectivity, along with our bespoke
client solutions, underpins our long term
win rate across major sales of between one
in two and one in three In 2014, our win
rate was one in two

Securing long term

transformational contracts

We manage procurements erther centrally
or at divisional level, depending on the
size and complexity of the opportunity
Our major sales team pursues complex,
long term customer management and
BPM contracts, usually valued in excess of
£50m, drawing on Capita-wide resources
to tailor solutions to each client’s
requirernents Sales opportunities below
£50m are generally managed by divisional
teams with support from the central major
sales team

On any major sales opportunity,

the central bid team can draw on the
resources from across our divisional
structure including expertise from our
single service activities The divisional
and Monthly Operating Board (MOB})
reporting structure s vital to the flow of
information, expertise and resources to
the sales teams both within and across
other divisions
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Better outcomes for clients and

their customers

We support our public and private

sector chents in improving the quality

of customer services at a lower cost —
providing citizens and customers with
simple, easy to use, personalised and
engaging services Our aim s to deliver
public services efficiently but in a way that

meets the particular needs of communities

and individuals For our private sector
clients, our focus 15 N improving custorner
attraction and retention and keeping our
clients at the forefront of their industnies

Evolving client relationships

Revenue opportunities

and commercialtsation

We are increasingly creating partnership
delivery models where there 1s a shared
growth objective with our clients In the
public sector, this has seen us supporting
chients in commercialising their existing
assets, for example through AXELOS,
our public sector subsidiary partnership
with the Cabinet Office, and Entrust,
our public sector subsidiary partnership
with Staffordshire County Counail

These solutions can deliver a growing
revenue stream, return funds to taxpayers
and create new jobs as well as protect
existing employment

In the private sector, our solutions are
increasingly designed around financial
models which incentrvise revenue growth
to the mutual benefit of both the client
and Capita For example, our partnership
with G2, where we are increasing up-
selling opportunities and improving
customer retention

TN
g !
wvi -
| Transformational
t partnenng
i Transformational
Multi-service/ outsourcing
| mid-sized
| Single service contracts
' platforms
|
i
L
L Complexity
Client Clients benefit from Support demand, Reduce costs Partnering behaviour
objectives Capna's shared platforms,  transformation,
} econamies of scale and cost saving Improve services Deep market knowledge
reduced admin costs Provide flexibility, Improve outcomes Financial stability
Introduce Innovation, Growth track record
mitigate/change nisk
L
Relationship Delivered via Caprta Average 5-10 year contract  BPM contract Long term partnership
h
structure on/offshore platforms tﬁgrg::s?:dl Fixed term (10+ years) New commercial
gly tonger
Annual roll-over, high Total contract value - fmed model/mutual
repeat rate or secured On/offshore delivery ota contract value - Tixe c 1 .
under medium contracts Risk transfer ontracted revenue plus
of 2-5 years Vanilla prc:ducts and evergreen concession
increasingly more KP! driven
Increasingly secured complex, added SPEC'a““ SMEs/
via frameworks inthe value services subcontractors
public sector Fied/vaniable pricing Focus on growth
L
Client Flexibility and control Expertise in Financial stability Partnering behaviour

selection area

Specific expertise

Benefit from cost efficient
shared platforms

Best of breed technology
and infrastructure

multiple workstreams

Benefit from cost effective
shared platforms

Expertisen
customer analytics

Scale economics

Deep market knowledge

‘Referenceability’

Financial stability

Cross-sector experience

Growth track record



. . . Strategic report

Capitaplc 22

Generatiné profitable growth and creating value continued

Creating mnovative solutions

Detailed knowledge, data and
understanding We start by bstering
Understanding the current and future
requiremnents of both our clients, their
wider stakeholders and the environments
they work in

Our business development teams are
resourced by market experts, who
mamtain open and detailed dialogue

with therr peers to understand the umique
challenges and opportunities evolving in
each sector we operate in By engaging

ina two way dialogue during any bid
process, we can help chients articulate their
challenges and shape solutions to directly
address them

At the same time, our user-centred
service design practice engages with a
cross-sectton of individuals to understand
the ways in which people interact with
aservice We look to proactively tackle
the frustrations and points of failure
customers experience from a service,
reducing the need for additional contact
and improving customer loyalty

Turning innovation INto action

in August 2014, Capita was ranked

at number 60 in Forbes magazine’s
listing of the world’s most innovatve
companes, and was one of only four
UK companies on the list The ranking
i5 based on mvestors' ability to identfy
businesses they expect to be innovative
now and in the future and acknowledges
the quality, inteligence-led solutions we
create for our customers

During the year, we also launched

Our tNOvVation microe-site

www createtomorrow co uk The site
showcases innovative tools and new ways

In turn, services that are easy o use deliver
downstream savings By understanding
customers’ experiences, expectations and
nuances, we can model expected costs,
revenues and loyalty in the solutions we
design for our clients

Creating transformational, nnovative
services The disruption brought about
by digital has increased choice and
reduced the potential for loyalty
amongst customers Organisations
must work harder to attract and retain
their customers, while istening and
communicating across multiple channels

Capita’s solutions teamns design services
to help organisations adapt and meet

the challenges of the digital age

Our behavioural science practice analyses
how groups and individuals are expected
to interact with a service, and how they
can positively influence these behaviours
to improve outcomes for organisations
and individuals Our analytics teams build
models to analyse data on how services
are currently used, how information can
be most efficiently handled and predict
future trends

of workmg in action, demonstrating how
they can be of value to orgamsations,
accompanied by insights from experts
leading the way in ther field

For details, visit
WWW create
tomorrow co uk

Our user experience experts and solution
architects then design solutions, informed
by this data and behavioural knowledge,
that best meet the needs for both the

end user of the service and our chient

As organisations have adopted digital
technologies and users have shifted to new
channels, we help knit everything together
into one seamniess, coherent journey

We deliver, test and refine Our sales

and operational teams work together,
ensuring continuity from initial tender
and throughout the contract life-cycle
We identify operational teams responsible
for transition and delivery early on

In the bid process, ensuring we have

the appropriate skills and resources in
place to deliver on our commitments

This includes expertise from disaiplines
ncluding HR, operations, marketing,
technology and communications On our
transformational deals, our transformation
practice wall support the transition and
bedding in of the contract, providing
expertise in organisational change, project
management and process re-engineering

Qur two-way dialogue with our clients
continues through the contract life-cycle,
where we design services that are forward-
looking and flexible to adapt to changing
market condrtions, helping us add value to
our clients and become an integrat part of
their operating models

Many of our customers are now mowving
towards long term transformational
partnerships, where we become an integral
part of their operations and support their
revenue model Future-proofing these
solutions and ensuring their long term
success requires ongoing dialogue as we
test and refine services to meet evolving
market conditions
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Generating profitable growth andmcmrﬂeatmg value continued

Generating and securing a pipeline

of quality opportunities

Capita’s pipeline represents our major bid
opportunities that have reached shortlist
stage It provides a fair mdication of the
heatth of the outsourcing market and

can be a useful indicator of likely future
organic growth

Betund our bid pipeline 1s an active
prospect list of opportunities where

the bidding process 1s underway but
where we have yet to reach a shortlist

or final bidding stage This prospect bist 15
supported by a ‘suspect list’ ~ relationships
that we are nurtuning to generate future
bid opportunities

Our bid pipeline 1s subject to clear criteria
> contains contracts of £25m or above

> shortlisted to the last four or
fewer bidders

> capped at £1bn to prevent very large
mdividual contracts distorting the total

Procurement process

The procurement process, especially in
the public sector, can be costly to pursue
and we mamtain stringent critera to focus
resources only on opportunities where

we see a real prospect of success If at any
stage we feel that procurement conditions
have shifted significantly or that any of
these critenia are no longer met, we will,
after detailed consultation, withdraw from
the process We will not take on excessive
risk or output-based contracts which are
overly reliant on external factors that are
out of our control

tn the private sector, the procurement
process Is determined by each individual
client, often working with advisers

We seek out opportumities through
business intelligence and existing
relationships, increasingly, we are also
approached directly by organisations

UK public sector contracts are subject
to a defined procurement process
which can take up to two years to
complete EU policy requires ‘fair and
open competition’ and opportunities
are formally advertised and notified

in addition, under EU competition law,
public sector outsourcing contracts that
are already in place must be offered for
tender when the imitial contract and
extension term is complete

Securing appropriate pricing

and contract terms

Our major contracts are long term
commitments Itis therefore essential
that our pricing and contract terms are
correct from the start to ensure that

we maintamn a mutually beneficial, long
term relationship which 1s based on trust
We undertake extensive due diligence

to build detailed service, nisk and pncing
models We often share these openly with
our prospective clients to ensure that all
our assumptions for delivering successfully
on the project are robust and that the
benefits generated to both parties are
fully understood

To ensure prudent pricing, we clearly
separate responsibilities between

sales teams (client relationships), sales
support teams {pricing and risk models)
and the Group Board {solution and
pricing approval)

Our contract price 15 generally made up of
a base cost that covers the transformation
and normal running costs of the

service Where demand on the service
infrastructure and resources fluctuates,
the pricing will include a variable volume-
related element All contracts include a
related basket of indices that refiect the
cost elements of the service {such as wage
inflation indices, CPl and RPI} Our scale,
multi-country service delivery model and
tow central overhead costs help to provide
addiuonal competitive advantage and
enable us to generate reasonable margins
for the Group

Qur track record n accurately pricing
contracts enables us to offer clients
sensible and realistic proposals wihile
robustly managing and mitigating nisk
Once agreed, the terms of our contracts
are fixed which means we have a good
view of stable, long term revenues

Tracking performance

For each major BPM contract, we
commit to a range of contract specific
performance metrics in order to ensure
that we are meeting chents’ expectations
Management has a clear line of sight to,
and responstbibity for, the performance of
their particular businesses and contracts
and their performance s tracked through
our robust management and governance
structures (see page 36) As a result, chients
find that outsourcing actually gives them
more cantrol over support operations as
they are able to directly measure service
costs and outputs

Our partners

However complex the challenge, we bring
together the right people and skills to
design and deliver the best solutions to
our clients In order to create the most
imnovative and forward thinking proposals,
we work with a range of niche, specialist
partners, from SMEs, the third sector,
agencigs and bodies where they can bring
unique expertise and nsight

Retaining and expanding contracts

As well as securing new business from
new clients, we work to renew or expand
existing chent relationships By achieving
operational excellence, we often secure
additional business from clients and we
achieve high retention rates as contracts
come up for renewal Over the last 30
years, we have only fatled to renew four of
our material contracts (defined as having
forecast annual revenue in excess of 1% of
the previous year's revenue) This includes
the London Congestion Charging Scheme,
which we re-won in January 2014 We have
no material contracts up for re-bid for the
next four years

Q) See page 06 for our 2014 major sales update
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Fuelling future organic growth
through acquisitions

Qur strategy 1s to make acquisitions

to enhance cur future organic growth
potentiat and drive value creation for
shareholders, with a 15% post-tax ROCE
hurdle rate

A defined process

Potential acquisitions are identified and
brought to the Group by our employees,
external consultants or through a direct
approach, with all deals assessed, priced
and agreed by the Board

Stringent due diligence, before and after
acquisition, 1s undertaken at both Group
and business level, enabling us to achieve
clear targets for growth, integration
benefits and profit

® See page 88

Acquisitions

Duning 2014, we continued to focus
upon acquinng small- to medium-sized
busmesses to enter new markets, build
capability in exusting areas and enhance
our sales propositions to facilitate future
organic growth We invested a total of
£310m" on acquisitions, excluding deferred
and contingent considerations, acquirng
17 orgamisations in markets such as utilities
and transport software, IT, networking,
mortgage administration and Germany

In February 2015, we announced

our intention to acquire avocis, a

leading provider of customer contact
management services in Germany,
Switzerland and Austnia (DACH), for
£€210m (£157m) on a cash/debt free basis
avocis has a strong position in the German
speaking regions of Europe serving similar
sectors to Capita's UK-based customer
management business, with high quality,
long term clients particularly in telecoms
and utiities

Our acquisiion pipeline contains a number
of interesting opportunities and we
anticipate mantaining a long term total
acquisition spend of between £200m to
£250m per annum

o

To help fuel future orgamic growth, we acquire
small- to medium-sized businesses to broaden our
capability and enter new market sectors

Maggi Bell

Group Business Development Director

Acquisrtion
criteria

overall fit with
our strategy and
core competencies

add complementary
new capabilities

access to a new
customer base

opportunity to create
a growth platformina
new market

ability to strengthen our
extsting market positions

ability to generate
sustainable,
quality revenues

potential to build
economies of scale

operations that are
principally based in the UK,
Ireland or Northern Europe

can be secured for an
attractive price

1 As previously announced
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Gener;tmg profitable growth and creating value continued

Successful integration
Our experience in successfully integrating
acquired operations has given us a tried
and tested on-boarding operation
Where appropriate, we communicate
Acquisitions and implement values and processes up
( front, so we are quickly able to achieve
synergies, generate value from acquired
assets and enable a smooth transttion
We also recogmise that for certan
operations, a company’s success rmay
be down to its independence and agibity
within the market In these cases, we may
take more of a strategic oversight of the
business, implementing our standard risk
and reporting processes while allowing the
During 2014 we completed 17 acquisitions, busmezs to ngzrate at arm's length &

acquiring 100% of each business

Value in brackets represents maximum consideration

January February

Liberty Services Retan International Network Technology  Stwrling Park LLP tricontes GmbH

Solutions {UK) Limited

Value £6 5m Value £18.8m + (£3 Bm) Value £125m +(£3 5m) Value £41m 4+ (£21m)
Capabiliwes/sector Capabilities/sector Value £57m Capabilities/sector Capabilities/sector
Document management/  People management Capabilities/sector Bebt collection and Customer management/
all sectors software tools IT security reseller and IT shenff officer services/ Northern Europe
Reasan Enhancing Reason Expanding managed security services  all sectors inc Germany
existing offering workforce management & software/all sectors Scottish local authonities  Reason Extending
capability Reason Expanding Reason Expanding the reach of our
T T 7 7 7 ourcapability debt capability existing capability

Updata Infrastructure  AMT-SYBEX

(UK) Limited Group Limited o
Value £80m +(£25m) Value £82m +(£23m)
Capabilities/sector Capabiities/sector

IT networking and Growing capabilities in
connectivity services/ utibities sector

primarnly publc sector Reason Software and

Reason Expandingour!T  data/utilitres and transport

networking capabilities
- - - T /" @ See page 35

Crown Mortgage
Management

Value £7 5m

Capabilities/sector
Residenuial and
commercial mortgage
administration/
financial services

Reason Expanding
into a new finangial
services market

@ See page 45
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Revenue in the first 12 months of ownership
by Capita followmng acguisition 15 reported
as acquired growth After this period,

revenue 1s reported within organic growth

Disposals
i an area of the business consistently
underperforms or 1s no longer considered
integral to the Group, we will undertake

a detailed review and dispose or close the

We are committed to generating returns
for shareholders and apply a target of
achieving a 15% post-tax return after

12 months integration into the Group
The majonty of our acquisitions achieve
or exceed this target return

July August

September

business area as appropniate In 2014, we
disposed of our corporate occupational
health business as it was not considered to
be core to the Group’s future operations

Novermnber

December

SouthWestern
Business Process
Services Limited

Value £28m

Projen Holdings
Limited

Value £7 7m + (£2 8m)

Capabilities/sector
Property project
management/all sectors

Reason Expanding
property and
infrastructure capability

Capabitrties/sector
QOutsourced managed
services (lreland)/all
sectors incl government,
agriculture in UK

- andireland

Reason Extending the
territonial reach of our

existing capability and access
to new market segments

Monarch Education
Holdings Limited

Value £15 2m

Capabibties/sector @ See page 19
Education

resourcing education

Reason Expanding
the reach of our
existing capability

Eclipse {Hardware)
Limited

Value £115m + (£5m)

Capabilities/sector Case
manage ment software
& services/iegal

Reason Expanding our
software capability and
further penetration intc
legal secior

Throgmorton UK
(No 2) Limited

Value £6m + {£2m)

Capabilities/sector Back
office administration/
financial services

Reason Extending
existing financial
admunistration offering

PageOne
Communications
Limited

Value £4m + (£2 5m)

Capabilsties/sector

A prowvider of integrated
mobile communications
solutions

Reason Enhancing our
maobile communications
capability

Worcestershire CC's
IBS Schools business

Value £145m

Capabilities/sector
IT services to schoots and
acadermes in Worcestershire

Reason Builds on the
strength of our existing
SIMS business

Complete imaging
Limited

Value £6 6m

Capabilities/sector End-to-
end managed print service
- supplying equipment to
online print managernent
software/all sectors

Reason Expanding existing
print capability & capacity

Solid State
Solutions Ltd (S3)

Capabilities/sector
Identification and provision
of bespoke data storage
solutions/all sectors

Reason Expansion of our
data storage capacity
and solutions
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Creating a Strategic Business
Partner for the DIO

Capita, with its strategic sub-contracting partners URS and
PA Consulting, was selected by the Ministry of Defence
(MoD) to drive the transformational change of the Defence
Infrastructure Organisation (DIO) over a 10-year period.

Supporting the MoD in the

management and transformation

of its national and international
infrastructure, Capita

took over full operational
management from September
2014 During the course of the
10-year contract, Capita will
work with the MoD and other
partners to support defence
capability by:

> leading the development
of anew footprint strategy to
rationalise and re-shape the
existing defence estate, resulting in
greater efficencies and increased
disposal receipts while mamntaining
operational output

> accessing a range of new
commeraial intiatives and
capabilities that will generate
major savings for the MoD while
not dminishing the level of service
to the Armed Forces community,
ncluding farrilies and dependants

> njecting new and innovative
ways of working to achieve peak
efficiencies and more effective
solutions and services, releasing
resources to benefit the estate
and drive down operational
running costs

> embedding a world-class,
integrated senior leadership
team that can set the strategic
direction of the orgarisation and
lead the business through the
transformation process

> developing and traiming the
existing DIO staff at all levels to
help increase their effectiveness
in support of UK defence outputs
while ensuring greater workforce
effiaency and effectiveness

The main
objectives of the
partnership are to

inject new and
innovative ways of
working to achieve
peak efficiencies

access a range of new
commercial nitiatives
and capabilities

build an integrated
sentorf leadership team

develop and train the
existing DIO staff at
all levels

Capita was selected for its record

of delivering innovative change
to public sector organisations
The focus of Capita's proposal
was not solely on the estate
elements of the business -1t atso
recogrised the value of developing
and mentoring DO staff to
enhance performance

The proposal contained
approximately 70 inrtiatives
across the business to address the
MoD's needs and drive savings
These ranged from footprint

and estate strategies, optimising
usage and value with accurate
cost measurement, through

to mtroducing market-leading
technology to drive down utilities
spend across the defence estate
This contract 1s at an early stage,
but significant steps have been
taken that will realrse savings over
tme There 1s a natural tension
between meeting short term
financial constraints, existing
business as usual challenges and
delivering spend to save intiatives
However, the new management
tearm 1s commuitted to laying the
foundations to deliver long term
and sustanable savings

Defence 1s a key growth sector for
the business, the DIO contract joins
the Army’s Recruiting Partnering
Project as major contracts

Capita 1s delivering for the MoD
The success of the DIO contract
will demonstrate the added value
that Capita can deliver not only to
the defence sector but also to the
wider industry
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; Contract won ' Core business
i September 2014 i The management and transformation of the UK’s
\ Value i national and international defence infrastructure
% £400m over 10 years l

I

Image removed

Photo Graeme Main/MOD

Strengthens Caprta's retabionship
with the Ministry of Defence

Builds on Capita’s reputation
for delivering transformation
and innovative change to
public sector orgarusations




Capita pic 30

. . . Strategic report

Generating profitable growth and creating value continued

Maintaining and developing

our infrastructure to support
our growth

From single services to transformational
partnerships, we are able to draw upon the
knowledge and resources from across the
Croup to deliver compelling solutions in a
cost effective way

The breadth of our capability and depth
of scale s fundamental to our major sales
propositions, allowing us to draw ona
range of assets and ensure we have the
right resources in place to create bespoke
solutions, tallored to our client’s needs

Our strategy of controlled and profitable
growth has allowed us to invest and
develop a lighly refined set of assets
and resources that underpin this offering

A dedicated and skilled workforce

Having the nght people, with the right
skills, 1s critscal to our ability to delrver
a high quality of services to our clients

Qur 68,000 employees play a key role
in our clients’ operations, destgning,
transforming and delivering their customer
management and admiristration and
providing first class support servicas
They have contact with clients and their
end customers across a wide range of
industrres and public services We strive
to ensure that they are fully trained and
supported, enabling them to deliver the
best possible service for our clients

Diversity and inclusion Our aim is to
attract the best people from the broadest
talent pool so that our teams reflect the
communities we serve and deliver a better
service for our clients We ensure our
recruitment and management processes
do not discriminate and encourage people
to raise any 1ssues through our open

door policy so that we can identify and
swiftly resclve them All our employees
are required to complete online diversity
awareness traning every three years and
we menitor compliance on a monthly
basis As we expand into new areas of
business, we face new challenges and we
aim to build teams that understand those
needs, o that they are equipped with the
skills and behaviours they need ta provide
a high level of appropriate service

o

From smg!e services, to transformatronai
partnerships, we are able to draw upon knowledge
and resources from across the Group to deliver
compelling solutions cost effectively

Magg Bell

Group Business Devetopment Director

Knowledge sharing Cur straightforward,
flat management structure, promotes
knowledge sharing and encourages
entrepreneurship across the business
Our internal reporting processes provide
a forum for the management across

the business to share knowledge, skills
anddeas More informal collaboration

I1s also encouraged through day-to-day
reporting, team working mechanisms
and our incentive structures We have
also developed and rolled out online
collaboration tools for our sales, marketing
and business development communities,
where colleagues can share ideas

Development and training
Developing our internal talent i1s
a key part of our strategy and success,
as illustrated n our robust succession
pianring procedures that ensure we
maintain stable leadership We actively
reassign managers ta new business areas,
shanng nnovation and skills across the
business and providing our employees the
best opportumty to grow and develop
In 2014, our retention rate for managers
across the Group (divisional directors and
senior management team) was 97 %, many
of whom have progressed to management
positions duning therr careers with Capita,
demonstrating our abiiity to motivate and
develop employees

This year also saw the roll-out of a new
talent development programme, to
help further retam and promote internal
development across the Group

We aim to attract and retain the best
possible talent across our business

and recogmse that rewarding people’s
indwidual achievements plays a key part
in this Remuneration packages and tocal
performance schemes are managed

by individual businesses, supperted by
corporate guidance, to ensure they are
competitive within their markets and
they reflect terms and conditions and
any cotlective arrangements We offer a
wide variety of learning and development
opportunities for all our employees
includmg onbine training, workplace
training, coaching and group mstruction
This year, we invested £17m in traning
across the Group (2013 £14m)
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Successful on-boarding and
transformation With approximately

70% of our employees having transferred
te Capria under TUPE (Transfer of
Undertakings, Protection of Employment)
to new applicants and existing employses  regulations, we have a detailed process of
who have graduated within the previous managing and integrating these large scale
five years The programme, which currently  employee transfers well We provide a

has 57 participants, offers a placement nurtuning environment for our employees
within one of our divisions, resulting o grow and advance their careers, beyond
In a permanent position If successfut their own business or contract through
Craduates also have the opportunity to the wide vaniety of services and markets in
work towards an MSc in leadership and which Capita operates

management with mentoring by a member

of the sentor managerment team

Our performance management system
helps us to identify talented employees
who have the potential 1o be one of our
future leaders This includes our ‘Lead the
Way' graduate programme which 1s open

—

Our values

We have a clear set of values,

which include respect and support,
consistency in managing our
employees, delivenng consistent,

high quality services and giving

our employees autonomy and
responsibility in therr roles In 2014, we
refreshed our values and implemented
a Group-wide programme to bring
them to bife, engaging our employees
across the business Our values, as well
as all Group policies and principles,
apply to all our employees, wherever
they are based As we enter new
international territones, we continually
adapt our policy and training materials
to comply with, or exceed, the legal
and regulatory requirements of the
countries in which we operate

Our management 1s cornmitted to
creating an INspiring, oOpen, supportive
and secure place of work for all

our employees to achieve therr full
potential and keep us at the forefront
of the BPM market

Managing health and safety

The health and safety of our
employees is essential to our
business model Most of our work

ts office-based, requiring a strong
focus on health and safety 1ssues
such as slips, trips and falls and
workstation assessments However,
we have an increasing number of
field force workers, who may face
different 1ssues We monitor our
health and safety performance
across the business and, in 2014, our
accident rate was 149 per 1,000
employees, showing a 35% reduction
in reportable acadents from our
baseline in 2004 (2013 142)

Health and safety rnisk for all our
activities 1s managed through the
Group-wide health and safety
management system Qur Group
health and safety team works with
managers to tdentify hazards, assess
risk and take appropriate action at
each particular ste This includes
assessing all new contracts and
acquisttions to ensure that they are
in ine with Group standards

Human rights

We understand our responsibility
torespect the human nights of our
employees and those of the communities
in which we operate and we support the
principles set out In the articles of the
United Nations' Universal Declaration
of Human Rights, and the International
Labour Organisation (ILO) Core

Labour Prnciples In 20714, we further
strengthened our approach through the
introduction of a formal human rights
policy, covening all our operations Asa
services business, we mamnty focus on
labour and workplace rights, ncluding
far working conditions, freedom of
association and collective bargaming

We have a fult range of policies
relating to our approach covering
emptoyee, suppler, environmental
and governance practices and
requirements For more mformatwon,
visit www capria co uk/responsibitity

For detaits, visit
www capita co uk
Jresponsibility
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Generating profitable growth and creating value continued

Employee engagement Listening to and
valuing the opinions of our employees

15 good for productivity and retention,
and it helps shape our future business

We engage with employees in a number
of ways, from face-to-face conversations
with managers to our annual employee
survey Structured around our core values,
the employee survey helps us identify
what we're doing well and what we can
improve 1n 2014, 48% of our employees
responded to our employee survey

{2013 46%) We are now using the results
to shape our 2015 strategy

A Group-wide employee recognition
scheme, the Capita People Awards,
celebrates employees who are excelling
in one of five categories that reflect
behaviours that Capita consider key to
the success of the business - service
excellence, innovation and improvement,
teamwork, leadership, and charitable
support and community engagement

® See our corporate responsibility performance
measures on page 53

———mm

2014 employee survey

A record 48% of our employees
responded to our 2014 annual Group-
wide survey, providing us with a healthy
balance of opinions regarding how
Capita people feel about working within
our business

The survey results once again identified
Capita as a ‘good employer’ —with our
‘Employer of choice score’ iImproving
from 2 89 (2013) to 2 94 (with 4 00
being the maximum possible rating)
This improvement actually bucks the
trend currently being expenenced by
many sectors, where a deterioration
was common ptace in 2014

This was reinforced by 73% of respondents
indicating that they believe Capitais 'a
good place to work’ (up from 71% in the
Previous survey)

As ever, there are areas to work

on - Improving communication and
cooperation between divisions continues
to be an area of challenge In addition,
supporting employees m understanding
the ‘bigger picture’ of what 1s going on
across the organisation as the business
continues to grow at pace I1s an emerging
issue which the Board has noted

Other factors that the Board are proactive
inrecognising and, where applicable,
addressing, include supporting employee
ideas for improving business functions
{down to 74% from 80% in 2013) and a
witlingness to help others outside of usual
acuvities ([down 71% from 74% previously)

The Board 1s encouraged that overall
scores improved for 23 of the 40 questions
asked this tme Since the 2014 survey
was structured to reflect Capita’s values
- the results help to shine a ight on how
we are domng n living out the behaviours
that underpin the way we operate

As we continue our drive to embrace
these values, we will strive to make
improvernents where needed over the
year ahead
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@ Our Infrastructure The diversity of our infrastructure means  For some clients, a long term defined

Our delivery network consists of we are able to leverage a mixture of contract and cost profile 1s important

80 multi-service centres in the UK, lreland  service delivery options to offer our clients  to support therr long term strategy

and Channel Istands, Poland, India, South  maximum flexibility, quality and cost For others, who face more seasonal

Africa and Dubai These are complemented  effectiveness through onshore, nearshore  changes in demand, a blended delivery

by over 400 business sites, predominantly  and offshere locations We also leverage model with greater flaxibility 15 required

in the UK, Ireland, and Northern Europe our own expenence as a large organsation  Qur delivery network can flex and adapt to
with smaller satellite offices in global torationalise property and associated back  support both approaches, allowing clients

locations supporting specific businesses office functions where appropriate to benefit from our scalable infrastructure

and financial junsdictions and operations

Multi-service delivery centres

UI_(, _Irelancl a_nd CI'!a_nnel !sland_s )
68 centres

The majonty of our 68,000 employees are based i our 68 multi-
serwice business centres across the UK, tretand and the Channel Islands
These sites deliver the full life cycle of services from front end
customer management to back office administration for atl our cheents
In 2074, we enhanced our presence in treland through the acquisition
of SouthWestern The business has contrnibuted significantly to

our infrastructure and capability in Ireland, delwering customer
management and back office services frorm a multi-service delvery
centre in County Cork

India 5 centres

South Africa 1 centre

Northern Europe

5 centres

With the acquisition of SouthWestern we continue to deliver high
quality, cost effective services including insurance, finance and legal
admunistration and customes management across our Northern
European operations We now employ over 700 skilted, multi-lingual
FTEs from two sites, In Krakow and Lodz Following the acquisition of
tricontes in 2014, in 2015, we increased our footprint in Germany with
the acquisition of Scholand and Beiling and will increase our scale
further following the completion of the acquisition of avocis which
will enhance our customer management proposition In the region

Dubai 1 centre

Our five multr-service business centres in
tndia now employ over 5,000 people,
playing an integral role in our oftshore
solutions We deliver a range of services
from transaction processing through to
knowledge based back office functions from
sites m Mumbay, Pune and Bangalore

Our delivery centre In Cape Town, South
Afnica, secured new clients and created over
1,000 new jobs during 2014, prowiding
customer management services that
continue to support our growth in the UK

Our delivery centre in Dubal predominantly
supports our Life and Pensions administration
business, as well as providing coverage for
other Capita businesses in the region
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Generatin—g—;Bfité_blé_growth and -c?e";t_ing value continued

Our technology

As advances In technology continue to
streamline processes and the flow of
information, we ensure all our solutions
are underpinned by effective IT As the
pace of change in digital commumications
continues to drive increased expectations
for efficiency and quality from end-users,
we are constantly evolving the technology
that supports our services and enables
transformation of our clients’ services

Deploying the most efficient technology,
leveraging our existing IT infrastructure,
rationaltsing duplicate processes and
integrating common systerns allows us
to improve administration and deliver
cost savings to our clients In addition to
the IT infrastructure that underpins our
operations, we are expanding our expertise
and solutions that bring together the
increasing number of customer channels
our clients offer, helping them provide
consistent mteractions and a joined up
digital proposition

In 2014, we continued our strategy

of internal Innovation, acquisition of
complementary organisations and forming
strategic technology partnerships to add
capability in thts area and support our
overall offering

® See acquisitions chart on page 26

Our processes

Our track record of large scale service
transforrmation has allowed us to develop
well refined processes to successfully
integrate operations and transform
services The breadth and scale of
Capita's operations allow us to streamline
administration, standardising and
automating processes where appropriate
and find synergies and economies of scate
through using our shared multi-service
delivery centres

Alongside our efficient operating and
financial structure, these robust processes
allow us to contain central overheads and
remain competitive We share the benefits
of our scale with our clients, creating
efficient operating models for thern and
supporting ther long term aims

Qur suppliers

@ With a diverse supply chain of some
35,200 eorganisations and spend of around
£1 4bn a year, we use our extensive scale
to procure services cost effectively and
share these benefits with our clients

Our strategic supphiers are closely
managed by our Group procurement team
This tearm builds strategic partnerships and
supports a network of local procurement
specralists within individual businesses

to apply consisient standards and
economues of scale across the Group
Effective supply chain management means
we regularly meet with key suppliers to
share knowledge, review performance

and examine where we ¢an collaborate
This investment means they understand
our business, can help us forecast

demand and identify opportumties

for improvement

Our responsible sourcing policy, which we
refreshed in 2014 in line with our formal
hurman nghts policy, outhines the principles
and standards we expect from our
supphers, including the health and safety
of their employees, human rights, warking
conditions, anti-bribery and corruption
and environmental management

We assess the risk associated with each
supplier based on the amount we spend
with them, what they supply and where In
the world they operate This assessment
determines how we engage with them to
ensure they comply with our policies

Where we have acquired a new business,
our procurement team undertakes a risk
assessment of the business’ suppliers
This 1s part of the due diligence process to
ensure that they meet Capita's standards
before they migrate to become one of
our suppliers

To help us manage our supply chain,

we have adopted an external online

CR performance assessment and
benchmarking platform which we are
rolling out in stages As a supplier to other
orgarusations, we atso undertake this
assessment and 1in 2014 improved our
score, retaimng our silver ranking

Diversity (in our supply chain We aim to
work with a drverse range of suppliers, and
we actively encourage SMEs, voluntary
and community organtsations and social
enterpnses to be part of our supply chain
Currently 70% of our supplier base are
SMEs Where possible we support the
communities i which we work by using
local suppliers

@ See our corporate responsibibity performance
measures on page 53
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Acquisttion date Employees

May 2014 250 based in Dublin, Belfast,
Core business Glasgow and Letchworth
Software and services for Value

mobile technology and smart £82m, plus £23m

data management contingent consideration

Acquisition of
AMT-SYBEX

The acquisition of AMT-SYBEX in May 2014 is helping
Capita to expand further into the transport and
infrastructure markets, as well as strengthen our mobile
technology and smart data management offering.

AMT-SYBEX complements the Group's existing
presence in the energy market, supporting

our experience in transformational change

and improving efficiencies while enhancing
specialist skills to improve customer attraction
and retention

Fuelling organic growth

Following a successful integration into Capita, further
opportunities to generate organic growth have come
from strengtheming existing customer relationships

A high-profile energy company that contracts with

——— Adding
comptementary
technologies to
existing solutions

. Bunlding capability
and scalein
new sectors

both Capita’s Customer Management business
and AMT-SYBEX for different elements of its
customer management process 1s now working
with both organisations to transform its entire
custorner experience

In sectors where Capita has a long-standing
presence, AMT-SYBEX has been able to integrate
therr mobile technology offering for existing chents
‘Affinity Fieldreach’ - the business' digital mobile
solution, provides a multi-platform environment for
designing and deploying digital processes to mobile
devices including the ability to capture, analyse and
distribute the resutts This mobile capability 1s a
particularty strong addition to Capita’s capabilities,
providing flexible functionality that we have
previously not been able to offer to customers

As well as adding value to Capita's existing
propositions, AMT-SYBEX has continued to
dnve further crganic growth within its existing
sectors, agreeing a major new contract with
the gas transporters’ agent, Xoserve, in May
2014 The solution will see AMT-SYBEX's
‘Affinity Marketfiow' software help bring about
transformative change for the UK's competitive
gas market

The business has delivered strong mobile bcense sale
revenues to its client base this year, and embarked
on a number of significant ‘smart energy’ projects

With these services now regularly built into alt
Capita’'s major sales solutions, we will be providing a
more extensive offering to our clients, based on key
differentiating technologies that deliver real value

Key customers

Utilities and transport companies
including Gas Networks Irefand, Four of
the "Big Six’ energy suppliers in the UK,
National Gnd, Transport for London,
and Network Rail
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Strong leadership
and robust processes

A key element in Capita’s business model is the
approach we take to supporting and controlling
growth. Clear policies, procedures and robust
systems are embedded across finance, operations,
governance and risk management, led by an
inspiring, strong management team.

Effective controls and

risk management

Managing our business

Our flat management structure, robust
processes, and strong governance
procedures promote accountability
across the business

Monthty Operating Board (MOB) reviews
are the formal process through which

we manage financial and operational
reporting from across the business

More informal collaboration is also
encouraged through day-to-day reporting,
team working rmecharmsms and our
Incentive structures

Thus straghtforward reporting structure
and culture of collaboration prormotes
knowledge sharing, encourages
entrepreneurship and ensures robust
service delivery for our clients

Robust, straightforward structure
2014 has seen Capita continue to

grow and dwersify its operational and
regutatory footprint In addrtion, the
outsourcing sector has seen increased
scrutiny by stakeholders of the role that
outsourcers play in delivering services
These have included

> Reports by the Public Accounts
Committee and others into various
aspects of public sector outsouraing which
have emphasised the need for greater
transparency, demonstrable control over
cutsourcers and demonstrating cost
effectiveness, and

> Increased work by the Financial
Conduct Authonity into outsourcing
by asset managers, the results of
which are often applied across all
FCA regulated businesses

Adapting to these changes, we have
continued to successfully operate
our business, track our performance
and manage the risks artsing through
our robust management and
governance structures

Our approach continues to be to provide
all levels of management with a clear
bne of sight to, and responsibility for, the
perfarmance of their particular business,
development of market opportunities
and management of the key nsks

These structures develop over time and
2014 has seen further enhancements
put into place The core objective of this
approach remains the same to underpin
the success of the businesses as a whole
while promoting a culture of transparency
and responsibility at every level

Business management

Capita's overall Group business strategy
and modet s based on the Board's
strategic direction and risk appetite,
together with the input of divisional
managers who remain close to their
markets and best understand the
challenges and opportuntties within
therm A simutar approach 1s adopted

for acquisittons, where potential targets
are dentified either divisionally, to
bolster specific propositions, or by the
Group Executive Board as part of a more
strategic direction for the business overall
The allocation of nvestrent capital

both internally and externally 1s carefully
considered to ensure sensible returns and
achieve real value for the business

Every year, individual divisions develop
their own business plans and strategy
within the overall Group strategy

These are then reviewed and challenged
by the Board before being consolidated
into the Capita-wide plan

Having set the strategic direction for the
business, the Board monitors the ongoing
achievement of these underlying goals
This 1s primarily the responsibility of the
Joint Chief Operating Officers (COOs) to
whom the divisional executive directors
report on a regular basis, the Joint COOs
In turn report to the Group Board

o

Having set the strategic direction for the business,
the Board monitors the ongoing achievement of
these underlying goals
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Management and governance structure
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Strong leadership and robust processes continued

Performance management

Our overall business management,
financial and operational reporting from
across the Group 1s managed through our
Monthly Cperating Board {(MOB) reviews

Imtially, the performance of a division’s
business units is collated and discussed
at 'pre-MOB’ meetings, chaired by the
divisional executive director, where their
team reports on business and financial
performance, business opportunities
and, importantly, any client or
operational chatlenges

In addition, MOB reviews provide a
structured and consistent bine of sight from
Board level down to the businesses within
each division and have proven to allow a
quicker development of opporturities and
resolution of 1ssues

Risk management

Controlled risk taking 1s fundamental to
the organisation’s success, ensuring that
risks and rewards are balanced in the
pursuit of sustainable, profitable growth
Capita 15 not sk averse, 1t looks to actively
manage nsks which 1t has scrutimised and

has an appetite for within our underlying
This information 1s then provided by the nsk and tolerance framework
individual divisional executive directors to
the Executive Group Board through the
main MOB meetings Reporting business
operations through this process allows
the Executive team to fully understand
financial performance and projected
outturns, key business opportunities and

nsks on a month-by-month basis

New Risk Managerment Framework
During 2014 the Group Board approved
a new Risk Management Framework
The Board recognised that the approach
to nsk management which had
successfully served the group through
recent growth required renewal

This was to reflect the increased size

and complexity of our businesses and
the on-going desire to balance risk and
opportunity It also reflects our belef
that effective nsk management underpins
the delivery of the nght outcomes

for our clients and end customers

The new framework 1s centred on four
key elements

> acommon definition of risk that

15 used consistently throughout
the organisation

» agroup-led common risk framework
that protects the business from
unnecessary risk exposure, whilst
still allowing divisional and business
management to operate with sufficient
flextbility to react to market needs

> acommon risk management
infrastructure that supports the
organisation 1n the performance of its
risk responsibilities

> agovernance structure with
appropriate transparency and
visibility into the organmisation’s risk
management practices

The risk appetite has been overhauled to
provide a clearer defimition, across 22 risk
categories, of the Board's tolerance to risk
and therefore where actions to mitigate
nsks beyond tolerance need to be taken
A single approach to risk reporting at all
levels of business 1s starting to provide
greater clanity of the risk profile to a
refreshed nsk governance framework

During 2014 we have commenced the
implementation of the Framework
across our businesses, replacing

our legacy risk measurement and
reporting with the new approach

This implementatton phase will run
into 2015

Risk Management Framework

Risk Risk
appetite

Governance
methodology model




We believe that conducting our business
with integrity, applying a high level of skill,
care and diligence to what we do, services
the interests of alt our stakeholders

Thus allows us to grow in a controlled
manner, and achieve our business goals

The nisks Capita faces evolve over ime
as a result of both the changing size

and complexity of our business and its
services but also through changes in the
external legal, economic and regulatory
environment In 2014, we have seen the
following developments i the wider
risk environment

> increased understanding of the extent
of ‘cyber’ threats facing UK plc including
the activity of hacktivists and those
seeking fraudulent access to funds, data
and information

> increased European regulation
In areas such as data protection and
asset management

> economic pressures raising Litigation
nsk around asset performance

> UK regulatory developments around

‘conduct’ requining greater focus on end
customner outcomes in financial services
and utility industnes

> increased focus on environmental risks
through carbon pricing and energy

@ See page 42 for details regarding our principal
risk categories

Our risk management activities seek to
protect the business from unnecessary nsk
exposure, whilst still allowing dwisional
and business management to operate

with sufficient flexibility to react to market
needs It atso helps us demonstrate to
chents, end customers and regulators

how we take our responsibilities seriously

As Capita's business model devolves
certain authonty and responsibility to
business management at all levels, risk
management 1s primarily the responsibility
of those who are in the best position to
understand and act effectively They apply
risk management in line with the Group-
wide Risk Policy set to reflect the nisk
appetite set by the Board and within an
industry standard ‘three lines of defence’
model

Capitaplc 39

Control functions

The Group Risk & Comphliance function
has speafic responsibilities and acts on
behalf of the Board

The Group Risk & Compliance Director
has access to all members of the Board
{Executive and Non-Executive Directors)
and supports their ongong traiming

plan He also has regular meetings with
the Executive and Divisional Directors
throughout the year The remit of

the Group Risk and Compliance
function includes

> mamntaming and overseemng the
implementation and execution of the
Group Risk Management Framework
Coordinating business urit risk and
compliance teams to facilitate Group-
wide risk and compliance

> setting the strategic direction for,

and mantaining retationstups with aur
various regulators Reporting on the
residual risk profile, significant incidents
and regulatory developments to the Audit
and Risk Commuttee and the Executrve
Risk Commuttees

S —

We believe that conducting our business with
integrity, applying a high level of skill, care and
diligence to what we do, services the interests of
alf our stakeholders

Andy Parker
Chief Executive
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Strong leadership and robust processes continued

The Group Internal Audit function has
free and full access to all activities, records,
properties and employees throughout

the Group

The Group Internal Audit Director has
access to and regular meetings with
the Chairman of the Audit and Risk
Commuittee and members of the Board
The remit of the Group Internal Audit
function includes

> reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s
governance, procasses, controls and risk
management strategies

> providing the Board, the Audit and Risk
Commuttee and all tevels of management
with an objective opinion based on the
results of its reviews and management’s
awareness and responsiveness to risk

> delivery of the Group Internal Audit
plan as approved by the Audit and
Risk Committee

> reporting regularly to the Audit and
Risk Commuttee and the Executrve Risk
Commuttees on significant issues, rnsks
and themes and management progress on
addressing them

Drvisional risk and compliance teams
support their divisional and business unit
management weth their nsk management
ownership and responsibilities under

the Risk Management Framework

The divisional risk and compliance

teams are

> 'owned’ by the businesses within which
they sit, but have escalation routes to the
Group Risk & Compliance Director

> structured and resourced depending

on the complexity/regulatory footprint
of the operations

o

The Group's continuing strategy of controlled
growth through organic contract wins and
targeted acquisitions is overseen through the
application of our Risk Management Framework’s
risk appetite approach during extensive due
diligence activities

Andy Parker
Chief Executive

Our rnisk appetite

Risk appetite, as defined in our Risk
Management Framework, i1s the degree of
risk the Company ts prepared to accept in
the pursuit of its objectives before specific
action 1s deemed necessary to reduce it
22 risk categones have been identified
and were used to inform a new Group-
wide Risk Appetite which was agreed with
the Board in 2014 In determining the
degree of nsk appetite, Capita reconciles
two thresholds

> ansk tolerance defined as the
bearable level of vanation Capita is willing
to accept around specific objectives

> anskcrtical bt /concern defined as
the maximum risk Capita can bear and
remain effective in delivering its strategy

Capita has established the tolerance and

critical irmit/concern risk appetite to help

the business to understand the relative

significance of any risks faced and better

prioritise nsk mornitoring and control

activities Specifically, risk appetite hetps

determine the degree of control that

needs to be applied to a particular area

of nsk To focus sk reporting, emphasis

15 clearly given to the reporting of rnisks '
that are categortsed at uncomfortable or :
critical brut to ensure appropriate action |
15 berng taken |



Managing our bids and acquisitions
The Group's continuing strategy of
controlled growth through orgamc
contract wins and targeted acquisitions
15 overseen through the application of
our Risk Management Framework’s risk
appetite approach during extensive due
diligence activities

in line with our established Group Due
Diligence and Integration Policy and
Acquisitton Policy, there are 'Black Hat’
reviews for all deals These structured
assessments consider the pricing and risk
profite in depth Group Risk & Compliance
assist businesses with this due diligence or
undertake it directly for our major contract
bids and, together with Group Internal
Audit, are standing invitees to the key
decision making meetings, ensuning key
risks are given an appropriate discussion

Group Internal Audit undertake reviews
on certain deals post-completion to
ensure comprehensive due diligence was
carried out and to feed into the conduct
of future deals

Our collective work in assessing the
quality of acquisition targets and the
viability of contract bids can lead to us not
proceeding on certan transactions and/or
contract proposals This enables us to have
greater confidence that, amongst other
things, we can translate our bid pipeline
into profitable and sustainable business
serving the interests of Capita, our chients
and end customers alike The 1ssues that
have arisen mn 2014 which have, in some
cases, led to us not proceeding include

> taxissues on acquisition accounting
> levels of residual operational

nsks arising

> contractual terms which we believe
are contrary to our best witerest

During 2014, we have further
strengthened our Due Diligence and
integration Policy to introduce

> ephanced stress and scenario testing

> centralised record keeping of key data
and assumptions used in significant bids

> more formalised handover of risks
identified during due diligence and
information on key commercials to
receiving Capita business

> greater resourcing and tracking the
progress of transition plans agreed

The Bids & Acquisitions team in Group Risk
& Comphance has expanded its work from
primarily focusing on financial services
deals, applying a similar level of nisk
assessment and mitigation across wider
Croup transactions

In Line with Capita widerung its regulatory
foatprint, this team has expanded its own
knowledge and working relationships to
mclude regulators such as the Solicitors
Regulation Authonty, Ofcom and Ofgem

The Audit and Risk Committee approves
annual plans presented to them by both
Group Internal Audit and Group Risk &
Comphance detailing the team’s priorities
for the comung year

Both teams provide regular updates on
their progress throughout the year, with
regular reports on findings, tssues, risk
incidents and themes for their attention

@ See page 86
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/ Priorities for 2015

> Further developing our group
work around Information security
and data protection {spectfically
in bght of the upcoming EU Data
Protection Regulation)

> Continuing to strengthen our
‘business resilience’ across the
whole Group

> Supporting our international
development by ensuring appropnate
standards around employee safety,
anti-bribery controls and overseas
counterparty risk

> Continuing to support the
integration of our new acquisitions
and contracts
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Strong leadership and robust processes continued

C—Prlncipal risk categories

We operate a total of 22 nsk categories which are kept under regular review

Those deemed to have significant potential impact or exposure, as identified

through the Group’s Risk Management Framework, are detailed below

—

Potential nisks and impacts

Mitigation activities include 2014 developments

Busmess environment

- Changes to the political, commercial
or market landscape affect the viability
of Capita businesses Key elements of
Capita’s business model fait to adjust to
changing market needs on a timely basis
and become diluted or obsolete

+ Actions of competitors impact Capita's
competitive position

+ Focus on widening scope of
existing contracts

« Focus on 11 diverse public and
private sector markets

- Continual work to diversify business
operations across new private/public
sector markets and market segments

« Successful entry to new markets and
sectors for Capita including mortgage
adrruristration, electronic monitoring
and AXELOS, aur public sector subsichary
partnership with the Cabmet Office

- Actively monitored potential pobitrcal and
other devetoprnents

+ Focus from CEO on innovation and
responsiveness to change

Operational delivery

« Fallure to meet contractual terms,
milestones and service level agreements
1IN major contracts

» Delivery of contracts fail to meet quality,
cost or performance expectations

+ Financial client service penalties

+» Mismanagement of complex chient
relationship structures

+ Loss of contract

- Operating performance indicators in place + Significant and complex projects now
for alt business and key contracts brought within single dwiston to share

» Robust contractual and governance management expertise and learnings
mechanism regarding robust oversight and support

- MOB and Risk Committee challenge help focus night management oversight
and oversight and support

+ Risk-based Independent assurance (Gla)  * Refreshed nsk governance through

+ Cross-relationship operational, techrucal ~ NeW framework to track issues and
and commercial oversight and governance ~ MTgate earbier

Duty of care

- Failure to provide adequate duty of care
to staff, stakeholders, clients and end
customers of our services

+ £nd customer detrment

» Adverse impact on wellbeing of
our employees

+ Failure of health and safety compliance

- Failure of clinical governance in our
health-related businesses

» Safeguarding policy, process and standards + Successful introduction of Group-wide
+ Widespread focus on ‘conduct risk’ and Safeguarding policy
the delvery of end customer outcomes - New health & safety and property portal
+ Rigorously applied Group-wide health and  for reporting and issue tracking/resotution
safety policy, process, training and audits
- inadent management system that
includes issues around duty of care
« Robust operational monitoring and oversight
of our health-related activities

Technical infrastructure and resilience

+ Failure to provide adequate IT services to
support core services and business needs

+ Loss of core systems/technology with
tong term kmpact on client delivery

- System resilience and stability does
not meet service delivery needs or
expectations

» Legacy system mainienance

» Inadequate business continurty/
disaster recovery arrangement

» Adoption of industry standard managed
service standards and controls

- Robust business conuinuity/disaster
recovery programme

» Deployment of 1ssue detection software
and resolution practices

« Adoption, where appropriate, of

+ Appointment of CIO to take forward
greater development of Group's IT
strategy and central provisioning

« Commencement of Group-wide business
Impact assessments to draw up single view
of restlience 1ssues

« Acquisttions of Updata and other 1T/

ISO27001 standards network firms strengthen our core
« Investment into upgraded core IT netwark provision
infrastructure - Development of cloud capability and move

of core systems commenced in 2014
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Potential nisks and impacts

Mitigation actrvities include

2014 developments

Information security

- Exposures and subsequent contractual
and regulatory penalties brought about
through failure to protect information/
data assets of Capita, our chients or end
customers from loss, theft, alteration
or destruction

- Failure in the mechanisms to secure
or recover sensitive information

« Loss or theft of intellectual property

- Cyber crime

- Group-wide policies and procedures

« Single information secunty framewaork

- Risk Commuttee oversight at all
business levels

- Staff training and monitoring programme

* Incident management system

= Cross-Group forum to evaluate tssues
and effective controls

- Local disional skilled specialist
information security resource

- Refresh of our Group Information
Security standards

+ Group-wide information threat
assessment with assistance of third
party consultancy

+ Recognition of importance of Cyber
Security nsks by Board

Human resources

» Failure to attract, manage or retain
sufficient, skilled or experienced staff

- Morale 1ssues impact productivity
and innovation

» Costs of increased/excesstve turnover
of staff

- lmpact on Capita's credibility as
an employer

* Key person reliance/management stretch

+ Comprehensive succession planning

+ Continual development and
performance management

+ Extensive training and development
for all staff and management

« Comprehensive screening/vetting
process in line with roles

+ Whistleblowing line to ensure any
significant staff 1ssues can be reported
and escalated appropriately

+ Further roll out of our vetting process
to new Caprta businesses and internal
movers to sensitive roles

« Refresh of ‘Speak Up' Public Interest
Disclosure Policy

« Talent management initiatives
{aunched to 1dentify and nurture
existing Capita talent

Partnerships/third parties/outsourcing

« Contractual dispute with contractad firms

- Disruption to supply chain

* Service interruption where rebiance s
placed on the resilience of partner, third
party or outsourced relationship

- Partners and/or third parties do not act

within the intended limits of their authority

or do not perform in a manner consistent
with Capita's strategies and objectives

- Liabilittes for actions of third parties

» Failure in third parties governance/
nappropriate business practices

+ Group outsourcing {material suppliers)

policy

- Review of key third party contracts by
commercial teams

» Monitoring of key outsourced services
Service Level Agreements (SLAS)

* Partnership governance

» Business resilience arrangement of third

parties In place to protect key services

- Refresh and roll-out of revamped
material suppliers policy

- Greater controls over contract
documentation and retention

+ AXELQOS public sector subsidiary

partnership with Cabinet Office launched

January 2014

Integration, transition and change

+ Planned synergies failing to
achieve targets

+ Detrimental impact on growth
and performance of business

* integration challenges resulting
in increased operational risks

» Mispnicing of long term major coniracts

- Impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets through underperformance or
unforeseen developments in acquired
businesses

« Multi-stakeholder relationships

+ Mismanagement of priority deliverables
and bustness as usual

+ Due diligence on broad categorisation
of nisk exposures

+'Black Hat' governance process

« Group Board review and approval
of acquisition and significant bids

+ Commercial and contractual terms
closely reviewed to ensure clarity

+ Earty adoption of MOB & risk
management processes

« Emerging risk review and appropriate
escalation

- Integration and transition process

« Strong financial controls aperated by
unsfied financial structure and system

* Robust change gap analysis actvities and

remediation planming

- Refreshed approach to business

integration focusing on local management

ownership with appropriate oversight
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Strong leadership and robust processes continued

Potential nsks and impacts Mitigation activities include

2014 developments

Financial exposure

» Risk of financial loss or failure to operate
within financial targets as a consequence
of external or internal vulnerabilities

+ Adverse effect on business financial
performance fromn, e g mispricing,
performance 1ssues, cbent dispute or
changing market landscape

+ Adverse investor impact {share price)

» Strong financial controls operated by a
unified financial structure and system
- Monthly finances reviewed in MOB

monitorng controts

- Robust procurement process to further
strengthen expendsture controls

» Business disposal

- Rigorous capital expenditure approval and

» Group Internal Audit reviews of
completeness of Income across spread
of businesses

* Introduction of 'My Purchasing’ process
to strengthen procurement controls and
iink to invoiaing

Legal risk

« Failure to comply with legistative,
contractual, fiduciary, statutory and/
or judicial requirements

> Criminal labibty

- Commercial and contractual terms closely
reviewed to ensure clarty

- Contractual warranty

+ Menitonng and tracking of legislative
requirernents across all Capita junsdictions

+ Proactive and reactve Group legal support

* New Commercial Risk Awareness training
launched for wider business leadership to
enhance knowledge of key contracting
process and commercial risk
management

Financial crime

+ Financial impact of fraud

+ Sigmficant aiviland cniminal penalties
in cases of bnbery/corruption and
subseguent potential prohibition from
public sector contracts

- Exposure to parties exploiting
vulnerabilities through a vanety of
fraudulent or cnminal acts

+ Failure in supervision or corrective
actions associated with financial crime

- Board led anti-corruption and anti-fraud
culture, zero tolerance approach with
robust disciplinary process

« Formal risk assessment of vutnerabitities

- Appropriate polictes and procedures
i place including a Group-wide
whistleblowing policy

- Comprehensive training of senior
management across Capita

+ Fraud investigations team to investigate
and prosecute cases, identify root causes
and embed remedial work

« Appointment of new Group Head of
Financial Crime Prevention to better
coordinate Group policies and standards

« Enhanced policies and oversight of
financial cnime risks in Group to reflect
growth of Capita into new sectors
and junsdictions

+ Refresher training undertaken for Board
and senror management on bribery risks

Regulatory risk

- Non-compliance of our businesses with
the requirements of regulated bodies
in the UK or overseas

- Regulatory, financial and contractual
penaliles

+ New regulatory requirements for
emerging Capita businesses

- Non-compliance with environmental
regulations

- Appropriate policies and processes

« Monttoring by compliance teams in
Group, Dvisions and Business units
and Internal Audit oversight

- Supervisory teams

- Rigorously applied environmental
policy and process

- Measure and manage carbor footprint
exposure and achieve energy reduction

» Reduction in paper use and Increase
in recycling

- Introduction of consumer credit regulation
by FCA managed across Group firms

+ Ongoing relationship with FCA maintained

+ New regulator for Group firms with the
purchase of a Solicitors Regulatory
Authority supervised firm

* Further development of knowledge
of our expasures to Ofcomn, Ofgem
regulatory regimes

Brand and reputation

- Internal or external activities and events - Centraltsed proactive PR team
affect Capita’s brand or reputation * Inaident support by internal PR tearm

+ Faiture to mainiain client or market sector - Reactwve PR strategy in association with
trust 1n the Capita brand business, clients and public sector

- Threat of hostile or sustained media subsidiary partnerships
attention towards Capita businessesand  » Investor retations strategy to develop and
activities or corporate actions mantam open relationships with

- Adverse investor impact investment community

- Further strengthening of management

control around key contracts such as the
Recrurtment Partnering Project to provide
even greater line of sight for Board

- Greater understanding across business of

activities of central PR team

+ Re-launch of Capita values, emphasising

service delivery excellence and fair
treatment of customers

- Increased recognition of potentiat brand

and reputatron risks through specific
_inclusion on the nisk framework
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Acquisition of

Crown Mortgage Management

Crown’s specialist mortgage skillsets — in residential, equity
release and small commercial mortgages — complement
Capita’s existing mortgage business specialisms, particularly

large commercial mortgages.

These synergies ensured that Capita was able to
integrate Crown's expertise easily into the existing
Capita Mortgage Management business

Since the deat was finalised in May, Crown has been
successfully rebranded as Capita Mortgage Services
and integrated into the Group The business continues
to grow across its core markets with existing and new
clients, as well as developing new capability, resulting
in several significant new contract wins at the end

of 2014

The integration has seen technological benefits

across the business, with Phoebus - the software

used by Crown to service thewr mortgage clients -
being adopted by Capita’s existing mortgage service
centres The expertise acquired through the mtegration
of Crown inte Capita Mortgage Services has ensured
that this implementation is already delivering
increased customer service levels and revenue

Strategic specialist
acquisition to generate
further organic growth in
existing sectors

|

|

|

. Acquisition date Employees

. May 2014 110

. Core business Value
Mortgage servicing £75m

2014 also saw the announcement that Capita was
selected as the preferred bidder for the £325m
contract to manage the Co-cperative Bank’s
mortgage operations This will be the largest
mortgage servicing deal in a decade, with Capita
managing more than 250,000 mortgage customers
and £23bn of lending

Crown's reputation and expertise in the mortgage
processing market helped bolster our proposition

to the Co-operative Bank, with our major sales team
able to call on the knowledge and judgment of a
number of key Crown employees Our solution wilt
draw on Capita’s existing commercial debt-servicing
capabilities and proficiency in large-scale customer
service transformation, enhanced by industry
expertise from Crown

New entry into retail
mortgage administration

l
|

Key custorners

JP Morgan

RBS

Coventry Building Society
State Bank of India
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Strong leadership and robust processes continued

In numbers

Q4%

Revenue increased by
14% to £4,372m? In 2014

+11%

underlying operating
profit’ increased by 11%
to £576m?

19.6p

The Board 1s
recommending a
final dividend of 19 6p

Strong financial discipline

Capita's focus upon creating value for
shareholders 1s supported by strong
financial controls and effective governance
across the Group

We monitor performance against KPls,
for which we have clear aims

Underlying revenue

Aim drive profitable, sustamnable growth
through a combmation of organic growth
and acquisitions

Underlying revenue’ increased by 14%

to £4,372m?1n 2014 (2013 £3,851m3),
including 9% organic growth and 5% from
acquisitions completed in 2013 (2%) and
2014 {3%)

Operating profit and margin
Aim consistently maintain underlying
operating margins

We closely manage operating costs

to ensure that the business 1s growing
profitably, leverage our scale and shared
service infrastructure, maintan effective
procurement processes and a lean
corporate structure

Underlying operating profit' increased by
1% to £576m2in 2014 (2013 £516 9mé)
Our underlying operating margin' was

13 2%2 (2013 13 4%3), compared to our
anticipated range of 12 5% - 13 5% which
we expect to be able to mantain for the
foreseeable future

Graph remaved

Graph removed

Graph removed

1 Excludes non-underlying items detailed in note 5 on page 123

2 On an ongaing basis 2074 numbers exclude the sale of our Occupational Health business, see note 4 on
page 122 2013 numbers have not been restated on this basis

3 2013 numbers exclude the partsal sale of our Insurance Distribution and planned SIF business ctosure
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Earnings per share (EPS)
Aim achieve long term, consistent
growth in EPS

Long term growth in EPS 15 a fundamental
driver of shareholder value To align

their interests with shareholders, 75%

of Board Directors’ long term incentive
remuneration s based upon EPS targets

Underlying earnings per share® increased
by 10% to 65 2p?in 2014 (2013 5% 4p3)
The Group's EPS has grown at a compound
annual rate of 11% over the five years to

31 December 2014

Graph remaoved

Reported profit before tax

Reported profit before tax, after the effect
of non-underlying charges, increased by
36% to £292m (2013 £215m) Non-
underlying charges included £25min
relation to business disposals and £218m
in retation to those items detailed in

notes 5 and 9 on pages 123 and 128,
respectively

Drvidends
Aim sustain a progressive dividend policy

Capita atms to drive value for shareholders
through the payment of progressive
dividends and, when appropriate,

capital returns

The Board 1s recommending a final
dividend of 19 6p per ordinary share
(2013 17 8p), making a total of 29 2p
for the year (2013 26 5p), representing
anincrease of 10% Dividend coveris

2 2 times? for 2074 The final dividend
will be payable on 28 May 2015 to
shareholders on the register at the close
of business on 17 April 2015 The Group'’s
total dwidend has grown at a compound
annual rate of 12% over the five years to
31 December 2014

Graph removed

Cash flow
Aim mantan a cash conversion ratio
of at least 100%

The Group 15 focused upon generating
cash, actively managing working capital
and capital expenditure, to fund organic
growth, dividends and acquisitions

We beligve that we can achieve annual
cash conversion (defined as underlying
cash generated from operations divided by
underlying operating profit for the year) at
or above 100% for the foreseeable future

In 2014, £644m? (2013 £546m?3) of
underlying cash flow’ was generated
by operations, representing a cash
conversion ratio of 112% (2013 106%)
Underlying free cash flow" (defined

as operating cash flow less net capital
expenditure, interest and taxation) was
£368m? (2013 £312m3)

Graph removed

1 Excludes non-underlying items detaied in note 5 on page 123

2 On an ongoing basss, 2014 numbers exclude the sale of our Occupational Health business, see note 4 on
page 122 2013 numbers have not been restated on this basis

3 2013 numbers exclude the partial sale of our Insurance Distribution and planned SIP business closure

4 Exceptional additional pension contnbution of £40m

5 Before one-off settlernents of £17 9m for Arch cru and £10 0m pension contribution for transfer back to

Cumbria County Counal pension scheme
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Strong leadership and robust processes continued

Capital expenditure
Aim contain capex at or below 4%
of revenue

We aim to allocate capital efficiently,
focusing upon opportunities that generate
the best return for shareholders and
avoiding tying up too much capital in long
term projects

In 2014, net capital expenditure was
£146m, 3 3% of revenue (2013 £144m,

3 7%) There are currently no indications of
sigrificant caprtal expenditure requirements
in our bid pipeline or forecasts that would
cause us to exceed the 4% threshold

Graph removed

@ Gearing

Amm maintain an efficient caprtal
structure, with an appropriate level
of gearing

It 15 important to our clients that we are a
low risk, stable partner, particularly where
we are delivering large scale operations
on therr behalf We aim to keep the ratio
of net debt to EBITDA in the range of 20
to 2 5 over the long term and would be
unlikely to reduce interest cover below
seven times

As at 31 December 2014, we had £1,124m
of private placerment bond debt of which
£97m matures in 2015 and the remaimder
gradually matures over the period up to
2021 In addition, we have £300m of bank
debt, of which £200m matures in January
2016 In August 2014, we refinanced our
£425m revolving credit facility with a new
£600m S5+1+1 year revolving credit facility
maturing 1n August 2019 Ths facility was
unutilised at 31 December 2014

Our annualised net debt to EBITDA ratio’ was
21times? (2013 2 0 times?) and interest
cover’ was 14 trmes? (2013 12 times?)

Graph removed

Return on capttal employed {ROCE)
Aim deliver ROCE which 1s well in

excess of our cost of capital

ROCE reflects how productively we deploy
capital and in 2074 1t was incorporated
Into senior managements’ long term
incentive schemes, which are now

25% based upon performance against
ROCE targets

ROCE 15 calculated as underlying net
operating profit after tax’ (NOPAT)
dmvided by average caprtal employed
Capital employed (CE) 1s the totat of
equity shareholders funds, net debt,
pension deficit and cumulative equity
impact from non-underlying itemns such
as armortisation

Group economic profit

tn the chart below, the post-tax weighted
average cost of caprtal (WACC) indicates

the return which could be expectedfrom

the capital invested in the business Itis
calculated by weighting the cost of our debt
and equity financing in bine with the amounts
of debt and equity that we use to finance

our activities We have calculated our WACC
assuming a nsk-free rate of 1 8%, a market
risk premium of 8 3% and a beta of 0 8 times

In 2014, our ROCE was 14 8%?
(2013 15 5%3), which compares to our
estimated post-tax WACC of 7 2%

Economic profit

Aim deliver value for shareholders
through positive and steadily growing
economic profit

Economic profit 1s the value created

in excess of the required return of the
Company’s investors (equity shareholders
and debt holders} and reflects the monetary
difference between our net operating profit
after tax and capital employed multipbed by
WACC Capita has consistently generated
positive economic profit over time

Graph removed

2014 2013 2012 201 2010 2009
Underlying operating profit (Em)! 5762 5173 467 417 386 352
Average capital {£m) 3,980 2,701 2348 1976 1491 1,271
Tax (%) 185 150 205 235 245 268
Post-tax WACC (%) 72 77 70 75 77 79
Capital charge (£m) (229} (208) (164)  (148) (Ms)y  {(100)
Tax (Em) {(107) {98) (96) {98) (85) (94)
Economuc profit {Em) 240 2N 207 171 176 158

1 Excludes non-underlying items detailed in note 5 on page 123

2 On an ongoing basis, 2014 numbers exclude the sale of our Occupational Health business, see note 4 on
page122 2013 numbers have not been restated on this basis

3 2013 numbers exclude the partial sale of our Insurance Distribution and planned SIP business closure




Delivering shareholder value

Over the 10-year penod to 31 December
2014, Capita has delivered £1 5bn (net
of £274m equity raising in April 2012)

to shareholders through dwvidends, share
buybacks and speaial dwidend Capita's
total shareholder return over the same
penod 15 269% compared to 108% ior
the FTSE All-Share Index

After nvesting in the business, to maintain
our growth and sustainability, we use
surplus cash to deliver further shareholder
value in three mam ways

> Distnibution to shareholders through
progressive dividends
a key element n the creatson of
shareholder value 1s a progressive
dividend pelicy

> Funding acquisitions to add value
securing small- to medium-sized
acquisiions Is integral to Capita’s
future growth

> Share buybacks oppertunistic
share buybacks help us to maintain an
efficient capital structure and minimise
our long term cost of capital We did

not complete any share buybacks in
2014, however, sharehotders renewed
the Group’s authority to purchase up to
10% of 1ssued share capital at cur Annual
General Meeting

Taxation

Capita has an open and positive working
relationship with HMRC, a designated
HMRC custorner relationship manager
and 1s committed to prompt disclosure
and transparency in all tax matters with
HMRC Caprta has received & 'low’ nsk
rating from HMRC, recognising our strong
corporate governance, control process,
and attitude to compliance

Due to our cbents' requirements, Capita
has operations in a number of countries
outside of the UK, allowing us to provide
the best possible service to our clients
and therr customers All Capita operations
in overseas tax jurisdictions are trading
operations and pay the appropriate local
taxes for these activities

Performance summary

Capitaplc 49

Capita’s contribution of £80 1m

through UK corporation tax paid in 2014
(2013 £43 5m) s enly part of our total

tax contribution Capita is a significant
contributor to the UK Exchequer, paying
and collecting a wide range of taxes on
behalf of the UK Government Each year,
Capita contributes to The Hundred

Group survey quantifying the total tax
contribution of the FTSE 100 companies
Durning 2014, £205 2m (2013 £184 4m)

of other UK taxes were borne by the
Group including business rates, import
duties, rrecoverable VAT, employers’ NIC,
and environmental taxes in addition,
Capita collected and remitted to the UK
Government £423 8m (2013 £344 8m) of
VAT and £377 0m (2013 £347 3m) of PAYE
and employee NIC

2014 2013 2012 201% 2010 2009
Dividends per share
Intenm dividend (p) 960 870 790 720 560 560
Final dividend {p) 1960 780 1560 1420 1340 120
Total ordinary dividend (p) 2920 2650 2350 2140 2000 1680
Total dwidend (p) 2920 2650 2350 2140 2000 1680
"Didend cover 223x  224x 226x 22Ix 225 231x
Totals
Intenm dividend (£rm) 63 57 51 44 40 34
Final dividend (£m) 130 17 102 87 81 69
Total ordinary dividend (£m) 193 174 153 131 121 103
Share buybacks
% of share capttal authorised to 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%
repurchase
% of share capital repurchased -% ~% % -% 3% -%
Issued share capital at year end {£m) 659 656 652 608 606 617
'No of shares repurchased (m) - - - - 15 -
Average price (p} - - - - 751 -
Total cost {£m) - - - - 16 -
Shareholder returns
Total return to shareholders (£m) 193 174 153 131 237 103
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Strong leadership and robust processes continued

Our wider

corporate responsibility

We are committed to managing the
business in a way which benefits all
Caprta’s stakeholders - our shareholders,
clients, employees, suppliers and the
communities in which we work We take
a long term approach to developing our
proposition and client relationships,
ensuring that we grow in a stable and
sustainable manner This helps us to
contnibute positively to society and
create financial value through

> attracting and retaining a skilled and
motivated workforce

> managing risk and reducing costs across
our business and supply chain

> bulding our competitive advantage

> encouraging innovation and identifying
oppertunities to grow and expand into
new markets

> mamtaining and enhancing our
brand reputation

> creating value for ciients by helping
them deliver their own Corporate
Responsibility (CR) agenda

CR strategy and prionities

We focus on four priorsty areas which
have the greatest econormc 1mpact upon
our business, are of most concern to our
stakeholders and which have the potential
to support our future business growth

CR
priorities

Employees
Engaging and supporting
our people
See page 30

Communrties

Driving positive change
and addressing local
need directly, or through
collaboration with
clients and partners
See page 50

Suppliers

Butlding successful
supphier relationships
and a responsible
supply chain
See page 34

Environment

Running a resource
efficient business and
MINIMISINE OUr IMPacis
See page 51

To reflect the central role that our people
and suppliers play in our business model,
enabling us to secure and mantain

long term client relationships, we have
included details around managmg our
workforce and supply chain on pages 30
to 34 We support this through our wider
approach to corporate responsibility
including our comrmunity programmes
and environmental management which
form a key part of our business model
and dient propositions

We continually seek to drive improvement
and we measure and report annually on
our progress relating to each prionty

This includes a number of non-financial
KPls around the areas with the greatest
impacts, see page 11 for details and we also
monitor a range of detailed performance
metrics, see page 53 for a full summary of
all our CR measures

Creating better tomorrows

Investing in our local communities

and client partnerships We are
commutted to making a positive impact in
the commumities where we are working
with chents to deliver services and
administration We do this through our
daily business operations, supporting
clients in transforming their business
models and enabling them to achieve a
higher level of efficiency and customer
satisfaction See further details on how
we support our clients on page 21

in 2014, we launched a new external
microsite which showcases innovative
ideas and how they are being applied in
practical situations and delivering valuable
results The aim of the site 1s to facilitate
knowledge sharing and expertise between
thought teaders and currert and new
clients to support further innovation

Q) See www Createtomorrow ¢o uk

We also endeavour to go beyond our
contractual obligations and demonstrate
to our clients, customers and employees
that we are a responsible business that
seeks to have a lasting positive impact
Through our community investment
mnitiatives we look to tackle pressing
social and economuc issues on both a
natwnal and local scale and engage in a
wide range of inihiatives at both a Group
and busmess level
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Community initiatives We aim to
support chanties, SMEs and voluntary
organsations working m areas which
align with the ssues present in many of
our key markets In 2014, we focused
on the following areas and we will be
reviewing these in 2015 to ensure that
we continue to align with the Group's
business objectives

> employability support for young
people, ncluding those in care

> nclusion for people with health issues
> resettlement for ex-service personnel
> rehabilitation of ex-offenders

One of the key developments in 2014
was the launch of our new corporate
chanty partnership with The Prince’s
Trust, which is selected by our empioyees
The Trust supports disadvantaged young
people, including those n care, and with
youth unemployment currently standing
at 16 9% in the UK, this s a pressing
social1ssue Through the partnership,

we are able to leverage our expertise

and workforce to support The Trust’s
commitment to skills and training and

we have identified a whole range of

areas where we can add value including
employee volunteering, work experience
days and consultancy Fundraising is also
an important aspect of the partnership
and since July 2014, we have already
raised over £140,000 through a range of
employee engagement activities, matched
funding and sponsorship Qur partnership
with Cancer Research came to anend in
July 2074, raising a total of £319,000 over
18 months

All our community
related activity can
be found online, visit
our website
www capita co uk
fresponsibility

Measuning our commumity impact
To ensure we are achieving our

arns, and having a positive impact in the
community, we endeavour to measure
and report our contnbution, looking not
Just at the mputs and outputs but also the
overall community and business impacts
of our activittes We do this using London
Benchmarking Croup methodology,
taking account of cash, time given and
in-kind donations We estimate that our
total community investrnent was £2 2m
based on approximately 40% of the
business In 2014, we introduced a number
of measures to improve our visibility of
activity occurring across the Group and
we will continue to wark on this in 2075 1
order to improve our data capture

Running a resource efficient business
Climate change and resource scarcity are
two of the biggest 1ssues facing society
and we are committed to playing our part
in tackling these challenges, taking a pro-
active approach to good environmental
management and trying to minimise
both our direct and indirect impacts

We monitor and assess our environmengal
impacts and continue to focus our efforts
on MINEMISING energy use at our sites,
reducing business travel where possible
by encouraging telephone and video
conferencing, managing our resource use
and waste management We also seekto
munimise any risks to our own operations,
including having business continuity
plans in place, for example, to mitigate

if there are extreme weather conditions
which may prevent cur employees
getung to work to deliver for our clients
Our environmental policy sets out our
approach to managing and reducing our
impacts on the environment

Our environmental managernent system

ts based on SO 14007 and some of

our businesses have gamned external
accreditation, where 1t 1s required by therr
marketplace, for example Capita Property
and Infrastructure A number of our clients
also require us to gain accreditation for
their particular operations and in 2014 two
of our main business centres (our customer
management site in Dearne Valley and our
largest Indian site in Mumbai) achieved
both 150 14007 and OHSAS 18001
certifications These accreditations are a
formal recognition that we are meeting

internationally accepted environmental
and occupational health and safety
management standards At the end

of 2014, approximately 20% of our
employees were based at SO 14001
accredited sites, almost double the
previous year {2013 11%)

Carbon footprint In 2014, our
carbon ermssions were 139,672
tonnes COzeq (scopes 1, 2 and 3),
representing a year-on-year Increase
of 27% (2013 110,341 tonnes COzeq)
This was related to a number of factors,
mainly, the growth of the business
through acquisitions and contract wins,
increased travel requirements as a result
of our growing international network of
business centres, increased number of
field-based operations relating to clients
such as the Home Office and Ministry of
Justice, a significant increase in 24/7 call
centre operations to ensure that we can
maintain a flexible service for our clients
and their customers

We measure and report our carbon
emissions annually and in 2010 we set
ourselves a target to reduce our carbon
intensity {scopes 1and 2) by 4 5% a year
This year, our carbon emissions for scopes
1and 2 decreased to 84,103 (2013 87,512)
with our carbon intensity decreasing from
227 1019 2, reflecting the work we are
doing to reduce our footprint This will
continue into 2015 with the introduction
of the Energy Savings Opportunity
Scheme (ESOS) which 1s a mandatory
energy assessment for organisations

that meet quaklfication critena set by

the EU The scheme wall cover energy
used in our buildings and transport and
identify cost-effective energy saving
measures Qur environment team is
revIewIng resources, reparting processes
and data capture to ensure that we meet
these requirements

1 House of Commens, youth unemployment statistcs 2015
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Energy use and business travel

Reducing energy use i our officesisa
key prionty for the Group Since 2006,
we've had a programme in place to
identify opportunities for improvements
and we continue to review performance
across our sites We continue to install
smart metering at sites that come under
the UK Government’s carbon reduction
regulations and purchase renewable
energy across all operations and data
centres managed by Capita

We've introduced green travel plans at a
number of sites and actively encourage
the use of video and teleconferencing to
reduce unnecessary business travel Asa
result, in 2014 we saw a further increase in
teleconferences with 456,707 calls made,
up 20% (2013 379,082) Where travel

1s unavordable, we encourage the use of
public transport and intelligent travel
plannng We've capped company car COz
emusstons at a maximum of 130g/km and
In 2014 achieved an average level of 106g/
km across the fleet We also promote the
UK Government's Cycle to Work scheme
as part of our employee benefits package

Waste management and resource use

We strive to use our resources efficiently
and avoid generating waste, for example,

by reducing our paper usage through the
mcreased use of electrenic document
management systems We have set
ourselves a target of recycling 80% of all
our waste at our 20 largest waste produang
sites by 2015 and we are working with our
faciities provider to collect accurate data on
our waste at these sites In 2014, the average
volurne of waste recycled at these sites was
66% (2013 43%)

We have a number of Group-wide
recycling schemes in place for paper,
consumables such as printer cartridges,
mobile phones and redundant IT
equipment In 2014, we maintained high
levels of recycling, with 19,612 pieces of
IT equipment recycled over the course of
the year We also work with our suppliers
to source more environmentally friendly
products and review the logistics of

how goods are delivered to our offices
Although our water usage across our
sttes 15 not significant, we endeavour to
conserve this resource, for example, where
we have direct control of a site, or when
we are refurbishing one of our offices,

we install low flush torlets, taps and
urinal centrols

CR leaderstup

Our CR programme 1s overseen by

the Group Board The Group Finance
Director has overall respansibility for our
strategy, with each Executive Director
looking after one or more prionity impact
areas, see page 74 for more details
Following Gordon Hurst's retirement from
the Board at the end of February 2015,
Nick Greatorex will assume responsibitity
for our CR approach as Group Finance
Director, from 1 March 2015

The CR Steering Croup, which includes
functional heads from key areas, i3
responsible for implementing the Group's
strategy and also provides guidance to our
business units and communicates progress
to the Board The Steering Group meets
during the year to review and challenge
the Group'’s approach, impact areas and
risks and opportunitias |t 1s supported
by a central CR team who ensure that
our approach 15 communicated across
Capita and we have a number of employee
networks and engagement imitiatives
which help us to embed CR programmes
across the Group The monthly reporting
MOB process also provides a forum
through which any CR opportunities and
challenges can be escalated and addressed
-
In 2014, the main priorities of the Steering
Group were the introduction of a formal
hurnan rights policy, ensuning that we have
the night level of informationrelating to
CR for our clients and bids, and that we are
communicating this effectively given the
size of Group and high level of activity

Policies .
We have a number of Capita-wide policies
to protect our employees, including those
covering equality and diversity, health
and safety, our whistleblowing policy,
‘speak up’, and our code of ethical conduct
Our joint COOs have Board responsibility
for these policies and ensure that they are
adopted across the business

4

2015 priorities

> Improve data capture of
community involvement and
chantable activity frorm across
the Group

> Delver a full calendar of activity
with The Prince’s Trust and increase
employee engagement with our
COMMuUNIty programmes

> Continue to focus on reducing our
energy/carbon emussions

> Continue working with our facilities
provider to achieve our target of
recycling 80% of waste across our
20 most waste-producing sites

> Support further 15O 14001
accreditations across the Group,
onshore, nearshore and offshore

> Review UK and international travel
to ensure alternative commurications

are used where appropriate

View all our ¢corporate
responsibility {CR}
policies online
www capita co uk
Iresponsibility
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2014 2013
People
Employee retention
Manager retention rate 97% 98%
(dwvisional directors and senior management team)
Overall employee retem;)—n—rate - 78% 82%
Health and safety 149 142

(acaident frequency rate per 1,000 employees RIDDOR})

Employee diversity

Male/female split

34,744 male (51%)/
33,162 female (49%)}

32,087 male {51%)/
30,648 femnale (49%)

Male/female sphit for senior management
(divissonal directors and senmior management teams)

73 male (80%)/
18 female (20%)

B4 male (86%)/
14 female (14%)

Male/female split for Board of Directors

5 male {56%)/
4 female (44%)

6 male (67%)/
3 female {33%)

Percentage of employees from ethnmic minority groups’ 23% 22%
Percentage of employees working part-time out of total workforce 16% 18%
Employees by location

Onshore 86% 88 5%
Offshore 10% 90%
Nearshore 4% 25%
Suppliers

Annually audit all strategic suppliers 100% 100%

Engaging with our suppliers

All new suppliers registered
ononline portal to ensure
they meet our standards

All new suppliers registered
on online portal to ensure
they meet our standards

Environment

Total carbon footpring (scopes one, two and three)

139,672 tonnes COzeq

110,341 tonnes COzeq

Carbon intensity for whole Group?

192

287

Conference calls made

456,707

379,082

Undertake environmental site audits twice a year

100% audits compteted

100% audits completed

Community
Total community investment (using London Benchmarking £2 2m £1 8m
Group methodology)

Total corporate donations including support for our charity partner £351k £2597k

and matched funding scheme, other community witiatives and
disaster appeats

1 Based on those employees who disclosed their ethmic origin in our annual survey

2 Scope 1 & 2 {tonnes CO/Em) offices enly
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Dawn Marnott-Sims

The experience and expertise
we have across the Group,
together with implementing
and managing the congestion
charge scheme when it was first
{aunched, means that we are
well equipped to deliver for TfL

Jont Chief Operating Officer

Running London’s Congestion |

Charge and Low Emission Zone

In January 2014, Transport for London (TfL) awarded Capita
the contract to run London’s Congestion Charge and the Low
Emission Zone (LEZ) business operations, including taking
responsibility for the processing of traffic enforcement notices
across the entire TfL road network. The five-year contract is

worth over £145m in revenue.

Capita held the initial contract for the design,
tmplementation and operation of the Congestion
Charge when it was introduced in London in
February 2003, and successfully ran the service
until 2009

Since the original
contract, TfL has
modernised its strategy
and procurement
process and Its aim
with the new combined
Congestion Charge,
LEZ and enforcement
tenderwastofind a
supplier who could
deliver a flexible, scalable
solution promoting
COMMOon Services
across the organisation
- with the potential to
grow as required

The tender was issued in two lots, the first for the
Congestion Charge and LEZ business operation

and the second for enforcement processing It also
included substantial headroom for TfL to potentially
commissicn a much wider set of related services across
the entire business, with an upper value of ¢ £750m
over five years

Redesigning a key piece

of London’s transport

—— infrastructure from the

ground up

Capita bid for both lots, and developed a new

model to transform the services, building on our l
existing expertise and facilities whilst allowing for !
maximum flexibility Swgnificant channel shift and

increased mobile engagement are key elements of

the new system, helping to drive a transformation

In Customer expenence

Most importantly, the schemne has been designed

to allow for expansion and innovation - an open-
ended service design that will ensure Capita can
match TfL's expanding requirements as they emerge
The headroom in the contract will aliow for TfL to
commussion wider services, and so Capita's system
1 betng built with this in mind

Systen implementation and transfer has been runming
smoothly and in September 2014, nine months after
the oniginal contract award, TfL announced that it

had made the decsion to transfer control of the
Congestion Charge and Low Emission Zone to Capita
over a year earlier than the oniginal planned hand-over
date of November 2015

These services are currently being delivered under

the existing model as Capita continues to implement
its new system Until the original handover date in
November 2015, the previous contractors 1BM wall
continue to supply IT infrastructure services to Capita,
supporting these operations
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Contract won
" January 2014

Value

Core business

Runming London's Congestion Charge and the Low Ermission
Zone business operations, as well as having responsibility

I £145m + £30m over five years for the processing of traffic enforcement notices across

the entire Transport for London (TfL) road network

Image removed

Transforrmative approach will
drive customer channel-shift
and mobile engagement

Builds on existing Capita
expertise from a number
of key businesses

Contract allows for the
commissioning of a much
wider set of potential services
across the entirety of TfL
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Strong leadership and robust processes continued

Flexible operating structure

We have consistently mamntamed a
straightforward and efficient divisional
structure that supports Capita's major
sates effort, our large scale customer
management and business process
management contracts and our specialist
businesses and service lines

Supporting growth through our flexible
operating structure

We have consistently maintained a
strarghtforward and efficient divisional
structure that supports Capita’s major
sales effort, our large scale customer
management and business process
rnanagement contracts and our
specialist businesses and service lines
Thes structure supports our business
model of controlled, profitable growth
and provides ready access to the Group's
wider specialist skills and expertise,
economies of scale and centralised
procurement It enables us to balance
investenent in internal innovation,
establish and grow strong leadership and
management from within and deploy
and harness the best of technology,
Innovation and business processes

Each division 15 led by a divisional
executive director, all of whom are
members of the Executive Board along
with the Group’s heads of carporate
development and communications,
strategic business development and
acquisitions The Executive Board
meets monthly to share knowledge,
expenence and to discuss opporturnitias
and challenges which can be

addressed by cross-divisional support
In recognition of the central role Group
business development and reputation
management plays in our growth, four
members of the Group corporate and
business development team have been
appointed to the Executive Board

Company-wide support services, such
as iT, finance, legal and commercial,
busginess assurance, nsk and compliance,
health and safety, environment,

HR, corporate marketing and
communications, procurement and
property and facilities management
continue to report directly to Group
Board Executive Directors to ensure
robust control, consistent standards
and shared benefits across the Group

Divistonal performance in 2014

The majority of our dwisions performed
well In 2014, with strong growth in
Workplace Services and Justice and
Secure Services, supported by new
contracts including Ministry of Justice
electronic monitoring and AXELOS

New management continued to deliver
improvernents in the profitability of the
IT Services and Property & Infrastructure
divisions, helped by the macroeconomic
backdrop These positives were partially
offset by the end of the Disclosure

and Barring contract in March and the
continued impact of the slower ramp
up of the DWP Personal Independence
Payment (PIP) assessrerits

Divisional prionities and focus 1n 2015
In line with the Group’s business
model, our dwistonal prionities are to
focus on creating new and additronal
organic growth opporturities within
the businesses, continuous service and
product mnovation and development
to ensure we are being pro-active In
addressing the needs of cur chents

and responding to market dynamics

To support future orgaric growth

the divisions constantly look for
opporturvties to apply new and emerging
technologies, and to add capability and
scale or enter a new market segment
through selective acquisitions
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2015 developments

As we consistentty grow our skills
and capabilrties in support of our
changing client needs, and as our
business continues to grow strongly,
expanding both its service offering,
market and geographical territory
reach, we will make adjustments to
aur divisional structure to ensure our
operations continue to be managed in
an optimum manner

The range of sectors in which Capita
now has a presence 1s expanding and
will continue to do 50 1In the months
and years ahead Our sales solutrons are
increasingly harnessing new techniques
such as leading-edge data analytics,
behavioural science, digital and social
interactions and innovative products
and services, enabling us to deliver even
greater value to our clients and their
customers As we work to maximise

our market opportunities in 2015, we
will make a number of small structural
changes to align the organisation to our
internal capabilities, further strengthen
our sales structure and make 1t as easy as
possible for clients to engage with us
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- 2014 operating businesses divisional structure

D

( ™\
Group Board 1 Non-Executive Chairman, 3 Non-Executive Directors and 5 Executive Directors
L o
(" ™\
Executive Board. Divisional, Corporate, Business Development and Acquisition Executive Directors
Customer Asset Insurance Professional Property & |[IT Services ||Health & Workplace ||Justice
Management ||Services & Benefits Services Infrastructure Wellbeing Services & Sacure
& Intemational Services Services
Customer Shareholder |{Life and Software DCC Smart Applications, ||Health Specialist Electronic
Management ||Solutions Pensions BPO [} Services Metering Cloud & Advisory Recrutment | {Monitoring
Telefonica (O2)||Corporate & || Specialist Local Health Asset g::a'g;se DWP PIP Managed Products
- ||Private Client || tnsurance Government Management o o 1. ||Services
Eunstix CMR & Life Tascar
Solutions End User
Debt & Corporate Entrust Central Services {MDG) Learning Services
e Fund tnsurance Government || —— II- = | Services
Legal Services Document —_— Tascor PR | (o7 e}
Eef TR TR || Solutions Managed IT —
inda/ Financial Information Infrastructure Solutions Medical HR Services T Professional
Middle East Debt & Services Services/ & Real Estate ||———|[Services —S S &
gt tas Banking Remediation [f Financial B‘e;‘g‘n‘&_""' Technology m creening Tfar::i:tsmn
. lut
Eglind__ Solutions Employee Software Managemert, M Health EEEVEI . and
South Africa Treasury Benefits Central Housing Public Sector O- — tional SEvents Interpreting
‘(_:_an_" Solutions Government Local & Health H;%?S:sa 1ona Evolvi Rail T
ermany _
services | | Government ||swan oath Systems Managed
Consulting Regions ealihcare Recruiting Services,
Updata Analytics TFL&
DIO —— || Partnering
Healthcare Project (RPP) ||Parking
" ||Services
Decisions AXELOS JV
Fire Service
College
AMT-SYBEX
551-EMS
See See See See See See See See See
page 58 page 5% page 60 I page 61 page 62 page 63 page 64 page 65 page 66

e Dvisions overseen by Joint COQO Vic Cysin

GEREERe Dvisions overseen by Joint COC Dawn Marriott-Sims
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Strong leadership and robust processes continued

Customer Management & International

This division contains our customer management business, including Teleforsca (O2),
debt legal services and our offshore contact centres

2014 surnmary

2014 2013
Revenue £6629m  E£5057m
Underlying

£760m  £6259m
operating profit

Underlying

11 5% 12 4%
operating margin

Capex £12 Om £13 8m

Business development highlights

> Maintained strong sales momentum
securing significant long term custormer
management deals in the retail, utilities
and technology and media sectors,
notably with npower, John Lewis
Partnership and Samsung

> Significant developments in two
geographic markets, entered the
German market with the acquisition of
tricontes, expanded our reach in lreland
with the acquisition of outsourcing
provider SouthWestern

Operational developments & challenges
> Strong performance delivered

across existing client operations

and transformation programmes

Capita O2Z partnership 1s performing

well, in ine with our and Telefonica

UK's expectations

> Sustained growth in our international
capability Poland and South Africa have
more than doubled in size n ETE terms
dunng 2014 India’s growth in digital
back-office (webchat/email customer
rnanagement and web operations) has
more than offset efficiencies delivered in
mature insurance back-office processing

> Further strengthened our

debt management capability
Investing in stronger management and
better technology across both Akintka
and our enforcement businesses and
the acquisition of Stirling Park adds
enforcement capability in Scotland

> The acquisition of Optima secured
regulatory approval in March 2014,
debivering specialist legal services to
support growth in debt management,
mortgage BPO and the wider financial
services sector

> The business grew strongly in the year
and therefore there was a slight pressure
on margns as this work was in its initial
implementation phase

> Focused on driving out operational
cost and creating more efficient
operations systems and platforms, across
all our contracts

2015 priorities

Further accelerate sales momentum,
particularly in strategic sectors

utiities, technology, media
and retail
> deepen existing client

relationships, by shifting current

business to longer term deals
with additional and more
valued propositions

> secure new clients in our
target sectors

Further strengthen our customer

management transformation
proposition by acquiring and
partnering for new capability

> trading capability to support

clients’ operations to acquire
new end-customers and retain
existing customers

> digital/technology capability to
strengthen multichannel coverage

> analytics to drive insight to improve

both efficiency and effectiveness of

chent operations

Underpin growth aspirations with

strong delivery

Continue our internal investment in
underlying custorner management

infrastructure, management
and technology
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Asset Services

Asset services combines all our shareholder solutions, fund adrynistration, mortgage
and banking solutions, treasury and specialist financial services to corporate and

private clients

2014 summary

2014 2013
Revenue £262 7m £246 6m
Underlying £636m  £640m
operating profit
Underlying 24 2% 26 0%
operating margin
Capex £20 9m £186em

Business development highlights

> Secured a number of significant
contracts including preferred bidder
with Co-operative Bank for residential
mortgage servicing, a third servicing
contract with NAMA, and new fund
solutions contracts with Prudential and
CF Woodford

> Strong focus on cross divisional
sates increased overatl new revenue
streams including cross sales/referrals
to existing clients

> Acted on 76 new {POs, representing
53% of new 1ssues, including a range of
services for the second largest retail IPO,
SAGA

» Increased our financial services
offering with the acquisitions of
Throgmorton UK and Crown Mortgage
Management, the latter of which
provided our entry point Into residential
mortgage servicing Both acguisitions are
progressing well

Operational developments & challenges
> Created new residential mortgage
servicing proposition and portfolio

transfers, addressing ongoing low actrvity
in new lending and the commercial
mortgage-backed security (CMBS)

new issuance market

> New services launched during
the year included an expansion into
international share plans, a ‘growth
companies’ initiative targeted at
orgarsations that have the potential

to list in the future, where Capita can
provide a range of services, and a custom
‘self build’ iniaative for local authorities
to help unlock real estate development

> Continued our investment 1 client
platforms to support future growth,
including further roll out of an IT
platform in our shareholder solutions
and an upgrade of our local authority
treasury portal and a strategic alliance
with a leading treasury platform provider

> The division invested in developing
the infrastructure to support future
growth and increased its compliance
functions in line with increasing
regulatory requirements

> Mamntained our rating from Frich
and Standard & Poor’s as highest ratad
servicer in Europe

2075 priortties

Continue to assist clients to respond
to the challenges of the heightened
regulatory environment facing

fund managers

Continued emphasis on cross selling
division-wide services to our expanded
client base following growth in 2014

Taking further strnides in the residential
mortgage marketplace, including a
focus on butlding societies

Further development of our overseas
operations and presence to take
advantage of the widening sales
network In feeding opportunities
into European businesses

Fund solutions to expand its
pan-European fund hosting and
professional support services and will
invest into and develop rts Transfer
Agency proposition
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Strong leadership and robust processes continued

Insurance & Benefit Services

Comprises our employee benefits, life & pensions and speciabist and corporate

insurance businesses

2014 summary

2014 2013
Revenue £6404m  £667 Om
Underlying

operating profit £55 5m £60 6m

Underlying

87% 91%
operating margin

Capex £37 6m £28 Bm

Business development highlights

> Strong new business growth i our
employee benefits and remediation
services businesses Employee benefits
secured over 40 new clients

> Presence in public sector pensions
adminustration strengthened with
extension of Teachers’ Pension
Scheme contract

> Ouronline *Orbit’ employee
benefits portal was further developed
with further mtegration and single
sign-on functionality with other
Capita businesses

> Innovative new tracing and
verification service launched to help
fimancial firms and trustees reunite
unclaimed assets and ther owners

> Launch of Defined Contribution
proposition launched and changes 1n
progress to support clients in anticipation
of implementation of “Freedom and
Choices” Pension Budget Reforms

> New clients signed up to our

new underwrting services platform
In Singapore

Operational developments & challenges
> Working with the Pensions Regulator,
we have helped ensure that more

than five mitlion workers have been
autornatically enrolled into a pension

by their employer

> Successfully extended the reach
of our regulatory service offerings to
a number of existing bie & pensions
clients, including specialist training,
operational frameworks, complant
handling, actuarial services, project
services, underwriting and claims

> Completed a number of

major 1T platform mugrations and
transformations, improving service
and cost levels for our clients

> Working coltaboratively with our
clients to provide innovative solutions
that help them address ongoing
regutatory change and pension reforms

wWinner of Pensions Consultancy of
the Year 2014, Pensions Age Awards

> Anumber of life & pensions
contracts continued to step down In
size as planned due to completion of
iritial transformation and reduction
in policy numbers

> We have continued to smoothly
wind down and transfer the SIP
administration business

2015 priortties

Grow and add value to our existing
client partnerships and 1nvest in
technology and innovations to
enhance and improve the customer
and client experience

Extend our presence in the pension and
employee benefits market via ongoing
service developments and consultancy
imnovations, further investment in the
Orbit benefits platform and Harthink
administration system, and maximise
cross-selling opportunities

Deliver propositions into newly
regulated industry sectors and
continue to help our customers
manage the impact of regulatory
and policy change

Focus on and grow our position
in the claims and international
insurance markets

Integrate new medical businesses into
our specialist msurance business and
continue to deliver niche products and
services 1o these industries

Extend the reach of our remediation
services into new markets

Continue our ICT platform and
property consolidation programmes,
with further IT transformation being
delivered for our chents
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Professional Services

This dvision comprises our local government and schools software, local government
services and our strategic partnerships, central government services, document &

information solutions and Entrust

2014 summary

2014 2013
Revenue ES736m  £5565m
Underlying £1323m  £128 5m

operating profit

Underlying

231% 23 1%
operating margin

Capex £82m £83m

Bustness development highlights

> Continue to extend our local
government reach with contract wins
such as Wycombe District Council,
and extensions with Brent and
Cherwell Councils

> Successfully rebid the Learner
Support Programme funds disbursement
contract (now renamed Student Bursary
Support Services) for the Education
Funding Autherity, to commence in May
2015 Proposition inciuded an innovative
technology solution {involving Capita
technology specialists) to drive the
service online to simplify and accelerate
the application process

> Won the contract to provide a value-
added document management service
to Sellafield nuclear decommissioning
authonity, the initial stage of a strategic
move to increase our prasence in the UK
nuclear industry

> Won the competitive bid process

to operate the Green Deal Home
improvement Fund disbursement service
for DECC

> Significant wins in the Scottish further
education market mean we are now

the teading prowider of student record
software in the FE sector in Scotland

Operational developments & challenges
> Continue to Invest and mnovate

to maintamn our market leading

schools, children’s and family software
positions - launched SIMS 8, FMS 8,
social care developments and cloud-
based solutions

> Austenity measures continue to
impact our local authority and college
markets, but we are seeing continued
growth i1 channel shift to digital
solutions and mobile access to our
back office suite

> Entrust continues to perform ahead
of plan, with revenue growth achieved
through contract wins and cost savings

> Designed the new Irish postcode
system, Eircode, and created the 2 2m
individual postcodes required with a view
to the system being launched in 2015
Successfully delivered the encoding part
of the project on time and within budget,
which meant analysing, cleansing and
encoding over 82m records

> Secured the endorsement of
Constructioniine as a delivery
mechantsm for PASS1 and SSIP from nine
matn contractors in the construction
ndustry, helpting 16 drive record new
Consiructionline sales in the year

> Proactively drove further efficiency
impraovements within the Gas Safe
Register through better organisation
and communication

> Delsvery of new HR, Finance

and CRM systems to London

Borough of Barnet within mine

months of service commencement
Relocation of the client’s infrastructure
to 3 new data centre offering
improvement performance and stability
to critical systems

> Opened new state-of-the-art

print facility in Mansfield on time and
below budget Resutted in transfer of
existing local government business from
competitor Technology adoption will
enable the consolidation of our print
facilities duning 2015

2015 pnionties

Key focus on new Mid Ticket sales team
established to ensure improved focus
and win rate on all deals above £10m
and below Big Ticket levels

Delivering Local Government
Partnerships sales growth from
a more integrated service base

Continue to support our existing and
new centrat Government clients m
delivering more for less including use
of technology, process automation,
innovation and flexible delivery

Develop and innovate new models
for delivery which help to meet the
challenges presenting our central
Government client base

Within children's services focus on
retairing custormers and extending our
presence through high quabity products
and support and develop new solutions .
(Modules and services) to meet
emergmg customer requirements, mvest
to mamntamn and enhance our market
positton through the development of
SIMS8, FMS8 and social care

Invest further to broaden the software
services product offering across a range
of our product sets, allowing us to offer
both additional solutions to existing
custorners and also extend our product
offering into new markets

We have made a significant iInvestment ‘
1n the new Mansfield print facility ‘
and are now well positioned to bid

for larger contracts in this market

Focus on securing a position as a

major provider in the document

outsourcing market

Clients are looking to integrate their

inbound and outbound operattons

and considering the benefits of

outsourcing, leading to a significant

growth in the document management !
outsourcing market



. . . Strategic report

Capitaple 62

Strong leadership and robust processes continued

Property & Infrastructure

Property & Infrastructure houses all our property consultancy, design and
infrastructure practices and our local government regional partnerships

2014 summary

2014 2013
Revenue £3288m £277 3m
Underlying £269m  £157m
operating profit
Underlying 8 2% 579
operating margm
Capex £32m £15m

Business development tughlights

> Secured major sales wins, including
a 10-year strategic business partnership
with the Defence infrastructure
Organisation {DIO)

> Entered new growth markets
through the acquisition of Projen,
providing a wide range of design,
engineering and management services
in the pharmaceutical, ol and gas,
manufacturing and bio energy markets

> Launched a new Capita Health
Partners offering — mtegrating the NHS
and wider healthcare expertise of three
leading Capita businesses to design
and deliver Innovative and enabling
services for healthcare providers

and commissioners

> Secured a unique, revolutionary
strategic partnership deal with leading
housing service provider Genesis
Housing Association to provide
all of its professional and strategic
consultancy support

> Appointed by the Mayor of London as
the support team for the Greater London
Authority’s retrofisting programme

to make over 175,000 London homes
across the capital more energy efficient,
saving 93,000 tonnes of CC:

Operational developments & challenges
> After several years of challenging
trading conditions, 2014 has been
a positive year for our Property &
Infrastructure business Many core
markets have returned to some measure
of growth, and organisational changes
implemented during 2013 have brought
stability and a stronger commercial focus
to our business

> Returned to a top five ranking
amongst UK multidisciplinary
consultancies (Top 250 Consultants
File, Bulding, October 2014)

> Capita's Property & Infrastructure
business has become the first company
in the world to be accredited to deliver
the British Safety Council's Five Star
Occupational Health and Safety Audit

> Implemented a sales transformation
programme to optimise the performance
of sales, marketing and account
management operations

> Made senior management
appointments to strengthen our
health operations and corporate
development function

> We now have the structure and
people In place to deliver a new
three-year strategy for growth

2015 priorities

Recruiting and retaining the best
people in an improving market to
deliver on new three-year plan
as the market growth and skills
shortage remain

Posiiorung Capita as a
transformational partner across all
Its sectors with the ability to deliver
leng term value for custormers and
generating increasing revenues

Deliver strong growth in all our core
market sectors and open up newer
markets such as nuclear and utilities

Remain responsive and flexible to

any new priorities and decisions on
current areas of planned infrastructure
investment and strategy that a new
Covernment may introduce
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IT Services

This division comprises our data, applications and enterprnise services, IT managed
services, IT solutions as well as a number of large public sector IT contracts

2014 summary

2014 2013
Revenue £4837m £457 6m
Underlying £380m  £250m
operating profit
Underlying 79% 5 59,
operating margin
Capex £345m £22 Sm

Business development highlights

> Won the Scottish Wide Area
Network (SWAN) contract to deliver
network connectivity and other ICT
services across the entire public sector
in Scotland

> Extended and expanded our strategic
relationship with BAE Systems delivering
critical IT services and projects to the
Submarines Division

> Acquired Updata, the teading prowider
of network managed services primarily
focused on the pubbic sector

> Continued the growth m our
Technotogy Solutions business by
securing new clients acress a wide range
of industry sectors and broadened our
offerings in 1T security, through the
acquisitions of NTS, and, in storage

and analytics, by acquiring Solid State
Solutions {S3)

> Successfully launched a range of
cloud and platform services including
Capita Private Cloud, Capita Productivity
Hub and Connectwity plus to provide
secure UK hosted utibity ICT services

all of which have had successful client
take-up

Operational developmenis & challenges
> Won or extended existing mutti-year
contracts with a large number of clients
in the public and private sector in all ines
of business

> Capita Managed IT Solutions is
providing schools with software to heip
pupils learn computer programming
skills The software, Computer
Programming Environment (CPE) will
give students and teachers access to a
range of programming tools, helping
schools introduce computational
thinking, coding and algornthms into
the curnculum

> Commenced implementation of our
SWAN contract, inctuding connecting
1,500 sites and construction of a core
network and operations centre

> Continued to successfully drive
material improvernent in the quality
of service performance and on-time
project delivery

2015 prionities

Capitalise on the breadth of our
industry leading capabilities and
offerings by driving further organic
growth in an improving market for
ICT services

Relentlessly pursue further
improvements In service excellence

Maintain control and discipline to
contmue to drive operating margins
upwards in line with the improvements
achieved in 2014

Extend our world class platform
offerings built on top of our
cloud services

Maximise our position in network
integration and services achieved
through contract awards in 2014 and
the acquisition of Updata

Continue to lock for acquisitions
and investrment opportunities that
can extend our offerings or enhance
our capabilities
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Strong leadership and robust processes continued

Health & Wellbeing

This dnision 1s made up of all our health businesses serviaing chients across the public
and private sectors A change of structure in 2015 will more closely align our offering
to our custorner base, recognising the diversity of businesses in this division

2014 summary

2014 2013
Revenue £1588m £162 8m
Underlying

operating profit £15 3m £21 8m

Underlying

96% 13 4%
operating margin

Capex £17m £26 8m

Business development highlights
> The Health Advisory business
delivered a highly successful
transformation programme with
our strategic partner Sussex
Commurity Trust

> Continued the roll cut of
Learning4Health, a blended learning
programme for NHS staff across the
South West of England with over 85,000
registered learners accessing 3,500
online learning sessions structured
around care pathways The programme 15
reducing education costs and supporting
the delivery of frontline care

> Energy Medical services retained
contracts with Chevron, and Petrofac

A consolidated contract was agreed with
Wood Group PSN

> Capita Healthcare Analytics, offering
the market unique analytics and nsight,
secured national contracts with Monitor
and the government of Northern ireland

> Healthcare Decisions continued its
internatienal growth by implementing
a major new HealthLink service for the
Province of British Columbia in Canada,
and signing a contract with Medibank to
provide services in Austraia

> Medical Direct Group saw growth in
the health and social research market
and successfully deployed a nurse
screemings service infrastructure in
the United Arab Emirates

Operational developments & challenges

> The overall health market remamed
quiet throughout 2014 but becarmne more
active at the end of the year

> The Personal Independence
Payments plans contract has achieved
its mulestones but initial difficulties in
delivering longer assessments and lower
imtial volumes of assessments has had a
financial impact

> Healthcare Decisions has created a
new patient relationship management
software solution (Salus) built on
Microsoft Dynamics which will be piloted
with a major insurance provider

> Capita Healthcare Analytics The
Cymbio acquisition has been integrated
into the CHKS analytics business and the
products and services offered fit neatly
with both our analytics and our health
advisory businesses Both teams have
built the Cymbio proposttion into their
own ranges and referred business into
their client base

> Medical Direct Group, together with
1ts partner TNS-BMRB, was awarded the
prestigious UCL longitudinal research
study — Whitehall Il Our partnership
with TNS-BMRB was also successful in
winnng the National Survey for Health
and Development 1946 study These two
contracts are a clear demonstration of
how the business has been able to build
on 1ts existing capability and create a
service which has gained recognition
from one of the world’s most prestigious
research arganisattons

> Disposed of our corporate
occupational health business to
Medigold, as i was recognised that this
was no longer a core service for Capita

20175 priorities

Following a refocus around our chents
and recogrusing the diverse services

in this division, the operations will be
re-allocated to other divisions to sit
aiongside complementary businesses
and contracts

Our prionty for major deals in the
health sector in 2015 will be to address
the opportunities within the NHS and
Department of Health

Following the launch of Capita Health
Partners, focus on growing our client
base and further expanding our service
offering for healthcare providers

and commussioners
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Workplace Services

Thus division houses our HR, resourcing and learning businesses, travel and events and
our AXELOS public sector subsidiary partnership

2074 summary

2014 2013
Revenue £695 6m  £566 0m
Underlying £915m  £735m

operating profit

Underlying

0, [}
operating margin 132% 130%

Capex £110m £92m

Business development highlights

> Successful roll out of Contingent
Labour One, a framework to deliver
contractor resources into central
government and Arm’s Length Bodies

> Won multi-year contracts with
Network Rail for both their managed
recruitment (RPO) and business
travel spend

> Enhanced our recruitrment services
offering by acquinng Monarch
Education Recruitment

> Won a pre-employment screening
contract to support john Lewis in our
Security Watchdog team

> Started developing the Wider Public
Sector learning framework from February
2014 To date we have signed up nearly
100 organtsations in local government,
NHS, MoD, emergency services, and
public corporations including Sellafield
and Magnox A diverse range of training
solutions have been procured through
our supplier management team from
electronic warfare and driver tramning
through to major change programmes
and executive coaching

> Selected to deliver a customised
customer expenence transformation
programme for TSB Bank via our Blue
Sky team

Operational developments & challenges
> Avery positive first year for AXELOS,
our public sector subsidiary partnership
with the Cabinet Cffice to promote
and grow Best Managemenit Practice
As well as maintaming exam volume
sales across its core product portfolio,
the business has established a global
partner programme and commenced the
planning for the launch of new products
in 2015

> Continued to drive process change
enhancernents In Army recruiting
through the Recrurting Partnering
Project (RPF)

> Migration of the HR and payroll
services for London Borough of Barnet
to our Belfast Shared Service centre

> Worked with public and private
sector customers to roll out an enhanced
HR/finance BPO offering based on

our new technology platform and
service capability

> Retention and growth of numerous
mult-year managed employment
screemng contracts through

Secunity Watchdog

2015 priorities

Continue the comprehensive business
change programme within RPP to
deliver enhanced ways of working and
to leverage new technology platforms,
while maintaining recruiting volumes
and service quality Further improve
the candidate recruitment experience
across all channets including further |
mobile platforms |

Use our knowledge of recruitment,
learning and HR services to offer
insight to companies to inform their
recruntment and retention strategies

Grow core product (PRINCEZ and ITIL)
exam volumes in AXELOS alongside
launching new products, including
Cyber Resibence Best Practice and
Continuous Professional Development

Refine our HR Solutions offering
through building proprietary
capability in order to sell and
deliver repeatable growth

Delvery of a revised proposiion in
the learring services space through
the focus on the specialist learning,
managed learming (LPO} and emerging
ialent markets

Delver a suite of enhanced travel
technology tools and services to
support the business travel proposition
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Strong leadership and robust processes continued

Justice & Secure Services

This division comprises our businesses servicing the police and emergency services
market, custody and border services, our digital and gamification businesses,
parking services, AMT-SYBEX, Fire Serwvice College and our TfL and Electronic

Monitoring contracts

2014 summary

2014 2013
Revenue £ES658m  £4114m
Underlying £772m  £649m
operating profit
Underlying 136%  158%
operating margin
Capex £219m £152m

Business development highlights

> Completed a number of acquisitions
to enhance our offerings 8& market
dwversification including AMT-SYBEX's
innovative software and associated
services for large organisations in the
utdity and transport sectors, Eclipse
Legal's Case and Practice Solutions,
Liberty Printing's print solutions for
public authorities and private sector
business, PageOne communications’
business process automation solutions
and Retain International’s workforce
planning solutions

> Created ControlWorks, a

next generation command and

control solution for the emergency
services market and won our first
ControlWorks contract with Derbyshsre
Pofice and a key public national
infrastructure erganisation

> Won a contract with the Metropolitan
Police Control Room Futures programime
{a partnership with Lockheed Martin} a
key strategic programime for the UK’s
largest police force

On behalf of the Board

Andy Parker

Gl

Operational developments & chatllenges
> We created an innovative simulation
platform for the Fire Service College
(FSC), the 'BLUEHAWK' solution,
developed by G2G3, allowing emergency
personnel to train in a realistic, yet safe
environment while being exposed to a
range of different crisis situations

> G2G3's digital strengths in terms

of innovation, game science and next
generation web platforms have been
intreduced mio a number of projects

> Successfully completed a major IT
transformation programme in Southwark
Counail providing the foundation for
future service transforrmation

> Seamlessly took over the Electronic
Monitoring contract, delivering the
existing solution & services while in
parallel developing our new solution that
will see Just one consistent service being
deliverad across England & Wales

> In the final stages of completing a
transformation programme for English
Heritage, and the successful launch of
the new Stonehenge visitors centre

> Commenced implementation of
Congestion Charging, Low Ermission
Zone and Traffic Enforcement Notice
Processing schernes on behalf of TfL
and early take-on of services

> The loss of the Disclosure &

Barring Service contract and the imtial
implementation costs of the Electronmic
Maonitoring contract impacted margins
in the year

ordon Hurst

G
Chief Executive ‘ Group Finance Director
v
25 February 2015

2015 prionities

Innovation, digital transformation and
emerging technologies will continue to
be key themes for the dwision in 2015

Seek to develop and acquire new
disruptive technologies that will bring
operational benefits to new and
existing clients

AMT-SYBEX priorities are to support
Ofgem’s gas settlement reform
through abignment with project Nexus,
debvering the next generation of

our award-winning mobile platform
Fieldreach, maximise opportunities
from water competition, deliver
packaged analytics offerings to support
energy ingustry reform and delivering a
smart metering solution integrated to
industry standards

Transport for London Completion

of implementation programme for
Congestion Charging, Low Ermisston
Zone and Traffic Enforcement schemes
and smooth go-live of operations in
June 2015

Complete the new hi tech solution
for Electronic Monitoring that will
momnitor all individuals placed on

a tag, providing key agencies with
valuable up-to-date information to
drive greater comphance amongst
offenders Introduce the latest
hand-held technology to ensure our
field-force can morutor all ndividuals
appropriately 24/7

We will continue to expand our parking
and enforcement proposition INto new
market segments
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Governance

This section of our report introduces our Board members and

contains our Directors’ report, which consists of the Corporate

governance statement, the Audit and Risk Committee report
and the Directors’ remuneration report.

Board members
see page 68

A summary of the biographical details
and responsibilities of the Group Board
of Directors

Audit and Risk Committee report
see page B6

Paul Bowtell, Chairman of the Audit
and Risk Committee, reports on the
Audit and Risk Commuttee's role and
work during the year

Corporate governance statement
see page 70

Martin Bolland, Non-Executive Chairman,
introduces a report on how the Company
apphlies the principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2012, a formal report on
compliance with the Code provisions and
other statutory and regulatory information

Directors' remuneration report
see page 92

Carolyn Fairbairn, Charr of the
Remuneration Committee, reports on
remuneration policy and practice for
Executive Board members
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Board
members

During 2014, the Board was comprised

of mine Directors, made up of the
Chairman, Chief Executive and four

other Executive and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors On 1 January
2015, we appointed Andrew Williams as
an additional independent Non-Executive
Director to extend the skills of the Board

With over 90 years’ combined experience
working for Capita, we continue to believe
that we have a talented and substantial
team in place to support our continued
growth Asthe Group continually grows
and diversifies, we regularly review the
Board composition to ensure 1t meets the
needs of the business

Non-Executive Directors

Image removed

tmage removed

L ]
Martin Bolland

Non-Executive Chairman

Date appointed to Board March 2008
{Chairman from 1 January 2010)

Independent No

Key skills and expenence Chartered
Accountant, BA from Cambridge,

Previously hetd senior operational positions
within Lonrho Group and founding partner
at Atchemy Partners

Other current appomtments Semor Adviser
to Alchemny Partners, Chairman of PD Parks
Holdings Limited (Parkdean Holidays),
Chatrman of MXC Holdings Limited

Committee membershups Nomination (Chair)

S
Gillian Sheldon

Senior Independent Director

Date appointed to Board September 2012
{Appointed Senior Independent Director on

1 January 2013)

Independent Yes

Key skills and experience Substantial
expenience of advising boards across a wide
range of complex situations and transactions,
Worked for seven years at NM Rothschild

& Sons

Other current appointments Senior banker at
Credit Suisse, Trustee of BBC Children in Need

Committee memberships Audit and Risk,
Nomination, Remuneration

Image removed

Image removed

Image removed

Paul Bowtell

Non-Executive Birector

Date appointed to Board June 2010
independent Yes

Key skills and experience Chartered
Accountant, Extensive experience across

the UK retail sector, Sigmificant financial and
commercial knowledge, Previously on the Board
of Tui Travel PLC as Chief Financial Officer and
also on the Board of First Choice Holidays PLC
and SThree PLC Other senior positions held
with British Gas, WHSmith and Forte

Other current appointments Chief Financial
Officer of Gala Coral Group

Committee memberships Audit and Risk
{Charr), Normunation, Remuneration

Martina King

Non-Executive Director {until May 2014)
Date appointed to Board January 2005
Independent Yes

Commuittee memberships Audit and Rusk,
Normuniation, Remuneration (Chair}

Martina retired from the Board following the
AGM in May 2014

L}
Carolyn Farrbawrn

Non-Executrve Director

Date appointed to Board May 2014
Independent Yes

Key skilis and experience Substantial
experience working in and adwising
organisations operating in regulated and non-
regulated environments in both the public and
private sector, In depth knowledge of broadcast
and financial services

Other current appointments Non-Executive
Director at Lloyds Banking Group, Non-
Executive Director at The Vitec Group ple,
Non-Executive Director at the UK Statistics
Authority and the Competition and Markets
Authority (where she 1s also Charr of the
Remuneration Committee), Trustee of Marie
Curie Cancer Care

Committee memberships Nomination,
Remuneration (Char), Audit and Risk

Andrew Willilams
Non-Executive Director

Date appointed to Board January 2015
Independent Yes

Key skills and experience Chartered Engineer,
10 years as Chief Executive of a FTSE 250
company, having previously held a number

of senior management positions within

the organisation

Other current appointments Chief Executive
of Halma pic since 2005

Committee memberships Audit and Risk,
Nomination, Remuneration
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Executive Directors

Image rernoved

Image removed

Image removed

.}
Andy Parker

Chief Executive (from 1 March 2014)
Jotned Capita 2001

Date appointed to Board January 2011

Board responsibilities Managing and developing
Capita’s business to achteve the Company's
strategic objectives

Additional Group responsibilities Group
charitable approach

Previous expenence in Capita Deputy Chief
Executive {June 2013-March 2014}, Jont Chief
Operating Officer (2011-2013) overseeing non-
financial services operations, Dvisional Director
for Capita's ICT, Health and Business Services
Dwision, Senior Divisional Finance Director

./}
Gordon Hurst

Group Finance Director

(Until 28 February 2015)

Jomned Capita 1988

Date appointed to Board February 1995

Board responsibilities Overall contro! and
responsibility for all financial aspects of the
business's strategy, Company Secretary

Additional Group responsibiities Environment,
Health and Safety, Supplier relationships

Previous experience in Capita
Commercial Director

Other external appointments Chair of the
Business Services Association’s Finance and
Taxation Committee

Gordon retired from the Board

on 28 February 2015

. ]
Nick Greatorex

Group Finance Director

{from 1 March 2015)

Joined Capita 2006

Date appointed to Board March 2015

Board respensibilities Overall control and
responstbility for all financial aspects of the
business’s strategy

Addiuonal Group responsibilities Environment,
Health and Safety, Supplier relationships

Previous experience in Capita Executive
Director for Life & Pensions, Insurance

& Benefits Services, Commercial Director on
major bids and contract implementations

Image removed

trage removed

Image removed

RPN
Maggi Bell

Group Business Development Director
Joined Caprta 1999

Date appointed to Board August 2008

Board responsibilities Head of Group sales
and marketing, driving forward business
development across the Group

Addtional Group responsibilities Community,
third sector and SME engagement

Previous experience in Capita

Diwisional Director, Corporate Services and
Business Services Divistons, Management of
Capita's recrutment businesses

Paul Pindar

Chief Executive {until 28 February 2014)
Joined Capita in 1987

Date appointed to Board 1987 He becarme
Cheef Executive in 1999

Paul retired from the Board on

28 February 2014

L
Vic Gysin

Joint Chief Operating Officer (COQ)
Joined Capita 2002

Date appointed to Board January 2011

Board responsibilities Shares jont responsibility
for Capita’s operating divisions

Addmonal Group responsibilities joint
responsibifity for clients and employees,
Group HR

Previpus expenence in Caplia Executive
Durector for Insurance and Investor Services
and Integrated Services Divisions, Successful
implementation and delivery of a number of
key contracts

L/
Dawn Marriott-Sims

Joint Chief Operating Officer (COO)
Joined Capita 2000

Date appointed to Board January 2014

Board responsibHities Shares joint responsibility
for Capita’s operating divistons

Addttional Group responsibilities Joint
responsibility for cients and employees, Group IT
Previous expenence in Capita Executive
Drractor of Workplace Services Division,
Managing Director of Caprita’s Resourcing and
Learning & Development businesses

Other external appointments Non-

Executive Director for the Institute of
Collaborative Working
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Corporate
governance statement

Image removed

Chairman’s report

| am pleased to present this report on

the work of the Capita Board during 2014,
formed of this section (pages 70 to 77) and
the section headed 'Other Statutory and
Regulatory Information’ {pages 78 to 81)

Duning 2014, the outsourcing sector has

G, corne under unprecedented scrutiny

Martin Bolltand
Non-Executive Chairman

| believe i1t 1s the Board’s commitment
to the hughest standard of corporate
governance and how this 1s managed
across the business that has allowed
us to uphold the highest standards of
bustness practice

Of course, governance must work within
the structure of a whole organisation,
without being overly cumbersome |
believe the balance struck across Capita
15 a result of the honest and transparent
cutture in place throughout the business,
from Board through to business unit level

In 2014, we welcomed Dawn Marriott-
Sims as an Executive Director and Carolyn
Fairbairn as a Non-Executive Director
following the retirement of Paul Pindar
and Martina King and in December we
announced Andrew Willams as a further
Non-Executive Director to the Board from
1 January 2015

As we welcome Nick Greatorex to the
Board in March 2015, our effective senior
management succession planning ensures
these values are carried forward into the
future Equally, | would like to recogrise
the significant contnbution Gordon Hurst
has made to ensuning Capita leads its peer
group Through his role as Group Finance
Directer and Company Secretary, he has
played a major role in making sure the
Group operates to the highest professional
standards On behalf of the Board, we wish
ki every success for the future We have
atso deaided that this 1s the nght time in
our devetopment to split the role of Group
Finance Director and Company Secretary
going forward

Results for 2014

2014 was a year of double digit revenue
and profit growth, with sustained high
cash flow, returns, and strong acquisition
actity

Following the smooth transition to the

position of CEQ at the start of the year,

I am delighted that Andy Parker’s strong !
leadership has given the Group another

successful year of growth, secunng new

and renewed major contracts worth a total

of £17bn and completing 17 key strategic

acquisitions

Underlying revenue’ increased by 14%

to £4,372m2 (2013 £3,851m3), including
9% organic and 5% acquisition growth
Underlying operating profit? rose by

11% to £576 3mZ (2013 £516 9m3)

and underlying profit before taxation’
increased by 13% to £535 7m? {2013
£475 0m?} Underlying earnings per share’
grew by 10% to 65 2p? (2013 5% 4p?)

The aggregate value of new and extended
major contracts secured in 2014 was
£17bn, representing a 1in 2 win rate

The bid pipeline has increased to £5 1bn
since the Interim Management Statement
in November and we have secured

£11bn new business since the year-end
We continued to focus upon acquiring
small- to medium-sized businesses in
2014, investing a totat of £310m* on

17 acquisitions, excluding deferred and
contingent considerations

The majority of our divisions performed
well in 2014, with particularly strong
growth in Workplace Services and Justice
& Secure Services, supported by new
contracts and significant improvements

in the profitability of IT Services and
Property & Infrastructure, helped by the
macroeconosmic backdrop These positives
were partially offset by Insurance &
Benefits and Health & Wellbeing, and the ‘
end of the Disclosure and Barning contract
in March 2014

Q) See pages 46 and 56 for more information

1 Excludes non-underlying stemns detailed in note 5 on page 123

2 On an ongoing basis, 2014 numbers exclude the sale of our Occupational Health business, see note 4 on
page 122 2013 numbers have not been restated on this basis

3 2013 numbers exclude the partial sale of owr Insurance Distribution and planned SIP business ctosure

4 As previously announced




Board activities in 2014

The Board meets nine times a year,
operating with an open culture in ine with
the Group's own values and behaviours
We adopt a structured approach when
setting Board and committee meetings,
which are aligned with the financial
calendar of our Company We set an
agenda to cover the wide range of matters
that are brought to our attention, ensuring
each s given appropriate time and focus

Strategy

A specific session to review the Group's
strategy in detall is held each year
Strategy items are also discussed at each
Board meeting The diverse nature of the
business means that we must continue
tc be adaptable to the opportunities and
challenges that face us, our clients and our
stakeholders Risk 1s considered side-by-
side with strategy and 1s included in our
operational reporting

Group Board members reporting

As outlined in our management and
governance structure on page 37,
Executive Directors present a report
and comment on performance of therr
respective areas at each Group Board
meeting

These include the key issues (including
risk and opportunity), operational and
financial performance and bid and
acquisition activity This allows the
Executive Directors to focus on specific
1ssues and atso for the other Directars to
debate and challenge as required

Financial and corporate reporting

The Board considers the Group's statutory
reports and the broader aspects of
corporate reporting at each scheduled
meeting Regular updates are received on
the financial results from Gordon Hurst,
Nick Greatorex and Andy Parker, which
also include the financial outiook for the
Group

Major thds and acquisitions

Magg: Bell, Group Business Development
Director, presents a report at each Board
meeting which covers the current major
bid strategy, constituents of the bid
pipeline {bids over £25m in value where
we are short-listed to four or fewer) and
prospects which are sitting just outside
of the bud pipeline As many of these
potential contracts are of significant size
and duration, these opportunities can
make a consequential impact on the shape
and resource requirements of the Group
as It grows
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The Chief Executive Officer reports on
the acquisttion strategy and current
acquisition activity in addition to his
Chief Executive report

The acquisition programme has assisted
the Group in steadily expanding our
offering and capabilities and therefore has
greatly assisted the orgamic growth in the
years beyond the immediate period of the
acquisition effect

Dwvisional senior management
During 2014, our Executive Board
consisted of nine Divisional Executive
Directors and two Group Business
Development Executive Directors
Following the review of the Group’s
structure in November 2014, three
additional Executive Directors were
appointed to the Executive Board,
effective 1 January 2015, recognising the
importance of our major sales teams
in generating future organic growth for
the business As always, we continue
to keep the structure of our Divisional
semior management under review to
best meet the needs of the Group as 1t
continues to grow

Approximate allocation of agenda time in 2014

Chart rermoved

1 Corporate reporting 5%
2 Bids 15%
3 Acquisitions and disposals 15%
4 Operations 20%
5 Strategy 15%
6 Risk 15%
7 Finance 10%

8 Governance 5%
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Corporate governance statement continued

Board evaluation in 2014

An internal evaluation was undertaken

in October 2014, this was carned out

by a questionnaire requirnng written
responses from all of the Directors To
ensure independence and objectivity, the
questionnaire was conceived, administered
and reviewed by the Company Secretary

Compilation Evaluation

Questions devised by ~ Written questionnare
Charrmanand Senior ~ completed by
Independent Director  all Directors

Devised, administered
and reviewed
confidentially by
Company Secretary to
ensure independence

; Board evaluation process

Risk & Compliance and Internal Audit
On pages 36 to 41n the strategic report

we have described fully the roles of Risk &
Compliance and Internal Audit together with
the risks and internal controls for the Group

{Deputy Company Secretary at the time
of the review) The resultant report was
presented in full

As a result of the formal evaluation
exercise, some enhancements were made
to the Board's review of new contracts and
the approval process for acquisitions

Reporting Review
Report produced Chairman meets
analysing responses each Board member
and drawing individually to discuss
anonymaous performance of
conclusions the Board

Non-Executive Directors
and Senior Independent
Director meet to
discuss performance of
Chairman, with input
from Exeautive Directors

Sent to each Director
for considerauon

Meeting of
Non-Executive
Birectors with
Executive Directors

An external evaluation was undertaken in
2012 by Gemius Methods and, therefore,
an external evaluation will be undertaken
during 2015

2014 Qutcomes 2015 Actions
.2 ]

Overall, very positive  Maintain robust

Govearnance
Recogrution of processes and
r%t‘;:;:iiffrgzss strategic behaviours
B P of the Board

within the Board

Prowide actions taken
to address small
follow up 1tems

Strong dynamics

that exist between
strategic challenge

and strategic focus
amongst Executive and
Non-Executrve Directors

Some minar
enhancements

and amendments to
Board processes

Charrman meets with members of the Board indiwiduatly throughout the
year to receve feedback and discuss current and long term opportunities

Board balance kept under regular review by Chairman and Chief Executive

In order for the Board to ensure that the
strategic direction and growth of the
Group can continue successfutly and with
the appropriate nisk oversight, a number
of meetings are held throughout the

Risk & Compliance and Internal Audit

Capita plc Charman

year These include mdividual meetings
between the Group Risk & Compliance
Director and the Group Internal Audit
Director with the Chairman of the Audit
and Risk Committee, as well as normal

Croup Risk &
Compliance Director

Audst and Risk
Commuittee Chairman

Group Internat
Audit Director

Internal audit
programme & rnisk

and compliance
management
actvities

L
Group Frinance Director

Audit and Risk
Committee

Group Executive
Board Directors

~———& Durect report

—— Independent report

Meet at least monthly

Meet at least quarterly




scheduled meetings Risks are identified
in a number of ways and are priontised
and delegated n accordance with the risk
ratings provided

Both the Group Risk & Compliance
Director and the Group Internal Audit
Director report to the Group Finance
Director and independentty to the Audit
and Risk Commuttee Both report on

the internal audit programme and risk
and compliance management activities
across the Group They have access to all
members of the Board and hold regular
meetings with the Executive Directors and
meet with the Audit and Risk Committee
Chairman and myself at least quarterly

Directors
The Directors of the Company currently in
office are listed on pages 68 and 69

With the announcement that Gordon
Hurst will retire from the Group Board on
28 february 2015, and in line with Capita's
senior management succession plan, Nick
Creatorex will join the Group Board and
succeed Gordon as Group Finance Director
effective from 1 March 2015

All the Board (with the exception of Gordon
Hurst) will stand for re-election (Carolyn
Fairbairn, Andrew Williams and Nick
Creatorex for election) at the forthcoming
ACM All of the Board have received a
formal performance evaluation, as described
above, and each Director continues to

be effective and to demonstrate their
commitment to the role

The foliowing pages in this section consist of
our corporate governance and remuneration
reports | hope that you wilt find these

and the entire annual report and accounts
informative The Board will be happy to
recewve any feedback you may have

Martin Boltand
Non-Executive Chairman
25 February 2015

Compliance with the

Financial Reporting Council’s
UK Corporate Governance Code
Capita plc and its subsidiaries (the Group)
remain committed to mamtaining high
standards of corporate governance

The UK Corporate Governance Code

2012 (the Code) applies to accounting
periods beginring on or after 1 October
2012 A copy of the Code s avaitable

from the Financial Reporting Council’s
website www frc org uk Throughout the
accounting period to which this report
relates, the Company complied with all
relevant provisions set out in Sections A
to £ of the Codes except as detailed below

As noted above, the balance of ndependent
Non-Executives to Executives 1s not

equal In December 2014, we announced
that Andrew Willlams would be joining
the Board as a Non-Executive Director
from 1 january 2015 Although the Board
now has five Non-Executive Directors

and five Executive Directors, we remain
non-compliant with the code

However, In accordance with the Codes
(B 1 Supporting Principles), the Board
needs to be appropriate in size and
experience to manage the complexities it
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faces We believe that the number of our
Board Directors and therr range of skills

are appropriate for the scale and scope

of the business and to ensure effective
Board processes The Board has the broad
range of experience that 1s essential to
ensure effective execution of strategy and
management of nsk, whilst also ensuring
that the balance of skills 1s appropriate for
the committees Qur Executives recognise
all of their responsibilities and do not solely
represent the activities they have within the
Group which adds to open and constructive
debate, as well as demonstrating the overall
strength of the Board

in this context, given the dversity of the
Group's activities, the Board considers it
essential to have the five Executive Directors
on the Group Board rather than the lower
number that many boards have The Board
also believe that the Board should not

be too large in order to ensure effective
discussion and challenge, and considers that
the number of Non-Executive Directors, at
five, provides a well balanced Board overall

This area of non-compliance 15 expected to
remain throughout 2015, but the Board is
confident that the size and make up of the
Board 15 hughly effective and appropriate

Code Area of Position at

provision non-compliance 31 December 2014

B 12 Composttion During the period the Board The balance was five Executive
of the Board had an imbalance of Executive  Directors and three Independent

Drrectors to Independent
Non-Executve Directors

Non-Executive Directors and a
Non-Executive Chairman
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Corporate governance statement continued

Board changes in the year

Frequency of meetings and attendance
During 2014, the Board met nine times,
excluding ad hoc meetings, solely to deal with
procedural matters Attendance of the Board
Directors 1s recorded in the table below

Board meetings

Name Date Position

Dawn Marriott-Sims 1 January 2014 Apponted Joint COQ

Paul Pindar 28 February 2014 Retired as CEQ

Martina King 12 May 2014 Retired as a Non-Executive

e Drector

Carolyn Farrbarrn 13 May 2014 Appainted Non-Executive
Director

Andrew Wilbams 1 January 2015 Appointed Non-Executive
Director

Gordon Hurst 28 February 2015 Retired as Group Finance

Director

Nick Greatorex

1March 2015

Appointed Group Finance
Director

Further information on the changes to the Board 15 set out

Committee report on page 85

Board compesition

inthe Nomination

Scheduled meetings
Martin Bolland
Andy Parker
Gordon Hurst
Maggibel
Vic Gysin

Dawn Marriott-Sims
Gilban Shetdon

Paul Bowtell
Carolyn Fairbarrn®
Paul Pindar*

Martina King™

winlolele|v|v]iclo|w|w|w

Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

January 2014 - Paul Pindar Martin Bolland
28 February 2014 Andy Parker Gillian Sheldon®
Gordon Hurst Paul Bowtell®
Magg: Bell Martina King®
Vic Gysin
Dawn Marriott-Sims .
1 March 2014 - Andy Parker Martin Bolland
12 May 2014 Gordon Hurst Gilbian Sheldon”
Magg Bell Paul Bowtellt”
Vic Cysin Martina King’
Dawn Marriott-Sims
13 May 2014 - Andy Parker Martin Bolland
31 December 2014 Gordon Hurst Gillian Sheldon®
Maggi Bell Paul Bowtell’
Vic Gysin Carolyn Fairbairn”
Dawn Marniott-Sims
1January 2015 - Andy Parker Martin Bolland
28 February 2015 Gordon Hurst Cilian Sheldon®
Maggi Bell Paul Bowtell®
Vic Qysin Carolyn Farrbairn®
Dawn Marriott-Sims Andrew Williams®
TMarch 2015 Andy Parker Martin Bolland
Nick Greatorex Gillan Sheldon’
Maggt Bell Paul Bowtell*
Vic Qysin Carolyn Fairbairn*

Dawn Marnott-S1ms

Andrew Willlams®

*Independent in accordance wath the Code

*Carolyn Farrbairn was not appointed to tha Board
until 13 May 2014 Paul Pindar and Martina King
retired from the Board on 28 February and 12 May
2014 respectively

Due to the nature of the acquisition and bid

strategy, consideration of meeting times

has to include flexibility to hold meetings
outstde of this timetable and meetings of
this nature tend to be held by telephone

Any Director’s absence from Board meetings
was previously agreed with the Chairman of
the Board or the Chief Executive




During 2014, the following formal
Director meetings took place

> The Chairman held one to one review
sessions with each Executive Director and
each Non-Executive Director

> The Non-Executive Directors met
without Executive Directors

> The Non-Executive Directors met with
Just the Chief Executive Officer

> The Non-Executive Directors met
without the Chairman, led by the Sensor
Independent Director

Board leadership

Consistent with previous years, the Board
continues to support the need to segregate
the responsibility for operating the Board
and managing the underlying business
Martin Bolland's rote as Non-Executive
Chairman and the role of Andy Parker as
Chief Executive are separate

Martin Bolland as Non-Executive
Chairman and Gillian Sheldon as Senior
independent Director also held meetings
solely comprising the Non-Executive
Directors during 2014 Both Martin and
Gilhan are also available to meet with
shareholders when requested

Role of the Board

The Companies Act 2006 requires
Directors to act in a way they consider,

in good faith, would be most likely to
promote the success of the Company

for the benefit of shareholders as a whole
In doing so, the Dwectors must have regard
(amongst other matters) to

» the likely consequences of any decision
in the long term

> the interests of the Company's employees

> the need to foster business relatronships
with suppliers, customers and others

> theimpact of the Company’s
operations on the community and
the environment

> the desirability of the Company
maintaining a reputation for hugh
standards of business conduct

the need to act fairly towards all
shareholders of the Company

In addition to their statutory duties,
the Directors must ensure that the
Board focuses effectively on all its
accountabilities

The Board determines the strategic
objectives and policies of the Group to
best support the delivery of long term
value, providing overall strategic direction
within an appropriate framework of
rewards, Incentives and controls The
Board is collectively responsible for the
success of the Company the Executive
Directors are dwectly responsible for
running the business operations and the
Non-Executive Directors are responsible
for bringmg independent judgement
and scrutiny to decisions taken by the
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Board The Non-Executive Directors must
satisfy themselves on the integnity of
finanaiat information and that financial
controls and systems of nisk management
are robust Following presentations by
executive and divisional management
and a disciplined process of review and
challenge by the Board, clear decisions

on policy or strategy are adopted, and
the executive management are fully
empowered to implement those decisions

Board independence

Non-Executive Directors are required to be
independent in character and judgement
All refationships that may materially
interfere with this judgement are disclosed
as required under the conflicts of interest
policy The Board has determined that

all the Non-Executive Directors who
served during the year were independent
and before and upon apporntment as
Chairman, Marun Bolland met the criteria
of independence as outlined in the Code

The Board does not believe that a
Non-Executive’s tenure matenaily
interferes with their ability to act in the
best interests of the Group The Board also
believes that each of the Non-Executives
has retained independence of character
and judgemnent and has not formed
assocrations with management or others
that may compromuse thewr ability to
exercise independent judgement or act
tn the best interests of the Group

The Board Is satisfied that no conflict of
interest exists for any Director This matter
15 a standing agenda item
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Board Directors’ inductions and training
Following appontment to the Board, all
new Directors receive an induction tailored
to therr indvidual requirernents They are
encouraged to meet and be briefed on the
roles of key people across the Group and
have open access to all business areas and
employees to build up an appropriate level
of knowledge of the business that extends
beyond formal papers and presentations
to the Board All Directors have received
an appropriate induction for their roles
within Capita These have included
farmiliansation with

> terms of reference for all commuttees
and matters reserved for the Board

> overviews of the business via
Management Operations Business (MOB)
review reports

> the Group approach to nsk
management

Case study

On the announcement of the
appointments of Dawn Marnott-Sims
and Nick Greatorex to the Board, the
Company Secretary and the Group Risk
& Complance Director held specrfic
training sesstons which included their
responsibilities as a Director of a Listed
Company, and risk and governance areas
A full Induction was not required given
that Bawn and Nick had worked within
Capita for a number of years

Carolyn Fairbairn and Andrew Williams
received training and induction sessions
with the Charrman, Executive Directors,
the Company Secretary, the Group Risk
& Complance Director and the Group
Internal Audit Director

Ongoing traiming and briefings are atso
given to all Directors, Including external
courses as required

Board Director’s induction and training

Matters reserved for the Board

A formal schedule of matters reserved by
the Board has been adopted and these
include, but are not hmited to

> strategy and management including
responsibility for the overall teadership of
the Company and setting the Company’s
values and standards and overview of the
Group's operational management

> structure and capital including changes

relating to the Group’s capital structure
and major changes to the Group's
corporate structure including acquisitions
and disposals and changes to the Group's
managerment and control structure

> financial reporting including the
approval of the hatf-yearly report, intenm
management statements and preliminary
announcement for the final results

Also the approval of the dividend policy,
the setting and approval of treasury
policies and establishing and mantaming
accounting policies

Training from Deputy  Traiming in governance
Company Secretary

and stakeholder

Carolyn Farbairn
Non-Executive
Director

May 2014

relationships

June 2014

Provided with terms
of reference forall

committees

Traming from Group tnternal and externat
Risk & Compliance training plus
Director additional briefings

- ) provided as required

july 2014

Access to Divisional
Executive Board
Directors

Attended Monthly
Operating Board
(MOB) review and
provided with reports

Attended financial
services risk
commitiee

Provided with terms
of reference for
matters reserved for

the Board




> nternal controls, ensuring that the
Group manages nsk effectively and
approving all acquisitions, disposals of
assets and share acquisitions

> contracts, including approval of

all major capital projects and major
investments including the acquisition of
disposat of interest of more than 3% in
the voting shares of any company or the
making of any takeover offer

> ensuring satisfactory communication
with shareholders

> any changes to the structure, size and
composition of the Board

Company Secretary

All Board members have access to
independent advice on any matters relating
1o their responsibilities as Directors and as
members of the various committees of the
Board at the Group's expense

Francesca Todd was appointed as
Company Secretary {previously Deputy
Company Secretary), on 12 Novermnber
2014 She s available to all Directors and
is responsible for ensuring that all Board
procedures are complied with

The Company Secretary has direct access
and responsibility to the Chairs of the
standing committees and open access to
all the Directors The Company Secretary
has been appointed as Secretary to

the Audit and Risk, Remuneration and
Nomination Commuttees to ensure that
there are no conflicts of interest The
Company Secretary meets regularly with
the Chairman, the Chairman of the Audit
and Risk Commuttee and the Chair of the
Remuneration Committee and bnefs them
on areas of governance and commuttee
requirements

Dialogue with shareholders

The Board encourages and seeks to build
a mutual understanding of objectives
between the Group and its shareholders
As part of this process the Executive
Directors make regular presentations and
meet with institutional shareholders to
discuss the Group's business madel and
growth strategy, address any 1ssues of
concern, obtain feedback and consider
corporate governance 1ssues

The Board welcomes the revised UK
Stewardship Code 2012 and the steps it
has made to improve engagement and
purposeful dialogue between campanies
and investors All shareholders are
encouraged to attend the Annual General
Meeting and information for shareholders
s available on the Company’s website -
www capita ¢o uk All the Non-Executive
Directors are available to meet with
shareholders to understand their views
more fully The Charrman is available to
the significant shareholders of the Group

The Corporate Communications

team has effective day-to-day
responsibility for managing shareholder
communications and always acts in
close consultation with the Board A
Disclosure Committee consisting of the
Corporate Commurcations Director, Chief
Executive and Group Finance Director
ensures all appropriate communications
are made to the London Stock Exchange
and shareholders Shareholders can also
access up-to-date information through
the Group’s website at www caprta co uk
A telephone helpline, 0871664 0300,
provides a contact point directly to the
Group's registrars

in 2014, the Corporate Communications
team and the Board mamntaned active,
targeted communications with existing
and potential shareholders and the wider
investment community The team focused
on creating opporturities for Capita’s

new CEO to further build his relationships
with the investrnent community It also
heightened efforts to target long term
underweight shareholders and non-
holders in the UK and North America to
increase appetite in holding the stock This
was in response to concerns that, due to
personnel and structural changes at our
largest shareholder, there was potential
that the institution may need to reduce
therr shareholding This did occur but the
shares were fairly smoothly taken up by
long term investors As aresult, Capita’s
share register contams a rmore balanced set
of long term shareholders with substantial
shareholdings rather than being dominated
by one nstitutional shareholder
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All members of the Board, including

the Non-Executive Directors, receive a
report on any significant discussions with
shareholders and feedback that follows
the annual and half-yearly presentations
to investment analysts and shareholders
All analyst reports concerning Capita are
arculated to the Directors

Directors, including the Chair of the
various committees, are present at

the Annual General Meeting to answer
any questions The Board particularly
encourages communicatton with and the
participation of private investors at the
Annual General Meeting

Remuneration Committee

Details of the Remuneration Committee
and i1ts activities are given in the Directors’
remuneration report on pages 92 {0 108

Internal control

This process 1s regularly reviewed by the
Board The Group's key internal control
procedures are fully documented within
the strategic report on pages 2 to 66

Strategic report

The Company 1s required to prepare a
fair review of the business of the Group
during the financial year ended 31
December 2014 and of the position of
the Group at the end of the financial
year and a description of the principal
nsks and uncertainties facing the Group
(known as a 'strategic report’} The
purpose of the strategic report 1s to enable
shareholders to assess how the Directors
have performed their duty under Section
172 of the Companies Act 2006 (duty to
promote the success of the Company) The
information that futfils the requirements
of the strategic report can be found m
pages 2 to 66 Details of the Group’s
business goal, strategy and model are

on pages 2 and 3 The mformauion that
fulfils the requirements of the corporate
governance report can be found in pages
70to 77
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Other statutory and
regulatory information
Corporate governance report

The corporate governance statement

as required by Rule 7 2 1 of the Financial
Conduct Authority's Disclosure and
Transparency Rules 1s set out on pages 67
to 108

Election to apply FRS101 - Reduced
Disclosure Framework

The parent company continues to

apply UK GAAP in the preparation of its
individual financial statements and these
are contained on pages 167 to 174 In
2015, the parent company will be electing
to apply FR5101 — Reduced Disclosure
Framework in response to the change in
financial reporting standards in the United
Kingdom and Republic of Irefand FRS101
applies IFRS as adopted by the European
Union with certain disclosure exemptions

Management report

For the purposes of Rule 41 5R(2) and Rule
41 8 of the Finanaial Conduct Authonty's
Disclosure and Transparency Rules,

this Directors’ report and the strategic
report on pages 2 to 66 comprise the
management report

Events after the balance sheet date
Subsequent to the balance sheet date,
the Group 1s in the process of acquiring
Avocs, a leading prowvider of customer
contact management services in
Germany, Switzerland and Austnia, for
a consideration of £157m on a cash/
debt free basis On 28 fanuary 2015,
the Group completed the acquisiticn
of the Constructionline business, which
specialises In procurement and supply
chain management services, for a
consideration of £35m on a cash/debt
free basis

Appointment, re-appointment and
removal of Directors

Directors are appointed and may be
removed In accordance with the Articles
of Association of the Company and the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

All Drrectors are subject to election
at the first Annual General Meeting
after ther apportment and to re-
election at intervals of no more than
three years in accordance with the

Code and the Company's Articles of

Assoclation However, all Directors
(apart from Gordon Hurst) will retire
and will offer themselves for re-election
{Carolyn Fairbairn, Andrew Williams
and Nick Creatorex for election) at the
Annual General Meeting in May 2015,
in accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

No person, other than a Director retiring
at the meeting, shall be appointed or
re-appointed a Directer of the Company
at any general meeting unless he/she is
recommended by the Directors

No person, other than a Director retiring
at a general meeting as set out above,
shall be apponted or re-appointed unless
between seven and 35 days’ notice,
executed by a member qualified to vote
on the appomtment or re-appointment,
has been given to the Company of the
intention to propose that person for
appointment or re-appointment, together
with notice executed by that person of
histher willingness to be appointed or
re-appointed

Group activities

Capitais the leading UK provider of
business process management solutions
and integrated professional support
services to organisations across the public
and private sectors The Group's (11)
¢hosen markets are in the public sector
- central government, local goverament,
education, health, justice and emergency
services and defence, and in the private
sector - iife & pensions, Insurance,
finanoial services, retail, utilities and
telecomns and other private sector

On behalf of its clents, Capita aims to
improve service quality, reduce costs

of service delivery and enable clients

to transform the way that they deliver
services to their custorners The services
that Capita provides are essential to the
smooth running and success of its cients’
operations Capita designs, successfully
implements and manages tallored service
solutions, ranging across administration,
information technology, financial,

human resources, property and customer
service functions
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Capita maintains leading posiitons in

the majonity of its markets due to its
scale and abibity to draw on this wide
base of professional services, detailed
market knowledge and extensive business
process transformation and change
management skills

A review of the development of the Group
and 1ts business activities dunng the year
ts contained in the strategic report on
pages 2 to 66 Our divisional operations
and financial performance are detailed on
pages 56 to 66

Profits and dividends

The Group’s reported profit before
taxation amounted to £292 4m (2013
£215 Om) The Directors recommend a
final dividend of 19 6p share (2013 17 8p
per share) to be paid on 28 May 2015 to
ordinary shareholders on the Register on
17 April 2015 This gives a total dividend
for the year of 29 2p per share (2013

26 Sp per share)

The employee benefit trust has waved its
right to receive a dividend on the shares
baing held within the Trust

Conflicts policy

Under the Companies Act 2006, Directors
are under an obligation to avoid situations
n which therr interests can or do conflict,
or may possibly conflict, with those of

the Company tn response to the conflicts
of nterest provisions, a comprehensive
project was undertaken in 2008 to identify
and disclose any conflicts of interest

that have arisen or may arise across
Capita Procedures were implemented

for evaluating and managing conflicts that
have been identified in a way that ensures
that decisions are not compromised by

a conflicted Director In addition, the
Company's Articles of Association give
the Board the power to authorise matters
that give rise to actual or potential
conflicts The Board reports annually on
the Company's procedures for ensuring
that the Board's powers of authorisation
of conflicts are operated effectively and
that the procedures have been followed

A policy for ongoing identification and
disclosure of conflicts 15 in place and 15
kept under regular review




The Board has authonised the conflict of
Gordon Hurst being a trustee of both the
Capita Pension and Life Assurance Scheme
and the Caprta Group Marey Purchase
Scheme, and gave spealfic guidance on this
conflict going forward Gordon Hurst did
not participate in the discussion or vote

on the guidance given No other conflicts
of interest declared were material to the
Board All conflicts of interest are reviewed
on an annual basis by the Board and are
revisited as part of the year-end process

by the Directors None of the Directors

of the Company had a material interest
inany contract with the Company or its
subsidary undertakings, other than therr
contracts of employment

Directors’ interests

Details of Directors” interests in the share
capital of the Company are listed on
page 105

Major shareholders
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Share capitat

At 18 February 2015, 670,090,483
ordinary shares of 21/15p each have been
1ssued and are fully paid up and are quoted
on the London Stock Exchange 8,146,585
shares are held in treasury and the total
voting nghts equated to 661,943,898
During the year ended 31 December
2014, options were exercised pursuant

to the Company’s share option schemes,
resulting in the allotment of 21522 new
ordinary shares 3,050 shares have been
atlotted under these schemes since the
end of the financial year to the date of
this report 2,215,832 of the issued share
capital I1s held within an employee benefit
trust for the use of satisfying employee
share options

The share price at 31 December 2014 was
1,081p The highest share price in the year
was 1,235p and the lowest was 983 5p

At 31 December 2014, the Company had received notifications that the following were
mterested in accordance with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTR)

Sharegt-:ger

Number M‘}Z of voting Number of Number of
of shares nights as at shares direct  sharesindirect
31 Decernber
2014
Marathon Asset 22,616,929 342 - 22,616,929
Management LLP
Wocodford Investment 34,308,895 518 34,308,895 -
Management LLP N
Invesco Asset 68,629,267 10 37 - 68,629,267
Managerment
Veritas Asset 48,806,441 737 48,806,441 -

Management LLP

On 18 February 2015, the Company had received notifications that the following were

interested in accordance with the DTRs

Shareholder Number % of voting Number of Number of

of shares rnghts as at shares direct  shares indirect
18 February 2014

Marathon Asset 22,933,805 346 - 22,933,805

Management LLP

Woodford Investment 35,060,250 530 35,060,250 -

Management LLP

Invesco Asset 68,877,348 10 41 68,877,348

Managernent

Veritas Asset 48,291,643 730 48,291,643 -

Management LLP

Legal & General 19,920,066 301 16,993,998 2,926,068

Investment Management

BlackRock, inc* 37,402,567 565 - 36,903,280

"This figure includes a contract for difference (CFD) for 459,277

The Company renewed its authonty to
repurchase up to 10% of its own issued
share capital at the Annual General
Meeting in May 2014 Durning the year,
the Company did not purchase any shares
(2013 nil)

Going concern

The Group's bustness activities, together
with the factors likely to affect its future
development, performance and position
are set out in the strategic report on pages
2 to 66 The financial position of the
Group, its cash flows, hquidity position
and borrowing facilities are described

on pages 46 to 45 In addition, note 26
to the financial statements on page 143
includes the Group's objectives, policies
and processes for managing its caprtal,
its financial nsk management objectives,
details of its financial nstruments and
hedging activities, and sts exposures to
credit nsk and hquidity risk

The Group has cansiderable financial
resources and available funding options
together with long term contracts with
a wide range of public and private sector
clients and suppliers As a consequence,
the Directors believe that the Group 1s
well placed to manage its business risk
successfully

After making enquinies, and in accordance
with the FRC's Going Concern and

Liquidity Risk Guidance for Directors of

UK Comparies 2009, the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources

to contnue i operational existence for

the foreseeable future Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the annual report and accounts

Disabled persons

it 1s the Group's policy to give full
consideration to surtable applications for
employment of disabled persons and to
ensure that any reasonable adjustments
are made to erither workplace or job
content to accommodate a person’s
disabilities Disabled employees are eligible
to participate in all career development
opportunities available to employees and
will be supported to do so Opportunities
also exist for employees of the Group

who become disabled to continue in

their employment with any reascnable
adjustments being made or to be retrained
for other positions in the Group
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Employee involvement

Capita ts commutted to involving all
employees in the performance and
development of the Group Its approach
to employee development offers
continual challenges in the job, learning
opportunities and personal development
The Group supports employees through

a comprehensive range of key business
and management skills and personal
developrent programmes through the
Capita Academy and Capita Manager
Academy At the same time our businesses
provide business-specific traning for

all employees relevant to ther role

In addition, the Group supports the
achievement of professional qualifications
including a range of Naticnal Viocational
Qualifications

The Group encourages all of its employees
to participate fully in the business through
open dialogue Employees receive news

of the Group through frequent email
notices, internal notice board statements,
the Group employee intranet, Capita
Connections, and regular email updates on
business performance from both Divisional
and Group Drrectors Capita Connections
enables employees to manage ther work
more efficiently and to share infermation
within and between business units and
employees are encouraged to contribute
news, views and feedback The Group
maintains a strong communications
network and employees are encouraged,
through its open door policy, to discuss
with management matters of interest to
the employee and subjects affecting day-
to-day operations of the Group

Caprta has an establtshed employee share
plan designed to promote ermployee
share ownership and to give employees
the opportunity to participate in the
future success of the Group In keeping
with its belief that employees are the
Group’s most valuable asset, the Group
operates employee awards schemes

both at Group and divisionat level These
celebrate the core values that embody the
organsation and reward employees for
service excellence, teamwork, leadership,
cost saving and efficiency and chanitable
support and community engagement

Political donations

The Group did not make any political
donaticn or incur any political expenditure
during the year (2013 £nil)

Green house gas emissions

Details of the Group’s greenhouse gas
ermissions are set out on page 51 of the
strategic report

Financial instruments

The Group’s finanacial instruments
primarily compnise bonds, bank loans,
finance leases and overdrafts The principal
purpose of these 1s to raise funds for the
Group's operations In addition, various
other financial instruments such as trade
creditors and trade debtors arise directly
from its operations From time to time,
the Group also enters mto dervative
transactions, primarily interest rate swaps,
currency swaps and forward exchange
contracts, the purpose of which 15 to
manage interest nsk and currency nsk,
ansing from the Group's operations and
its sources of finance

The man financial nsks, to which the
Group has exposure, are interest rate
risk, hquidity nsk, credit nisk and foreign
currency risk

The Group borrows in selected currenctes
at fixed and floating rates of interest and
makes use of nterest rate swaps and
currency swaps to generate the desired
interest profile and to manage its exposure
to interest rate fluctuations

In respect of lquidity risk, the Group aims
to mantain a balance between continuity
of funding and flextbility through the use
of multiple sources of funding including
bonds, bank lbans, loan notes, finance
leases and overdrafts, over a broad spread
of matunities

In respect of credit nisk, the CGroup trades
only with recognised, creditworthy third
parttes It 1s the Group’s policy that

all chients who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification
procedures In addivion, recetvable
balances are moritored on an ongoing
basis with the result that the Group's
exposure to bad debt is not significant

With respect to credit risk ansing from
the other financial assets of the Group,
such as cash, financial iInvestments and
derrvative instruments, the Group's
exposure to credit nisk anses from default
of the counterparty The Group manages
its operations to avold any excessive
concentrabion of counterparty nisk and
the Group takes all reasonable steps to
seek assurance from the counterparties to
ensure that they can fulfil their obligations

The Group 1s not generally exposed to
significant foreign currency risk, except
in respect of i1ts overseas operations in
India and South Africa, which generates
exposure to movements In the Indian
Rupee and South African Rand exchange
rates The Group seeks to mitigate

the effect of this exposure by entering
forward currency instruments, including
non-deliverable forward contracts, to
fix the sterling cost of highly probable
forecast transactions denominated i
indian Rupees and South African Rand
Further details of the Group's financial
instrurments can be found in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements on
pages 143 to 150

Qualifying third party indemnity
provisions for the benefit of Directors
Under the Companies Act 20086,
companies are under an obligation to
disclose any indemnities which are in
force infavour of their directors The
current Articles of Association of the
Company contains a provision that
enables the Company to indemnify the
Directors of the Company In respect

of certain liabilities and costs that they
might incur in the execution of therr
duties as Directors Such provisions have
been in force during the year and are in
force at the date this report 1s approved
Copies of the relevant extract from the
Articles of Association are available for
inspection at the registered office of the
Company during normal business hours
on any weekday and will be available at
the venue of the 2015 Annual General
Meetmg from 15 minutes before the
meeting untif it ends

During 2014, 1t was agreed to give all
Directors of the Company deeds of
indemnity These will be avaitable for
inspection at the Annual General Mesting
with the service contracts




Powers of Directors

The business of the Company shall be
managed by the Directors who are subject
to the provisions of the Comparies Act
20086, the Articles of Association of the
Company and to any directions given by
special resolution, including the Company's
power to repurchase its own shares

The Company’s Artictes of Association may
only be amended by a special resolution of
the Company’s shareholders

Change of control

All of the Company’s share schemes
contain provisions in retation 10 a change
of control Outstanding options and
awards would normally vest and become
exercisable on a change of control, subject
to the satisfaction of any performance
conditions at that time

Capita has a number of borrowing facilities
provided by vanious banks and cther
financial institutions Capita’s bank debt
contains a change of control provision
under which the banks may require
imrmediate repayment in full on change
of control The bonds issued by Capita
contain a change of control provision
which requires the Group to offer to
prepay the bonds in full if a change of
control event occurs and Capita does not
obtain an investment grade credit rating

During 2014, Deads of Indemnity were put
in place for all Directors of Capita plcand
have been put in place for Nick Greatorex
and Andrew Williams

There are no other significant contracts
in place that would take effect, alter or
terminate on a change of control of the
Company

Rights and restrictions

attaching to shares

Under the Company’s Articles of
Association, holders of ordinary shares
are entitled to participate in the receipt
of dividends pro rata to their holding The
Board may propose and pay an intenm
dividend and recommend a final dnadend,
in respect of any accounting period out

of the profits available for distribution
under English law A final dvidend may be
declared by the shareholders in the general
meeting by ordinary resolution, but no
dividend may be declared in excess of the
amount recommended by the Board

At any general meeting a resolution put
to vote at the meeting shall be decided
onapoll On a poll, every member who

15 present in person or by proxy shall have
one vote for every share of which they are
the holder

No person helds secuntses in the Company
carrying special rights with regard to
control of the Cornpany The Company

15 not aware of any agreements between
holders of secunities that may result in
restrictions on the transfer of securities

or on voting rights

Restrictions on transfer of shares

The Company’s Articles of Assoccation
allow Directors to, in their absolute
discretion, refuse to register the transfer
of a share in certificated form unless the
instrurment of transfer 1s lodged, duty
stamped, at the registered office of the
Company, or at such other place as the
Directors may appoint and {except in the
case of a transfer by a recognised person
where a certificate has not been 1ssued
inrespect of the share) 1s accompanied
by the certificate for the share to which
it relates and such other evidence as the
Directors may reasonably require to show
the right of the transferor to make the
transfer They may also refuse to register
any such transfer where 1t 1s in favour of
more than four transferees or in respect
of more than one class of shares

The Directors may refuse to register

a transfer of a share in uncertificated

form in any case where the Company 1s
entitled to refuse (or 1s exempted from
the requirement) under the Uncertificated
Securities Regulations to register the
transfer

Annual General Meeting

The 2015 Annual General Meeting

(AGM) of the Company will be held

at Deutsche Bank, Winchester House,

1 Great Winchester Street, London ECZN
2DB, on 12 May 2015 At the AGM a
number of resolutions will be proposed
The resolutions are set out i the Notice
of Mesting, which 1s sent to shareholders
with the 2014 annual report and accounts
and includes notes explaining the business
to be transacted and 15 also available

on the Company's website at

www capita couk
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In May 2014, shareholders also granted
authonty for the Company to 1ssue up
to 66,059,796 ordinary shares which
will expire at the conclusion of the
2015 AGM 215,122 shares were 1ssued
duning 2014 A resolution to renew this
authonty will be put to shareholders at
the 2015 Annual General Meeting No
shares were purchased duning 2014 A
resolution to renew this authority will be
put to shareholders at the 2015 Annual
General Meeting

At the AGM in May 2015, it will be
proposed that new articles of assocration
be adopted by shareholders Full details of
the changes are included within the notice
of meeting

The Directors consider that each of the
resolutions are in the best interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole
and recommend that shareholders vote in
favour of all of the resclutions
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Statement of Directors’
responsibilities in respect

of the annual report and the
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the annual report and the Group and
parent cornpany financial statements

in accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Cormpany law requires the Directors

to prepare Group and parent company
financial statements for each financial
year Under that law they are required to
prepare the Group financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted

by the EU and applicable law and have
elected to prepare the parent company
financial statements in accordance with
UK Accounting Standards and applicable
law {tJK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice)

Election to apply FRS101 - Reduced
Disclosure Framework

The parent company continues to

apply UK GAAP in the preparation of its
individual financial statements and these
are contained on pages 167 to 174 in
2015, the parent company will be electing
to apply FRS101 — Reduced Disclosure
Framework In response to the change in
financial reporting standards in the UK and
Republic of Ireland FRS101 applies IFRS
as adopted by the European Union with
certain disclosure exemptions

Under company law the Directors must
not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and parent company and
of their profit or loss for that pernod

in preparing each of the Group and
parent company financial statements,
the Directors are required to

> select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently

> make jJudgements and estimates that
are reasonabte and prudent

> for the Group financial staterments,

state whether they have been prepared
n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the EU

> for the parent company financial
statements, state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the parent
company financial statements

> prepare the financial statements
on the going concern basts unless it 1s
mapproprate to presume that the Group
and the parent company will continue

in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the parent
company’s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time

the financial position of the parent
company and enable them to ensure that
its financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities

Under applicable taw and regutations,
the Directors are also responsible for
prepanng a strategic report, Directors'
report, Directors’ remuneration report
and corporate governance statement
that comples wath that law and those
regulations

The Directors are responsibie for the
mamntenance and integrity of the corporate
and financiat information included on

the Company's website Legislation in

the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

Details of the principal nsk categories can
be found on page 42

Approval of the annual accounts
Directors’ responsibility staterment

We, the Directors of the Company,
confirm that to the best of our knowledge

> the financial statements prepared

in accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit or toss of the Company
and the undertakings included in the
consolidation as a whole

> the Directars’ report, including content
by reference, includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the
business and the position of the [ssuer
and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal nisks
and uncertamties that they face

Directors’ statement

on the annual report

The Directors consider the annual report
taken as whole, to be fair, balanced and
understandable and that it provides the
information necessary for the shareholders
to assess the Company's performance,
business model and strategy

On behalf of the Board

Francesca Todd %OO

Company Secretary
25 February 2015

Capita plc
Registered in England and Wales
No 2081330




Committees

Commuttees’ terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Nomination, Remuneration and Audit and Risk
Committees were reviewed during the year The terms of reference are summarised in
the table below and, along with the matters reserved for the Board, are displayed in full
in the investor centre at www capita co uk/investors

Terms of reference  Bnef descniption of responsibilities

Nomination Reviews composttion of the Board Recornmends appointment of

Committee new Directors Considers succession plans for Chawman and Executive
positions Monrtors corporate governance issues The Group diversity
staternent I$ reviewed and recommended by this committee

Audit and Risk Reviews accounting policies and the contents of financial reports

Committee Monirtors the internal control environment Considers the adequacy
and scope of the external and internal audit programme Oversees
the relationship with our external Auditor Monitors risk profile and
obtains assurance that principal risks have been properly identified
and appropriately managed

Remuneration Sets the policy for Executive Directors’ and senior executives'

Committee remuneration Approves individual remuneration awards Agrees
changes to senior executive Incentive plans Approves the policy
on remuneration for FCA regulated firms and also reviews and
approves the Remuneratton Policy Staterment in respect of the FCA
Remuneration Code

Membership of the committees
Membership of the Company’s standing comimittees at the end of the year 1s shown below

Martin Bolland Gilhan Sheldon  Carolyn Fairbairn Paul Bowtell
Nomination (C)x X x X
Audit and Risk x x (C)x
Remuneration X {Q)x X

{C) Char

Andrew Williams was appointed as a member to the Nomination, Audit and Risk and
Remuneration Committees at appomntment on 1 January 2015

Frequency of committee meetings and attendance

During 2014, the Nomination Committee met four times, the Remuneration Committee
met five times and the Audit and Risk Commuttee met nine times Attendance of the
Board Directors at committea meetings is recorded in the table below

Nomination Remuneration Audit and Risk

Committee meetings Comwnrttee meetings Committee meetings

Scheduled meetimgs 4 5 9
Martin Bolland 4 n/a nia
Githan Sheldon 4 5 9
Paul Bowtell 4 5 9
Carolyn Farbairn” 1 3 6
Martina King* 3 2 3

~Caralyn Fairbairn was not appointed to the Board until 13 May 2014 Paul Pindar and Martina King retired
from the Board on 28 February and 12 May 2014 respectively

Due to the nature of the acquisition and bid strategy, consideration of meeting times
has to include flexibility to hold meetings outside of this timetable and meetings of this
nature tend to be held by telephone

Any Director's absence from meetings of the Audit and Risk, Remuneration or
Nomination Committees was previously agreed with the Chairman of the Board,
the Chief Executive or the Chair of the relevant commuttee
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Committees continued

Group Financial Services

Risk Committee

The Group Financial Services Risk
Commuttee was established at the
beginning of 2012 and meets at least
quarterly to assess the risks across Capita's
financial services businesses The Forum
15 chared by Tim Brocke, an independent
member of the Commuttee Members
include Martin Bolland, Vic Gysin and
Gordon Hurst and the Group Risk &
Compliance Director Other key divisional
staff are invited to attend and report to
this forum All Non-Executive Directors
have open invitations to attend any of
these meetings

The terms of reference for this
forum include

> reviewing and commenting upon
Group control functron oversight plans and
monitoring their progress

> reviewing material findings ansing from
oversight activities and i1ssues 1dentified
by management

> tracking key regulatory changes
impacting on the Group's regulated firms

> tracking key business developments,
inctuding bids, acquisitions and
offshoring developments

> recewving updates on regulatory capital
1ssues (e g ICAAP)

> reviewing and adopting

policies applicable to the financial
services businesses

> 1dentifying items for the attention of
the Board or Audit Committee

The scope of the Committee includes
the Financial Conduct Authornity ('FCA")
in the UK and the equivalent financial
services regulator in other junsdictions
where the Group operates regulated
financial services firms

The Group Financial Services Risk
Committee met four times in 2014 and
attendance was as follows

Name of member Number of

meetings attended
Tim Brooke 4
Martin Bolland 3
GordonHurst e B
Vic Gysin 4
Chris Terry 4

In November 2014, the Group Financial
Services Risk Committee undertook

an evaluation In line with the Board
Evaluation this was broadly positive

Few actions were identified, but it was
agreed that a review of some reporting
papers would be undertaken in 2015 The
committee membership would also be
reviewed in 2015

Non-Financial Services

Risk Committee

Non Financial Services Risk Committee
was established at the end of 2013 It
meets bi-annually to assess the risks
outside of financial services In 2014,

1t was chaired by Gordon Hurst and
membership includes

Dawn Marriott-Sims, Vic Gysin, and the
Group Risk and Compliance Director The
Group Internal Audit Director also attends
with the Head of Risk All Non-Executives
have an open invitation to attend these
meetings
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In overseeing Capita's risk managernent
practices and ensuring risks are bmited
by management, appropriate use of
controls, the Executive Risk Cornmuittee
holds a key position in the governance
of Capita’s group risk profile Its pnmary
functions are to

> oversee Capita’s nisk identification,
monitoring and reporting practices

and take all steps to ensure that senior
divisional management has in place
procedures and mechanisms to identify
and control alt fundamental strategc,
operational, financial & reporting and
compliance risks

> provide the forum to monttor, challenge
and ensure effective mitigation 1s in place
for Capita’s risk management environment

> promote greater awareness of
risk management at all levels within
the organisation

> establish and preserve oversight
for risk issues that affect Capita or its
customer base

> provide strategic nsk guidance

The Non-Financral Services Risk
Commuttee met twice In 2074
and attendance was as follows

Name of member Number of

meetings attended
Gordon Hurst 2
Vie Gysin L]
Dawn Marniott-Sims 2
Chris Terry 1




Nomination

Committee report

Image removed

. ]
Martin Bolland
Char, Nomination Committee

{am pleased to present the report on the
activities of the Normination Committee
for the year to 31 December 2014 | am
delighted that Capita’s senior management
succession planning continues to provide
continuity for serior appomtments within
the Group | have been impressed how
both Andy and Dawn have embraced therr
new roles and provided clear leadership
across the business Set out below 1s a
summary of the work carried out during
the year

Committee activities during 2014

Members
> Martin Bolland (Chair)

> Gillian Sheldon

> Paul Bowtell

> Martina King {until 12 May 2014)

> Carolyn Fairbairn {from 13 May 2014)

> Andrew Wallams (from 1 January 2015)

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary
to the Committee and 1s available to

assist the members of the Commuttee as
required, ensuring that trmely and accurate
information is distributed accordingly

The Committee met four times in 2014
and the attendance 1s shown on page 83

The Committee reports and makes
recommendations to the Board in retation
to its activihies and debiberations

It 1s authonsed under 1ts terms of reference
to obtain the advice of independent search
consultants The terms of reference for

the Nomination Committee can be found
on the Group’s website at www capita

co uk/investors These were reviewed and
updated during the year

Caprta ple BS

Board diversity

in 2014, 20% of our senior management
team and 44% of our Board were women
Caprta sees significant business benefit

In having access to the diversity of
thinking that comes from people with a
wide range of backgrounds at all levels
inthe Company Only by encouraging

this diversity and by fostening talent
throughout the business can the Company
expect to achieve further diversity in
senior management Capita has a network
of diversity champions across the Group
and the Company’s training and mentoring
wutiatives actively support the fostenng

of talent at all levels in the business across
the Company's diverse workforce The
Board and senior management teams
across Capita are fully committed to
continumng to foster talent and support
those people from all backgrounds who
wish to progress However, the Company
will also continue to appomnt and promote
people on merit and in iine with the

skills and attnbutes identified for each
post, including those identified by the
Nomunations Committee for the Board
Further information Is shown on page 53
of the strategic report |

From 1 January 2015, we have appointed
a Director of Talent to further identify and
develop talent from within the Group and
attract new external talent

Key Responsibilities

Activity in 2014

> todentify and nominate
appropriate candidates for
appontment to the Board, having
due regard 10 the provisions of
the Code and, in particular, the
balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board and the
diversity of its composition

> to keep the structure and size
of the Board and the teadership
needs of the organisation under
review and ensure that plans are
in place for orderly succession and
appointment to the Board

> toreview the hime

Succession planning for the Board generally

All Directors stand for election or re-election at the AGM, therefare consideration of
the performance of all Directors, length of service, their interests and potential conflicts
were considered

Diversity of the Board
Conflicts of interests were considered for the independence of the Non-Executive Directors

The time committed by the Non-Executives was considered and remained appropriate to
ensure that each discharged their duties and responsibilities, |

Appointrment of Carolyn Farbairn and Andrew Willlams as Independent Non-Executive Directors
Retiremnent of Gordon Hurst

Appointment of Nick Greatorex Continuing with the strength of Capita of identifying and
recruting from within Group, Nick Greatorex had been identified by the Board and had undertaken
a thorough and formal interview process and series of meetings with all members of the Board

commutment required from
Non-Executive Directors, the
performance of Directors and all
declarations of interest made by
Board members

> to consider the Group
dwversity position

For all of the appointments within the year they included constderation of the size and structure of the
Board and the balance and range of its Directors’ knowledge and expenience External search agencies
and open advertising were not used for any of the new Board appointments as the Executive Director
appointment was made as aresult of a long term internal succession planning exercise and the non-
executive appointments were sourced through the Board's own targeted searches

Martin Bolland will continue to review the opportunities for the Board on an ongoing basis
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Audit and Risk
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Committee report

Image removed

L ]
Paul Bowtell
Charr, Audit and Risk Committee

{ am pleased to present the report on the
activities of the Audit and Risk Committee
for the year to 31 December 2074

Members
> Paul Bowtell (Chair)'3

> Gilhan Sheldon

> Carolyn Farrbairn (from 13 May 2014)"
> Tim Brooke?

> Martina King {until 12 May 2014}

> Andrew Williams (from 1 January 2015)

The Board has reviewed the performance
of the Comnuittee and s satisfied

that the combined knowledge and
experience of its members is such that the
Committee discharges its responsibilities
in an effective, informed and challenging
manner

Attendance

The attendance of the Board members for
the Audit and Risk Commuttee is shown on
page 83

Tim Brooke ts a member of the Audit
and Risk Commuttee only and 1s not

a Non-Executive Director of Capita

plc Tim Brooke ts an mdependent
non-executive charr of Capita’s Finanaal
Services Risk Committee Tim Brooke's
primary role 1s to provide quarterly
feedback to the Commuttee from the
Financial Services Risk Committee

He attended three meetings of the Audit
and Risk Commuttee during 2014

Set out below 1s a summary of the work
carned out by the Committee

Audit and Risk Committee meetings are by
nvitation and generally attended by the
Non-Executive Charrrman, Group Finance
Director, Group Risk 8& Compliance Director,
the Group Internal Audit Director and by
representatives of the external Auditors

1 Independent Mon-Executive Director

The Chairman of the Committee is directly
available to and holds regular meetings
with the Group Finance Director, Group
Risk & Compliance Director, Company
Secretary, who acts as Secretary to the
Commuttee, the Group Internal Audit
Director and external Auditors

Roie and responsibilities

The Audrt and Risk Commuttee assists

the Board in fulfilling 1ts oversight
responsiblities in respect of the Company
and the Group The Committee’s key
responsibilities are

> to review the reportmg of financial and
other information to the shareholders of
the Company and monitor the integrity of
the financial statements

> to review the effectiveness and
objectivity of the external audit process,
assess the independence of the Auditors
and ensure appropriate policies and
procedures are in place to protect

such independence

> toreview and assess the adequacy of
the systemns of internal control and risk
management (which includes monitoring
the Company’s internal Audit function)
and monitor the risk profile of the business

> toreport to the Board on how it has
discharged its responsibilities

The Audit Cornmittee’s terms of reference
set out in full the role, responsibilities

and authority of the Committee and can
be found on the Company’s website at
www capita co uk/investors These were
reviewed and updated during the year

Commuttee activities during 2074

The Commuittee met nine times during

the year Meatings are planned around the
financial calendar for the Company Reports
are received at all meetings from the Group
Risk 8 Compliance and Group Internal Audit
departments and new contract terms are
also reviewed from a nisk and accounting
perspective as appropriate

2 Tim Brooke 15 mdependent to Capita and brings hes experuse in the Financial Services sector 10 support the
Commmuttee He s not an independent Nan Executive Director of Capita Tim Brooke s primary role 1sto
provide quarterly feedback to the Committee and the link with the Financial Services Risk Committee

3 Paulis a Chartered Accountant, with recent and relevant financial expenence for the purposes of the Code

and the FRC’s Guidance on Audit and Risk Committees




During the year, the Committee undertook
the following activities:

Internal Controls Received and considered reports from the Group Internat Audit

and Risk

Director on the audit programme and the resulting actions

Review of foreign operations risk assessment

Review of qualifications and training given to individuals in
control areas

Met with the Group Risk & Compliance Director, Group Cormpany
Secretary and Group Internal Audit Director independently of
Executive Directors

Monitorning the internal controls that are operated by management
to ensure the integrity of information reported to shareholders

Review the schedule of the internal audits for the remainder of
the year

Review of major contract wins from a nsk and accounting
perspective

Review of the business plan for Risk & Compliance and
Internal Audit

Contnual review of available reporting on Group safety, health
and environment

Requested presentations from each Divisional Director on the nisks
within thew business and the approaches taken to mitigate them

Continued the programme to refresh our overall risk management
framework to better support the ongoing development of
the bustness

Reviewed the activities and minutes of the Group Financial Services
Risk Committee and recetve an update from the Group Financial
Services Risk Committee Chairman on a quarterly basis

External Auditors

Considered and approved the audit approach and scope of audit
to be undertaken by KPMG

Meeting independently of Executive Directors

Received updates and summaries of audit findings

Considered the level of non-audit services being provided to satisfy
itself that the objectivity and independence was safeguarded

Review and approval of the representation letter

Reviewed the avdit planning for the annual audit

Accounting,

tax and finanaial

reporting

Review and recommendation of the annualreport and accounts
and the half-yearly accounts including the financial and non-
financial aspects, including a review of the significant accounting
policies and to ensure these accounts give a fair, balanced and clear
presentation of the performance of the Group

Corporate Governance updates in relation to matters pertaining to
the scope of the Committee

Review of the disclosures of internal cantrols, nsk management and
principat nisks and uncertainties within the report and accounts
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During the year, the Committee reviewed a
wide range of financial reporting and related
matters, in addition to the review of the
half-year and annual accounts pricr to their
subrrussion to the Board The Commuttee
focused in particular on cnitical accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group
and any significant areas of judgernent that
materially impact on reported results

At each meeting, an update was also
received from Group Risk & Comphiance and
Group tnternal Audit

The Committee 1s responsible for the
policies on whistleblowing (speak up} and
the provision of the non-audit services

by the external Auditor Both policies are
published on the Company’s intranet

and internet (www capita co uk) The
Comrmittee also receves feedback from the
Group Financial Services Risk Committee
that brings together all the regulated areas
within the Group

2014 saw the continuation of a programme
1o continually improve our nisk management
framework to better support the ongoing
development of the business Further detail
15 shown on page 38 of the strategic report

Significant i1ssues in relation to the
financial statements considered by the
Audit and Risk Commuttee

Revenue and profit recognition

The Group 15 successful in sigring new and
renewed contracts Dueto the size and
complexity of some of these contracts,
there are judgements and estimates to

be applied, including the measurement
and timing of revenue recogrition and the
recogrution of assets and babilities that
result from the performance of the contract

The Audit and Risk Committee receives a
summary presentation for all new major
contracts These reports include an overall
summary of the contract, the financial
projections, and key nisks and assumptions
The proposed accounting 1s considered

by the Group Finance Director and the
Committee to ensure comphance with

the Group's accounting policies and to
understand their impact on the financial
statements Technical advice is taken where
necessary from the Group's technical
accounting team and views discussed with
the externat Auditor
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Audit and Risk Committee report continued

Major contracts continue to be momitored
through the management operations
business review and any serious 1ssues
identified in respect of these contracts are
referred back to the Comnittee as required

The Commttee has also reviewed the
external Auditor’s findings and where
necessary sought further confirmation

or explanation from the Group Finance
Director and the Board to concur that the
revenue ang profit recognition is appropnate
and related assets held on the balance

sheet are recoverable The Committee

also consider the sufficiency of related
disclosures in the financial staterments

Acquisition activity and accounting
Significant acquisitions are approved by
the Board to ensure that the acquisition
15 in Line with Group strategy and

that sufficient due diligence has been
undertaken in order to understand the
business being acquired and that any
identified risks are quantified, explained
and understood

The Audit and Risk Cormmittee receive
acquisition reports which detatl the nature,
profitability and nisk profile of potential
acquisitions As part of the on-boarding

of acquisitions into the business, the Group
Finance Director and Greup Financial
Controller review the accounting policres

of each acquisition and whether they are
compliant with Group policy Any difference
1s recognised in the opening balance sheet to
ensure consistency The assets and liabilities
are reviewed to ensure that they are fairly
stated and that there 1s sufficient evidence
to support any adjustments to carrying
values inctuding the recogniticn of any
previousty unrecognised balances The
Croup Finance Director and Group Financial
Controller review the resulting acquired
opening balance sheet for each acquisition
The profitabiity of acquisitions 1s momtored
through the management operations
business reviews and arty serious 1ssues
identified in respect of these acquisiions
are referred back to the Committee

The Coemmuttee has reviewed the
acquisition disclosure in the financial
statements in conjunction with the
external Auditor's findings and where
necessary sought further confirmation

or explanation from the Board in

order to conclude that the disciosures

are appropnate and that acquisition
accounting has been appropriately applied

Acquisition

process

Introduction via Capita
divisions, external
intermediaries or
direct approach

¥

Central acquisitions
team apply pricing and
process disciplines

NP

Detailed due diligence
-~ rationale, pricing,
Integrationfsynergies
through dedicated Capita
teams Risk, Finance, HR,
Tax, IT, Legal etc
External advisors
where required

N2

Sign off by
Group Board

N

Completion

80-90% of «deas
screened out
during process

Carrying value of goodwill

and intangibles

The Group has a significant goodwill
balance representing consideration paid
in excess of the far value of the identified
net assets acquired The net assets
acquired include intangible assets which
are determined at the date of acquistion
The Committee recognises that there 1s a
risk that businesses can become impaired,
for example, due to market changes or
product life-cycles As aresult, the Group
monitors carrying values of goodwill

and intangibles to ensure that they are
recoverable and any specific indicators

of goodwilf or intangtble impairment are
discussed in the monthly operating boards

This carrying value of goodwill 1s subject
to impairment testing, on an annual
basis The carrying value of goodwll
and intangible assets are reviewed on
the identification of a possible indicator
of impairment, to ensure that carrying
amounts are recoverable This testing,
including the key assumptions and
sensitivity analysis, 1s reviewed by the
Group Finance Director and Group
Financial Controller

The Committee has reviewed the
external Auditors report and, where
necessary, sought further confirmation
or explanation from the Board ang
specifically the Group Finance Drrector
and Group Financial Controller, to ensure
that the value of goodwill and the
disclosures included in these financial
statements are appropriate The Audit
and Risk Commttee, having made these
enquiries, agrees with management that
no impairment need be recognised

Underlying and non-underlying
presentation

The Commuittee remamns of the view that
the presentation of the underlying and
non-underlying information provides
useful disclosure to aid the understanding
of the performance of the Group




The major considerations when reviewing
the presentation of the non-underlying
rtems (being the items labelled as
non-underlying and business disposal/
closure) are

> the nature of the item,

> the arcumstances leading
to recognition,

> the impact on the financial statements
with regard to the requirement for

a far and balanced presentation of
performance, and

> where management and the
Committee concur with a need to
separately disclose certain items to
fully understand and give clarity to the
continued activities of the Group

In keeping with the above, the Audit
Commuttee have reviewed the items
included in the non-underlying

columns alongside consideration of any
representations made by the external
Auditor Having completed the exercise,
the Committee were able to determine
that the disclosure met with the
requirements of fairness and balance and
where extra disclosure was required, it has
been inctuded in the financial statements

In the current year 2014, further disclosure
has been provided in recognition of the
significance of two items These items are
where provision has been made in respect
of matters arising in our Asset Services
business and are disclosed in aggregate as
Asset Services settlements

The two matters are as follows

> the potential costs in resclving a claim
by those investors who did not choose
to accept the Arch Cru Payment Scheme
established in 2011 The Payment Scheme
has had an 87% acceptance rate

> the potential costs in resolving matters
relating to & fund, of which CFM was the
Operator until September 2009, when it
was replaced by an unrelated company

as Operator (following which CFM had no
further involvernent with the fund) The
fund went into hquidation 1n 2012 and its
liquidator has brought a claim agamnst both
former Operators

Gwving due consideration to these clanms,
the Group has made a provision of £24 8m
at 31 December 2014 (2013 £0 7m)

The Commuttes reviews the presentation
of any divestment or planned closures

of businesses in the year and whether
they are properly disclosed in the report
and accounts They were satisfied in this
regard that the item presented this year
(the disposal of part of the Occupational
Health busmness) was consistent with
disclosures previously included in the
financial statements

Other issues in relation to the finanaal
statements considered by the Audit

and Risk Commuttee

Defined benefit pension Liabilibies

The measurement of the defined benefit
kiability in respect of defined benefit
pension schemes 1s a complex area, relying
on assumptions on inflation, mortality,
returns on corporate bonds, expectations
of returns on assets and a number of other
inputs There is nsk in any one of these
areas of misstatement of the Group's
liabtiity in respect of these obligations and
the pension charge that 1s recogmsed in
the income statement

The Committee reviews the disclosures
in the financial statements, along with
the external Auditor’s report and receives
representations from the Group Finance
Director and external Auditor with regard
to the assumptions included i the
valuation and therr relative impact

Having made these enquiries, the
Committee determined that the
valuation of the pension abligation
and the accompanying disciesure 1s
in line with expectations

Provisions

There is judgement applied in the level

of provisioning across the Group This
nvolves making an assessment of the
size and timing of probable economic
outfiows due to the occurrence of a past
event The Commuttee has reviewed the
disclosure in the financial statements and,
where nacessary, made enquines of the
Group Finance Director and management
to gan an understanding of the amounts
recorded The Committee is satisfied that
the disciosure in the accounts 15 sufficient
to gain an understanding of the nature of
these provisions and their impact on the
financial statements
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Matenality

Materiality 1s important in determining
the risk attached to any judgement
Audit materiality 15 set with the external
Auditor to ensure that the Audit and
Risk Committee i1s informed of individual
ttems above a certan threshold that

are most likely to have an impact on

the financial statements The Audit and
Risk Commuttee reviews the external
Auditor's report and the individual items
that breach the materiality thresholds
and assess their relative impact on the
reported statements incormne staterment,
balance sheet, statement of changes in
equity and cash flow as well as the notes
to the accounts

The Commuttee requests further
clanfication from both the external
Auditor, the Group Finance Director and
Group Financial Controller as to the nature
of these items and also their relative
importance in the financial statements

After having rmade such enquines, the
Audit and Risk Committee are satisfied
that matenality has been applied correctly
in the accounts and that material items
brought to their attention remain
unadjusted where their inclusion would
not cause detnment to the overall reading
of the financial statements

Disclosure of information to Auditor
The Directors who held office at the date
of the approval of this Directors’ report
confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
there 1s no relevant audit information of
which the Company's Auditor 1s unaware,
and each Director has taken all steps that
they ought to have taken as a Director to
make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that
the Company's Auditor 1s aware of that
information
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Audrt and Risk Committee report continued

Statutory Auditor

The Cormnmittee provides a forum

for reporting by the Group's Auditor
(KPMG), and it advises the Board on

the appointment, independence and
objectivity of the Auditor and on the
remuneration for both statutory audit
and non-audit work 1t also discussed the
nature, scope and timing of the statutory
audit wath the Auditor The Audit and

Risk Commuttee annually performs an
independent assessment of the suitability
and performance of the Auditor in making
its recommendation to the Board for ther
re-appointment

The external Auditor attends all meetings
of the Committee and reports to the
Committee on the statutory reporting,
non-audit fees and ongoing audit items

Auditor independence

The Commuttee takes seriously 1ts
respensibility to put in place safeguards
to Auditor objectivity and independence
The Cormpany 1s committed 1o ensuring
appropriate Independence in 1ts
relationship with the Auditor and

the key safeguards are

> the Group Finance Director menitors
the independence of the Auditor as part
of the Group’s assessment of Auditor
effectiveness and reports to the Audit and
Risk Commuttee

> the Audit and Risk Committee routinely
benchmarks the level of the Group audit
fee against other comparable comparues,
both within and outside of the Group's
sector, to ensure ongoing objectivity In

the audit process

> the Group Finance Director monitors
the level and nature of non-audit fees
accruing to the Auditor, and specific
assignments are discussed i advance with
the Auditor and flagged for the approval
of the Audit and Risk Committee, as
appropriate, and in accordance with the
Company's policy on the provision of non-
audit services by the Auditor The Audit
and Risk Committee reviews, in aggregate,
non-audit fees of this nature on a six-
monthly basis and considers implications
for the objectivity and independence of
the relationship with the Auditor

Ensuring conflicts of interest are avoided
Is a fundamental critenon in the selection
of any third party auditor for assignments
with which the Group 15 involved Such
conflicts may anise across public or
private sector clients and key supplier
relationships, for example, and are a key
determnant mn the award process for
external audit assignments

Non-audit fees

The Commuttee has established a policy
on the provision of services by the

Group's Auditor The policy describes the
arcumstances in which the Auditor may
be permitted to undertake non-audit
work for the Group The Committee
oversees compliance with the policy

and considers and approves requests to
use the Auditor for non-audit work Any
assignment where the expected fee s
above £150,000 requires specific approval
from the Commuttee or a member of the
Committee The Company Secretary deals
with day-to-day adrmimstration of the
policy, facilitating requests for approval

by the Commuttee The Auditor undertook
vanious non-audit work such as assistance
on acquisitions and bids across our
businessin 2014

Non-audit fees are proportionally iower
this year, as a percentage of all fees paid to
the external Auditor and the Committee
continued to recerve updates throughout
the year on the level of fees which have
been approved where they as an individual
instance were over the threshold stated
above

The policy I1s reviewed by the Committee
annually Detads of audit and non-audit
fees are given in note 7 on page 127

External Auditor performance

The Committee discussed the
performance of KPMG during the period
and was satisfied that the level of
communication and reporting was i line
with requirements This also included a
review of effectiveness and quality of the
audit process The evaluation of KPMG
also included the planning of the audit and
a post-audit evaluation
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Externat Auditor re-appointment

The Company's audit services were last
subject to a tender process in 2070 at
which time KPMG Audit Plc, subsequently
KPMG LLP, replaced Ernst & Young LLP as
the Group's Auditer The lead audit partner
15 rotated on a five-yearly basis There are
no contractual obhigations which restnict
the Committee's choice of auditor

The Code states that FTSE 350 companies
should tender the provision of audit
services at least every 10 years or explain
therr approach, if different In 2013, KPMG
Audrt Plc notified the Company that they
were not seeking reappointment This
was to facilitate the orderly wind down

of the business of KPMG Audit Ple At the
2014 AGM, KPMG LLP were approved as
Auditors for the Company

It 1s proposed that KPMG LLP be put
forward as the Auditor of the Company at
the forthcorming Annual General Meeting
and will hold office from the conclusion

of this meeting until the conclusion of the
next genaral meeting at which accounts
are laid before the Cormpany, and that therr
remuneration be fixed by the Directors

Aresclution to re-appomnt KPMG LLP
as the Auditor of the Company will be
put forward at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting

Risk management and internat control
The Committee 1s responstble for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group’s system

of internal control The system of internal
control 1s designed to manage rather than
ebminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss The
Board has established a clear crgamsational
structure with defined authority levels
The day-to-day running of the Group's
business 1s delegated to the Executive
Directors of the Company The Executive
Directors meet with both operational

and finance management cn a monthiy
basis through the Group's programme of
monthly operating board meetings where
key financial and operational measures are
reported on a monthly basis and measured
agamst both business plan (budget) and
monthly re-forecasts




The Committee have implemented a
programme of agenda items that give
them the opportunity to hear on a more
regular basis from the Managing Directors
of the Group’s divisions to determine the
risks inherent in those businesses and to
understand how risk and control processes
work in therr areas

On an annual basis, through the business
planning process, each busiess unit 1s
required to prepare a rtsk assessment
process on the key strategic, operational,
financial and accounting risks to dentify,
evaluate and manage the significant risks
to the Group's business They include
common defimtions of risk and ensure,
as far as practicable, that the policies and
procedures established by the Board are
appropriate to manage the percerved nisks
to the Group

These assessments are supplemented by

a detailed evaluation of the key financial
controls of the business units which are
critically reviewed by the Group's Director
of Risk & Compliance During the year,

the risk assessment process revealed no
significant risks of which the Board was not
previously aware

The risks and uncertainties which are
currentty judged to have the most
significant impact on the Group's long
term performance are set out on pages

42 to 44 The Commuttee has reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems
A refresh of the overall nsk management
framework commenced in 2013 was
continued n 2014 and this constant
challenge and refocusing will continue tn
order to identify and develop any response
to a change inthe Croup's nisk profile

The Board, with the advice of the
Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness
of the nsk management and internal
control systemns and 1s satisfied that

the Group has in place effective risk
management and nternal control systems
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A refresh of the overall Risk Management
Framework took place during 2013 and
was approved by the Board in May 2014
This enhanced nisk framework introduced
a defined set of nisk categonies which form
the basts of defining the Group's appetite
torisk In establishing this tolerance and
critical lmit/concern nisk appetite, the
Committee is able to mamntain governance
over the prninciple risks to the Group and
ensure effective mitigation 1s n place

Internal audit

The Group's finance department includes
a separate internal audit function which

15 managed by a qualified auditor A full
programme of internal audrt visits has
been completed during the year The scope
of audit work generally focuses on internal
management control and nsk procedures
that are operating with each of the Group's
businesses, but 1s continually reviewed

and challenged to ensure that the work it
undertakes 1s focused on the areas of rnisk
to the Group

Written reparts are prepared on the
results of internal audit work during the
year and submutted alongside verbal
updates of in-progress activity to the Audit
and Risk Comwnittee by the Group Internal
Audit Director The representations given
would set out strengths and weaknesses
identified during the work, together with
any recommendations for remedial action
or further review

The reports are reviewed and discussed
with Executive Directors to whom they
pertam Throughout the year, the Group
Internal Audit Director reports on the work
carried out to date and the in-flight work
to be completed

The Commitiee reviews management’s
response to the matters raised and ensures
that any action 1s commensurate with

the level of nsk identified, whether real

or perceved

There were no significant weaknesses
identified in the year, but a number of
recommendations were acted upon within
the Group to strengthen in-place controls
or risk awareness The Committee remains
satisfied that the Group's systems of
internal controls work well and that there
i1s sufficient flexability in the resources
required to complete a full and targeted
programme of internal audit work, within a
group of Capita’s size, are in place

Anti-bribery and whistleblowing

{speak up)

Capita has a Group-wide anti-bribery and
corruption policy, which 1s in compliance
with the Bribery Act 2010 It peniodically
reviews Its procedures to ensure continued
effective compliance in its businesses
around the world

The policy provides the framework

to encourage and give employees
confidence to 'blow the whistle’ and
report irregulanties Employees are
encouraged to raise concerns with
designated individuals, including the
Executive Directors or the Chairrman of
the Audrt and Risk Committee All such
reports will be investigated and reported
to the Commuttee, together with details
of corrective action taken The Group’s
whistleblowing policy 1s monitored by the
Commuttee and incidences are reported
on in each meeting by the Group Risk &
Compliance Director

Paul Bowtell

Chairman

Audit and Risk Commuttee
25 February 2015
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Carolyn Fairbairn
Chair, Remuneration Committee

Annual Statement from the
Remuneration Committee Chair

Dear Shareholder,

i am pleased to present my first
remuneration report as Chair of the
Remuneration Commuttee

in last year's remuneration report, the
Cornmittee set out 1its Remuneration
Policy relating to Executive and Non-
Executrve Directors That Remuneration
Policy was approved by shareholders at
the 2014 AGM and will remain effective
during 2015 Accordingty, there will be no
shareholder vote on the Remuneration
Policy at this year's AGM

There will be an advisory vote at the AGM
on the annual report on remuneration as
set out on pages 92 to 108 This section of
the remuneration report provides details
of how the Policy will be operated during
2015 and also provides details of the
remuneration earned by Directors in the
year ended 31 December 2014

Summary of remuneration policy
and strategy

The remuneration strategy of Capitats
to provide a pay package that

> attracts, motivates and retains the
best employees

> encourages and 1s supportive of a
high performance culture

> rewards the fulfilment of the overall
business plan of the Group

> promotes the tong term success of
the Group

> aligns management with the
interests of our shareholders and other
external stakeholders

> 1s consistent with our risk policies
and systems
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In order to achieve thss, our Remuneration
Policy for Executive Directors 1s to set fixed
pay (base salary plus benefits) around the
market lower quartile and to offer the
potentiat for competitive levels of total
pay if stretching performance targets
attached to incentive awards are met

Our poliey 1s that performance-related pay
should form a sigmificant part of Executive
Directors’ remuneration packages with an
appropriate balance between short and
longer term targets linked to delivery of
the Group’s business plan

| have set out below the key actvities
undertaken by the Remuneration
Commuttee during the past year as we
have applied the principles outlined above

Retirement of Directors

As a Committee, we recognise our
responstbility to ensure that payments
to departing Directors are determined
fairly both for shareholders and for the
departing mdividuals

As disclosed In last year's remuneration
report, Paul Pindar received no payments
following his retirement on 28 February
2014 and his outstanding share awards
were pro rata reduced for the time period
post-retirement and rematned subject to
the existing performance conditions

As explained in our announcement In
Neovemnber 2014, a similar arrangement
will be applied for CGordon Hurst He

will recerve no payments following bus
retirement on 30 September 2015 and
s autstanding share awards will be pro
rata reduced for the time peniod post-
rettrement and remain subject to the
existing perforrance conditions Gordon
Hurst steps down as a Board Director on
28 February 2015 and will continue to be
employed until 30 September 2015




Malus and clawback provisions

In our existing Remuneration Policy,

the Remuneration Committee has the
ability to withhold Executive Directors’
Incentive payments (via malus provisions)
in the event of overpayments arising
from matenal abnormal write offs of an
exceptional basts not included in normal
underlying profit before tax and EPS

Foliowing the publication of the revised

UK Corporate Governance Code, the
Remuneration Commuttee 1s strengthening
its flexibility in this area in ine with

best practice

> Clawback provisions have been added
to all of the Executwe Directors’ incentive
plans to complement the existing

malus provisiens This would perrmit the
Remuneration Committee to clawback
payments for up to three years after the
determination of the annual bonus and
up to the fifth anniversary of the grant

of LTIP awards

> The potential crrcumstances in

which malus or clawback provisions

can be applied will be extended to

include a matenal restaternent of the
Group’s financial results, if anindividual
deliberately misleads relevant parties
regarding financial performance or If their
actions cause reputational damage or
amount to serious misconduct or conduct
whuch causes significant financial loss

Performance and reward in 2014
2014 was a year of strong sales,
operational and financial performance
The Group financal results llustrate
our ability to deliver strong sustainable
growth During the year, the Group
successfutly made 17 acquisitions
Reporting record profits for the 26th
successive year demonstrates the
strength of our business model, the
strong and effective leadership of

our senior management team and

the talents of our people

This strong performance is reflected in
the maximum annual bonus awarded

to the Executive Directors in respect of
performance in 2014 Further details
relating to the bonus are set out on

page 104 With the exception of Gordon
Hurst who s retiring, all of the Executive
Directors will be deferning 50% of therr
bonus into shares for three years

Our strong performance is also reflected
in the performance of the 2012 long term
share awards These awards were subject
to an EPS growth target range of RPI+4%
per annum {20% vesting) to 12% per
annum for Board members and RP1+4%
per annum {50% vesting} to 12% per
annum for other participants over the
three year penod to 31 December 2014
Our actual EPS growth over this pericd
was 11 18% per annum which will result in
the vesting of 67 2% of awards for Board
members and 79 5% of awards for other
participants The value of these awards 1s
reflected in the single figure remuneration
table on page 103

implementation of Policy for 2015

A detailed review of Executive Directors’
remuneration was undertaken during
2013 and revised arrangements resulting
from that review applied for the first tme
dunng 2014 No stgnificant changes to the
pay structure will apply in 2015
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Base salaries

Salaries of the established Executive
Directors were re-aligned with our
intended lower market salary positioning
in 2014 Salaries for these roles have,
therefore, been increased by 2 4% for 2015
in line with the general UK workforce

As explained in last year's remuneration
report, salaries of those Directors

who were relatively newly appointed

to therr role {Andy Parker as CEQ and
Dawn Marnott-Sims as COO) were set
deliberately below the market lower
quartile by the Committee on the
understanding that, subject to their
performance in role, ther salanes would
move closer to the market lower quartile
in future years

The Board has been pleased by the
performance of both Andy Parker and
Dawn Marriott-Sims and, therefore,
Dawn Marrictt-Sims’ salary has been
increased to £348,000, which brings her
salary in line with the more established
Directors and Andy Parker’s salary has
been increased to £550,000 As illustrated
in the chart below, Andy Parker's salary
remains one of the lowest amongst
CEQs of simitar sized FTSE companies
and significantly below the market lower
quartile

Graph removed

* Companies based on average market capitalisation in 3 months to 1 January 2015
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incentives

No changes are proposed to the incentive
structure for Executive Directors for

20715 However, we have amended the
performance conditions applying to future
LTIP awards for our senior staff so that
they incorporate ROCE as well as EPS
performance targets This aligns the senior
staff with the Executive Directors

Shareholding guidelines

Our current policy 15 that Executive
Directors should build up a shareholding
worth at least 100% of salary A table
detailing this 1s shown on page 105 The
Committee has considered increasing this
level but, as the majority of the Executive
Directors have been on the Board for a
relatively short period, the Committee has
agreed to defer a full review on this issue
until the next Policy Report is introduced
n 2017 All Executive Directors have five
years after being appointed to achieve the
100% holding gurdehines

Carolyn Fairbairn
Charr of the Remuneration Committee
25 February 2015

Remuneration policy overview
At the AGM in May 2014, shareholders
approved, with a 95% majority vote, the
Remuneration Policy which sets out the
Company’s policy on the remuneration of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors
The Remuneration Policy became effective
frorn the cenclusion of the AGM and can
apptly until 31 December 2017 unless a
revised policy 1s approved by sharehoiders
and comes into force before this date

For the benefit of shareholders, we have
reprinted the Rermuneration Policy report
To ensure that the report is relevant within
the context of this Directors’ remuneration
report, we have made textual changes,
where appropriate, to reflect 2015
information and, in particular, to reflect
the retirement of Paul Pindar The oniginal
Rernuneration Pohcy report, as approved
by shareholders, can be found in last year's
Director's remunaration report (a copy

of which can be found in the Investors
section of cur website)
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In surmmary, our Executive Directors’ pay arrangements for 2015 will cornprise the

followng elements

Element of pay Details Performance conditions
Base CEQ £550,000 n/a
satary FD £380,000
Cther Directors £348,000
Pension 5% of salary n/a
Benefits Private medical insurance, n/a
company car allowance,
work travel and accommodation
Annual bonus  Maximum potential of 200% Underlying Group profit
of salary, half paid n cash and half  before tax

deferred in shares for three years

LTIP Award of shares worth (at grant)
300% of salary for the CEQ and
250% of salary for other Directors

75% based on EPS, 25% based
on ROCE Share price underpin

Gordon Hurst, Group Finance Director, will continue to be paid £380,000 untit his
retirement His successor, Nick Greatorex, will be paid £348,000 on appomntment

| hope you will find this report to be clear and helpful in understanding our
remuneration practices and that you will be supportive of the resolution relating
to remuneration at the AGM  As ever, the Committee welcomes any questions or

comments from shareholders

The Commuttee 15 responsible, on behalf
of the Board, for establishing appropriate
remuneration arrangements for the
Executive Directors and other senmior
management in the Group

In setting the Remuneration Policy for
the Executive Directors, the Committee
ensures that the arrangements are in the
best interest of both the Group and 1ts
shareholders, by taking into account the
following general principles

> to ensure total remuneration packages
are simple and fair in design so that they
are valued by participants

> toensure that total remuneration 1s
highly performance onentated

> to balance performance-related pay
between the achievement of financial
performance objectives and delvering
sustanable performance, creating a clear
line of sight between performance and
reward and providing a focus on sustamed
improvements in profitability and returns

> to provide a significant proportion of
performance-linked pay n shares allowing
senior management to build significant
shareholding in the business and therefore
aligning management with shareholders’
interests and the Group’s performance,
without encouraging excessive risk taking

Consideration of shareholder views

The Company 1s commutted to maintaining
good communications with investars The
Commuttee considers the AGM to be an
opportunity to meet and communicate
with investors, giving shareholders the
Opportunity to raise any Issues or Concerns
they may have Inaddition, the Committee
wilt seek to engage directly with major
shareholders and their representative
bodies should any material changes be
proposed to the Policy




Remuneration policy table

The following table sets out the key aspects of the Policy
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Element of Purpose and link Operation Maximum opportunity Performance
pay to strategy framework
Base To attract and Normally reviewed annually in There 1s no prescribed  Indiwvidual and business
Salaries retain talent by December with any changes usually  maximum monetary  performance are
ensuring base salartes  effective in January Review takes annual increase to considerations in setting
are sufficiently inte account base salaries base salaries
competitive > salanes in similar comparues and  The Commuttee s
comparably-sized compantes guided by the general
> Remuneration Policy Increase for the
broader workforce
> economuc chimate
but on occasion
> market conditions may recognise an
> Group performance INCrease in certam
> the role and responsibility of the  drcumstances
indmidual Director such as, assumed
additional
> employee remuneration across
responsibility, an
the broader workforce
increase in the scale
The Comnittee may award salary or scope of the role
increases at other times of the year  the position of the
if 1t considers it to be appropriate salary in the lower
quartile market
positioning
The Committee
may award salary
increases at other
times of the year if
1t considers it to be
appropniate
Annual Performance The bonus scheme 1s reviewed Maximum Executive Directors’
bonusand  measures are selected  annually to ensure that bonus opportunity of 200%  performance is
Deferred to focus Executives on - opportunity and performance of salary measured over a one-
Annual debivery of the Group ~ measures continue to support the year penod relative
Bonus business ptan for the  business plan Stretching targets are to chaltenging targets
{DAB) Plan  financial year set at the start of each financial year for selected measures

Performance against targetss
reviewed following completion of
the final accounts for the peniod
under review

50% of any borus earned 15
delivered in shares deferred for
three years under the DAB plan with
the remainder delivered in cash or
deferred shares at the Executive
Director’s discretion

Dimdends that accrue during the
vesting period may be paid incash or
shares at the time of vesting

Clawback provisions apply to

DAB for overpayments due to
material abnormal write offs of an
exceptional basts not included In
normal underltying profit before tax
and EPS

of Group financial
performance

50% of the bonus
wilt be paid at target
performance and
100% for maximum
performance No
payment will be
made at betow target
performance
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Remuneration policy table continued
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Element of Purpose and link Operation Maximum Performance

pay to strategy opportunity framework

Long term Designed to LTIP awards are usually granted in The plan limit Performance 1s
incentive reward and retain the form of nil cost options respect of a financial ~ measured over a three-
plan {LTIP) Executives over Award tevels for each award are year s 165,000 year period relative

the longer term
while aligrming their
interests with those
of shareholders

To balance
performance
pay between the
achievement

of financial
performance
objectives

and delivering
sustainable
stock market
out-performance

To encourage share
ownership and
provide further
alignment with
shareholders

set by the Commuttee at a level
appropriate, in the Committee’s
opinion, with the individual’s
performance and expenence
Performance targets apptying to
LTIP awards are relevant to business
plan prionties and aligned with
shareholder interests

Full details of the operation of
the LTIP are set out on page 106

Vestig dependent on the
achievement of performance
conditions measured over a three-
year period

Performance targets are reviewed
annually by the Committee and are
set appropriate to the economic

and pohtical outlook and nisk factors

prevailing at the time, ensuring that
such targets remain challenging in
the arcumstances, whilst remaining
realistic enough to motivate and
incentivise management

Ctawback provisions apply to

LTIP for overpayments due to
material abrormal write offs of an
exceptional basis not mcluded in
normal underlying profit before tax
and EPS

shares or 300% of
salary whichever is
the hugher Each year
the Commuttee will
set the actual award
limirt

to challenging targets
for selected measures
of Group financial
performance

Full detasts will be
published in the annual
report on remuneration
for the relevant year

25% of the awards vest
at a threshold vesting
point nising to 100%
vesting at a maximum
vesting point

ClosedPlan  Designed to

- Deferred reward and retam
Annual Executives over
Bonus Plan-  the longer term
Matching whiist aligning their

interests with those
of shareholders

A matching award of shares linked
to their deferred bonus shares and
the matcmng award Is subject to
performance targets measured over
a three-year period

A maximum match
of two shares for
each gross share
deferred under the
Annual Bonus Plan
No further awards
will be granted under
the Plan

An EPS growth target
has been used for the
plan
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Remuneration policy table continued

Element of Purpose and link Operation Maximum opportunity Performance
pay to strategy framework
Benefits Designed to be Benefits include pension provision Benefit provision varies between  Not
consistent with or allowance, car allowance, private different Executive Directors performance-
benefits available medical insurance, travel and Whilst there 1s no maximum related
toemployees inthe  property hire Executive Directors level set by the Commuttee,
Group can also participate in all-employee  panefits provision will be set at
share plans a tevel the Commuttee considers
Additional benefits may be provided  appropriate and be based on
in future, for example, re-location individual circumstances
expenses, which are not currently Partiaipation in the Company's
provided HMRC-approved all-employee
share plan will be limited by the
maximum level prescribed by
HMRC
Pensions Designed to be Pension Contributions are paid inte 5% of salary esther into Capita Not
consistent with the Group's defined contribution defined contribution scheme performance-
benefits available scheme or as a cash allowance or as a non-pensionable cash related
to employees in allowance
the Group
Non- Set to attract Reviewed periodically by the Board As for the Executive Directors, Not
Executive and retain Non- Fee levels set by reference to there 1s no prescribed maximum  performance-
Directors’ Executive Directors  market rates, taking into account monetary annual increase The related
fee with required Committee I1s guided by the

skilts, experience
and knowledge so
that the Board can
effectively carry out
its responsibilities
through the
provision of market
competitive fees

the mdividual's experience,
responsibility, time commitments
and the pay and conditions in the
workforce

No NEDs paruicipate in the Group's
incentive arrangements or pension

plan or receives any other benefits
other than where travel to the
Company's registered office 1s
recognised as a taxable benefit

w1 which case a NED may receve
grossed-up costs of travel as a
benefit

general increase for the broader
workforce but on occasion may
recognise an Increase in certam
arcumstances such as, assurned
addit:onal responsibility or an
increase m the scale or scope of
the role

An aggregate annual sum of
£500,000 and increased only
to take account of the effect of
inflation (or as nearly thereto
as Is convenient) as measured
by the Retail Price Index or such
index as the Directors consider
appropriate or such other
amount as the Company may
by ordinary resolution decide

The annual bonus performance measures are focused on Croup financial measures which are selected annually consistent with key prionities for the Group
The LTIP performance rmeasures, EPS, ROCE and share price performance, reward significant long tarm returns to shareholders and long term financial growth

Targets are set on shiding scales that take account of internal strategic planning and external market expectations for the Company Only modest rewards are avalabte
for achieving threshold performance with maximum rewards requinng substantial outperformance of challenging strategic plans approved at the start of each year

The Commuttee operates long term incenttve arrangements for the Executive Directors an accordance with their respective rules the Listing Rules and the HMRC
rules where relevant The Committee, consistent with market practice and the scheme rules, retains discretion aver a number of areas relating to the operation and
administration of the plans These include {but are not Limited to} the following

- who paruicipates

+ the urming of the grant of award and/or payment
the size of an award (up to individual and plan lirmits) and/for a payment
- discreston relating 1o the measurement of performance in the event of a ‘good leaver’ scenano or a change of control or reconstruction of the Cornpany
determnation of 3 good leaver (in addiion to any specified categories) for Incentive plan purposes
adjustments required in certain circumstances (e g rights issues, corporate restructuring and special dividends)
- the ability to adjust existing performance conditions for exceptianal events so that they can sull futfil their onginal purpose

The aggregation of NED fees are determined within the Articles of Association At the 2015 AGM, these will be presented for approval 1o shareholders and will be
increased to £1m imit in aggregate
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Hlustrations of the application
of our Remuneration Policy

The value and composition of the
Executive Directors’ remuneration
packages for the year ending 31 December
2015 at the mmimum remuneration

Remuneration with performance targets
relating to the year ending 31 December
2015 and the remuneration with
performance targets relating to more than
one financial year under the Policy are set
out in the charts below

The graphs show an estimate of the
remuneration that could be received by
the Executive Directors under the Policy
set out in this report

Each graph 1s broken down to show how
the total under each scenario 1s made
up of fixed elements of remuneration,
the annual bonus and the LTIP Gordon
Hurst’s chart reflects his remuneration
as a Director in 2015 (1 e for the period
to 28 February 2015)

Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed

Notes
The scenar:os tn the above graphs are defined as follows

Minimum

Performance in line with
Expectations (Target)

Maxtmum remuneration receivable |
{without allowing for share price
appreciation)

Fixed Elements of Rernuneration

Base salary as at 1 January 2015

Estimaied value of benefits provided under the Remuneration Policy

Pension contnbution provided under the Remuneration Policy

Annual bonus - payout shown 0% 100% of satary 200% of salary
as & maximum oppoftunity
Long Term Incentive Plan ~ payout shown 0% 50% 100% of award

as a maximum opportunity
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The Commuttee considers pay and
employment conditions of employees 1n
the Group when determining Executive
Directors’ Remuneration Policy

When considening the Executive Directors’
remuneration structure and levels, the
Commuttee reviews base salanes and
annual bonus arrangements for the
management tearn, to ensure that there

15 a consistent approach across the

Group The annual benus plan operates
on a similar basis across the seror
management team and aims to encourage
a high level of employee share ownership
The key difference in the policy for
Executive Directors 15 that remuneration 1s
more heavily weighted towards long term
vanable pay than other employees This
ensures that there is a clear ink between
the value created for shareholders and the
remuneration received by the Executive
Directors

The Commuttee did not formally consult
with employees in respect of the design
of the Executive Director remuneratton
policy, although the Commuttee will keep
this under review

Directors’ recruitment and promotions
The Commutiee takes into account the
need to attract, retain and motivate the
best person for each position, white at
the same time ensurning a close alignment
between the interests of shareholders and
management

If a new Executive Director were
appointed, the Commuttee would seek

10 align the remuneration package with
the Policy approved by shareholders,
including the maximum lmit for the
annual bonus and LTIP set out in the
Policy table However, flexibility would
be retamned to offer remuneration on
appointment outside the Policy if the
Committee believe it may be appropriate
to make ‘buy-out’ awards or payments in
respect of remuneration arrangements
and contractual terms forfeited on leaving
a previous employer

The Committee would look to replicate
the arrangements being forfeited as
closely as possible and in doing so,

would take account of relevant factors
including the nature of the remuneration
and contractual terms, performance
conditions and the time over which

they would have vested or been paid

The Commuttee would seek to structure
awards on recruitment to be in ine with
the Company’s rernuneration framework
so far as practical but, if necessary, the
Committee may also grant such awards
outside of that framework as permitted
under ListingRule 94 2

The maximum level of variable
remuneration which may be granted
{excluding awards to compensate

for remuneration arrangements and
contractual terms forfeited on leaving
the previous employer) to new Executive
Directors in the year of recruitment shalt
be imited to the maximum Limit allowed
within the Policy table

The inizial notice peried for a service
contract may be up to 24 months, which
15 longer than the policy of a 12-month
notice period, provided 1t reduces to 12
months within a short space of time

For an internal appontment, any incentive
amount awarded in respect of a prior role
may be allowed to vest on its original
terms, or adjusted as relevant to take

into account the appointment Any other
ongaing remuneration obligations existing
prior to appointment may continue

The Commuittee may also agree that the
Company will meet certain relocation
and incidental expenses as it constders
appropriate

In the event of the appomtment of a new
non-Executive Director, remuneration
arrangements will normally be i line with
the structure set out in the Policy table for
Non-Executive Directors However, the
Commuttee {or the Board as appropriate)
may include any elernent listed in

the Policy table above, or any other
element which the Committee considers
1s appropriate grven the particular
arcumstances, with due regarg to the best
interests of shareholders

Directors’ service agreements and
payments for loss of office

The Committee regularly reviews the
contractual terms of the service agreement
to ensure these reflect best practice

The service contracts for Executive
Directors are for an indefinite penod
and prowide for a one-year notice
period They do not include provisions
for predetermined compensation on
termination that exceed one year's
salary, pensicn and benefits There are
no arrangements in place between the
Company and its Directors that provide
for compensation for loss of office
following a takeover bid All Directors
are appointed for an indefinite period
but are subject to annual re-election
at the Annual General Meeting

All Executive Directors’ service agreements
are terminable on 12-months’ notice In
arcumstances of termination on notice,
the Commuttee will determune an equitable
compensation package, having regard to
the particular aircumstances of the case
The Committee has discretton to require
notice to be worked or to make payment

n hew of notice or to place the Director on
garden leave for the notice pericd

The annual bonus may be payable In
respect of the period of the bonus plan
year worked by the Director, there 1s no
provision for an amount in beu of bonus to
be payable for any part of the notice period
not worked This will be at the discretion of
the Remuneration Committee

For the DAB deferred shares, alt will vest on
the date of ieaving, or later in line with the
vesting of the matching awards, as detailed
below, other than in aircumstances of
disrmussal for gross misconduct
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For entitlement to shares under the
deferred annual bonus matching award
and long term incentive arrangements,
the rules contain discretionary provisions
setting out the treatment of awards
where a participant leaves for designated
reasons (1 e participants who leave early
on account of injury, disability or il health,
death, a sale of their employer or business
in which they were employed, statutory
redundancy, retirernent or any other
reason at the diseretion of the Committee)
In these crcumstances a participant’s
awards will not be forfeited on cessation of
employment and instead will continue to
vest on the normal vesting date or earlier
at the discretion of the Committee, subject
to the performance conditions attached
to the relevant awards The awards will,
other than in exceptional circumstances,
be scaled back pro rata for the period

of the performance period worked by

the Director In the event of a change of
control, all unvested awards under the
deferred annual bonus and tong term
Incentive arrangements would vest, to the
extent that any performance conditions
attached to the relevant awards have been
achieved The awards will, other than if
the Committee determines otherwise, be
scaled back pro rata for the proportion of
the performance period worked by the
Director prior to the change of control For
the DAB deferred shares, all will vest on the
event of a change of control

Non-Executive Directors’ terms

of engagement

Non-Executive Directors are appointed
by letter of appointment for an initial
period of three years Each appomntment
is terminable by three-months’ notice
on either side At the end of the iniual
period the appointment may be renewed
by mutual consent, subject to annual
re-election at the AGM

The service agreements and Non-Executive
Directors’ latters of appointment are
available for inspection during normal
business hours at the Company’s
registered office, and avaitable for
inspection at the AGM

Satisfaction of options

When satisfying awards made under its
share plans, the Cornpany uses newly
1ssued, treasury or purchased shares as
appropriate

Dilution

All awards are made under plans that
incorporate the overall dilution limit of
10% in 10 years The estimated dilution
from existing awards including executive
and all-employee share awards 1s
approximately 4 98% of the Company’s
share caprtal as at 31 December 2014

In drafting ths section of the
Remuneration Report the Committee
reserves the right to make any
remuneration payments and payments
for loss of office (including exercising any
discretions avaliable to it in connection
with such payments) notwithstanding
that they are not in line with the Policy
set out above where the terms of the
payment were agreed (1) before the
Policy came nto effect or (n) at a time
when the relevant individual was not

a director of the Company and, in the
opinton of the Committee, the payment
was not In consideration for the indmidual
becoming a director of the Company For
these purposes "payments” includes the
Committee satisfymg awards of vanable
remuneration and, in relation to an award
over shares, the terms of the payment are
"agreed” at the time the award Is granted

The Committee may make minor
amendments to the Policy set out

above {for regulatory, exchange control,
adrmunistrative or tax purposes or to take
account of a change n legislation) without
obtaining sharehotder approval for that
amendment

Capita plc 100

Annual report on remuneration

This part of the remuneration report has
been prepared in accordance with The
Large and Medium-sized Compantes

and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
{Amendment) Regulations 2013 and
paragraphs 9 8 6R and 9 8 8 of the Listing
Rules The annualreport on remuneration
will be put to an advisory shareholder
vote at the 2015 AGM The information
on pages 92 to 108 has been audited

as indicated

Responsibilities of the Committee
The Committee 1s responsible for
determining and agreeing with the
Board the policy on Executive Directors’
remuneration, Including setting the
over-arching principles, parameters and
governance framework and determining
the imitial remuneration package of
each Executrve Director In addition,

the Committee monitors the structure
and level of remuneration for the senior
management team and 1s aware of pay
and conditions in the workforce generatly
and it sets the Chairman’s fee

Members and activities of the
Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration
Committee during 2014 were Martina
King (Chair) until 12 May 2014, Carolyn
Fairbairn (Charr) from 12 May 2014, Gillian
Sheldon and Paul Bowtell All members
were Non-Executive Directors None of
the Committee members have day-to-day
involverment with the business nor do
they have any personal financial interest,
except as shareholders, in the matters to
be recommended The Company Secretary
acts as Secretary to the Commuttee The
number of formal meetings held and the
attendance by each member 1s shown in
the table on page 83 The Committee also
held mformal discussions as required




External advice received

Deloitte LLP was, following a review,
appointed by the Remuneration Commuttee
during 2012 to provide advice on executive
remuneration matters During the year,

the Committee received independent and
objective advice from Deloitte primarnly

on market practice, clawback, disclosure
within the accounts, shareholding guidelines
and holding periods Deloitte was paid
£40,825 in fees during 2014 for these
services (charged on a time plus expenses
basis) Deloitte is a founding member of
the Remuneration Consultants Group and
as such, voluntarly operates under the
code of conduct i relation to executive
remuneration consulting in the UK In
addition, other practices of Deloitte,
separate from the executive remuneraticn
practice, has provided services to the Group
in respect of tax, property, advice to internal
audit and other ad hoc adwvisory projects
during the year

The fees were considered as appropriate
for the work undertaken and all fees

were disclosed prior to the work being
undertaken Where appropriate, fees were
tendered with other providers to ensure
that the fees were in line with market
practice and standards

The Commuitee also consulted with Andy
Parker to provide further information

to the Committee on the performance
and proposed rernuneration for the
Executive Directors and other senior
management, but not i relation to his
OWR remuneration

Shareholder voting at AGM

The 2014 Directors’ remuneration report
will be presented to shareholders at the
AGM in May 2015 At the AGM 1n 2074,
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the actual voting in respect of the ordinary
resolution to approve the remuneration
report for the year ended 31 December
2013 was

AGM 2014 Votes cast Vaotes cast Abstentions*
‘For ‘Against’

Remuneration report for 439m 43m m

the year ended 31 December 2013 919% 99, .3

Remuneration Policy 456m 25m m

95% 5% =%

T A vote abstained 1s not a vote in law and 1s not counted in the calcutation of the proportion of votes for’ and

‘against’ as resolution
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Directors' remuneration report continued

Statement of implementation of the
Remuneration Policy for 2015

The Rernuneration Commuttee intends
to wnplement the Remuneration Policy in
2015 on a consistent basts to how it was
implemented in 2014

Base salary

Our Remuneration Policy 15 for executive
pay to be highly performance-orientated
with fixed pay (salary and benefits)

set around the market lower quartile
Following a review explamed in last year's
Remuneration Report, we adjusted the
salaries of our established Executive
Directors for 2014 so that they were
more closely aligned with our intended
salary market positioning Accordingly, for
those established Director roles we have
increased salaries for 2015 by 2 4% in lne
with the general UK workforce

For the Directors who were relatively
newly appointed to their role (Andy Parker
as CEO and Dawn Marnott-Sims as COO),
we explained in last year's Remuneration
Report that their salaries had been set
deliberately below the market lower
quartile n recognition of their relative
inexperience in role We also made clear
that, subject to their performance in role,
we would expect to increase therr salaries
closer to the market lower quartile in
future years

The Board has been pleased by the
performance of both Andy Parker and
Dawn Marriott-Sims and, therefore,
has made salary decisions for 2015 that
reflect this

> Andy Parker’s salary has been increased
by 10% to £550,000 As llustrated in
the chart in the Annual Statement from
the Remuneration Commuttee Char,

his salary remans one of the lowest
amongst CEOs of similar sized FTSE
companies and significantly below the
market lower quartite The Committee
intends, subject to performance in role,
to continue to move Andy Parker's salary
towards the intended market positioning
in future years

> Dawn Marnott-Sims’ salary has been
increased by 16% to £348,000 This brings
her salary in lne with the more established
Capita Directors which we believe 1s
appropriate given her strong performance
in role over the past year

Finatly, durning the year, the Commuttee
deterrmined the starting salary for Nick
Greatorex who will become Croup
Finance Director on 1 March 2015 His
salary has been set approximately 10%
below the salary of the current Finance
Director Subject to performance in role,
the Committee may look to increase fus
salary closer to the market lower quartile
in future years

Accordingly base salary for 2015 will be

Base salary from
1January 2015

Andy Parker £550,000
Gordon Hurst? £380,000
Nick Greatorex? £348,000
Magg Bell £348,000
Vic Gysin £348,000
Dawn Marnott-Sims £348,000

1 Gordon Hurst will step down as a Darector and
retire during 2015 His 2015 satary has been frozen
atits 2014 level

2 Nick Greatarex s appointed as Group Frnance
Director on 1 March 2015

Fees for the Charman and Non-
Executive Directors

A summary of the fees for 2015 are as
follows

Fee from

1January 2015
Martin Bolland — Chairman £200,000
Cilian Sheldon - Senior £74,000
Independent Director
Paul Bowtell - Audit & Risk £63,500
Comrmttee Chaw
Carolyn Fairbairn £63,500
- Remuneration Committee
Charr _
Andrew Willams £63,500

Annuat bonus for 2015
For 2015, the annual bonus opportunity
will be 200% of base salary The annual
bonus will continue to be based aganst
financiat performance of underlying profit
before tax of the Group

The Committee has chosen not to disclose
in advance the perfoermance targets for the
forthcorming year as these include items
which the Committee considers to be
commercially sensitive

50% of the bonus payable will be paid in
cash and 50% will be deferred into shares

Long term incentive to be granted

in 2015

For the LTIP award to be granted in 2015
Andy Parker will be awarded shares with
a value at grant of 300% of salary and
the other Executives 250% of salary
The performance conditions for this
award will be

Performance condition

EPS 18 75% vests for 6% per annum

EPS growth increasing to 75% vesting

for 12% per annum EPS growth 2017 EPS
compared to 2014 EPS

ROCE 6 25% vests for average ROCE of
14% increasing to 25% vesting for average
ROCE of 16%

Average ROCE over 2015, 2016 and 2017
financial years

The performance perod will run from
1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017

Share prnice underpin Capita’s average
share price at vesting must not be
below the average share price at the
date of grant

A full definition of ROCE 15 shown on
page 48 of the strategic report
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Directors’ remuneration earned in 2014 - single figure table (Audited)
The table betow summarises Directors’ remuneration received in 2074

Stngle figure remuneration

Base salary  Benefits Pensionor Annual bonus LTIP  DAB - Match Total Total
and fees penston longterm  remuneration

allowance incentives
Martin Bolland 2014 200,000 - - - - - - 200,000
2013 200,000 - - - - - - 200,000
Andy Parker H72014 500,000 16,788 25,000 1,000,000 871,459 - 871,459 2,413,247
2013 297917 31,485 14,896 487,500 460,378 185,375 645,753 1,477,551
Gordon Hurst 2014 380,000 17,688 19,000 760,000 871,459 - 871,459 2,048,147
2013 290,000 17675 14,500 435000 600,566 268322 958,888 1,716,063
Maggi Bell 2014 340,000 15,408 16,732 680,000 871,459 - 871,459 1,923,599
2013 240,000 15,408 239 360,060 690,566 219,530 875,942 1,491,589
Vic Gysin __221_4___%&&,9.9_(1%1&788 17,000 680,000 871,459 - 871,459 1,925,247
2013 260,000 89,346 13,000 390,000 460,378 185,375 679,907 1,432,253
Dawn Marnott-Sums 2014 300,000 15,408 - 600,000 343,715 - 343,715 1,259,123
2013 - - - - - - - -
Gillian Sheldon 2014 72,000 - - - - .. 72,000
2013 70,000 - - - - - - 70,000
Paul Bowtell 2014 62,000 - - - - - - 62,000
2013 60,000 - - - - - - 60,000
Carolyn Farrbairn 2014 39,455 - - - -~ - - 39,455
2013 - - - - - - - -
Martina King 2014 22,545 - - - - - - 22,545
2013 60,000 - - - - - - 60,000
Paul Pindar 2014 65,000 2,670 4,875 - - - - 72,545

2013 390,000 16,327 19,500 585,000 949,529 365,894 1,315,423 2,326,250
Base salary ncludes base salary plus fixed cash allowances which are a normal part of the fixed remuneration package and usual local practice Benefits include private
medical insurance company car allowance, work travel and accommodatien These benefits are not pensionable
The annual bonus for 2013 and 2014 was based on performance against financial target of underlying profit before tax

Performance targets for the 2012 LTIP awards were RP+4% per annum (20% vests) 10 12% per annum (100% vests) for Board members and RPI+4% per annum
{50% vests) to 12% per annum (100% vests) for other participants over the three-year perod to 31 December 2014 Our actual EPS growth over this perniod was
11 18% per annum which will result i the vesting of 67 2% of awards for Board members at the tme of grant and 79 5% of awards for other participants

There were no DAB matching awards 1n 2012

Price for long term incentives was £10 81 on the 31 December 2014

The price used for the 2013 LTIP and DAB matching awards 1s the price on the date of exercise of £11 40
Please note that no Drrector warved any fees or salary for 2014
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual bonus for 2014

The maximurm annual bonus for the
Executive Directors that could be earned
in relation to 2014 performance was 200%
of salary (unchanged from 2013)

The annuat bonus that could be paid to
Executive Directors in respect of 2014
performance was determined by a range
of underlying profit before tax targets,
subject to a Remuneration Committee
review of non-underlying stems within the
accounts 50% of the bonus was payable
for achieving target performance with
100% payable for achieving the maximum
target No bonus would be paid for below
target performance

A maximum bonus for 2014 was earned
as illustrated below Before awarding this
bonus, the Remuneration Committee gave
due consideration to the non-underlying
itemns within the accounts and determined
that no adjustment was required to the
bonus cutturn With the exception of
Gordon Hurst, who I1s retinng and whose
bonus will be paid wholly in cash, half of
the bonus earned will be paid in cashin
2015 and the other half will be deferred
Into shares for three years under the DAB

Performance measure Proportion of Maximum target Actual 2014 % of maxtmum
bonus for 2014 performance payable
deternuned by
measure
Underlying prafit 100% £528m" £5357m 100%
before tax

For reference, the 2013 reported undertymg profit before tax was £475m

Share Plan Awards

LTI and DAB matching awards were
granted as nil cost options LTIP Awards
were awarded as a percentage of salary
DAB matching awards were granted at
a maximurm ratio of 2 1to the annual
bonus deferred by Directors in relation
to the 2013 financial year No further
matching awards will be made LTIP
Awards are subject to EPS and ROCE
performance over the three-year period

to 31 December 2016 with LTIP awards
also subject to a share price underpin
25% of LTIP Awards vest for achieving
threshold performance DAB matching
awards are subject to an EPS performance
condition over the three-year period

to 31 December 2016 with 33% vesting
for achieving threshold performance

Full details of the performance conditions
relating to these awards are outlined on
page 106

Long Term Incentive Awards awarded 11 2014 {Audited)

Name of Director LTIP award Face value of DAB matching Face value of

LTIP award’ award DAB award?
Andy Parker 131,579 1,500,007 56,130 649,985
Gordon Hurst 83,333 949,996 50,086 579,996
Magg Bell 74,561 §49,995 41,450 479,991
Vic Gysin 74,561 849,995 67,356 779,982
Dawn Marriott-Sims 65,789 749,995 17,270 199,987

1 The price on grant was £11 40
2 The price on grant was £11 58
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Directors Interests and Shareholding The guidelines include shares held

Guidelines {Audited) benehicially and also shares within the
Executive Directors are asked to hold DAB that have been deferred over the

100% of salary in shares in the Company  three-year period Share awards that
This s buitt up over a pertod of five years are subject to performance conditions

from appointment are not included
Director Beneficially Beneficially Interests in Interests n Interestsin Interests in Interests in Interestsin  Percentage of
held held share share share share share option shareoption shareholding
interests at interests at mncentive ncentive mcentive incentive schemes schemnes target
31December 31 December schemes, schemes, schemes, schemes, where where requirement at
2014 2013 awarded awarded awarded awarded performance performance 31 December
without without subject to subject to conditions conditions 2014 or date of
performance performance performance performance have beenmet have been met retirement?
conditions at conditions at conditions at  conditions at butnot but not
31 December 31December 31December 31December  exercisedat  exercsed at
2014 2013 2014 2013 31 December 31December
2014 2013
Martin
Bolland 63,000 55,000 - - - - - - -
Andy 13,392 55994 46452 483567 403,642 100%
Parker 33 - ’ ' ' ' B " °
gﬁ;‘:t"” 25358 25158 59,044 61767 441,421 468,217 - - 100%
Megg 4 869 44 760 1009
Rell 3,542 73,542 48,654 49,86 471,86 448,760 - - 00%
Vi - - 89,537 74,382 493,635 459,502 - - 100%
Cysin
Dawn 4n 227 19,563 M55 184915 141,856 - - 72%
Marriott-Sims?
Gillian
Sheldon 1000 - - - - - - -
Paul
Bowtell 1000 - - - - - - - -
Carolyn _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Farrbairn?
Martina 217 717 _ _ . B _ _ _
King e N
Ef’n”(:ar,, 856,613 856,613 46144 82703 742,087 1054213 - - 100%

1 Appointed 1 January 2014

Z Appointed 13 May 2014

3 Based on salary from 1 January 2015

* Paul Pindar retired on 28 February 2014 and detalls of his share options were fully disclosed in the report for the penod to 31 Decemnber 2013 The figures shown are as
at his retirement date

Between the end of the financial year and 27 February 2015, Gordon Hurst and Dawn Marnott-Sims acquired 33 and 30 shares under

the Capita Share Ownership Plan, increasing their beneficial interest in ordinary shares of the Company to 25,397 and 441 respectively
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Share plans (Audited) Unvested DAB matching awards at 31 December 2014
Plan name Deferred Annual Bonus 2012 award 2013 award 2014 award Totat
(DAB) plan Andy Parker No award made 55,858 56,130 111,988
The DAB 15 split into two elements Gordon Hurst No award made 68,002 50,086 118,088
Deferred award — this is the deferred Magg Bell No award made 55,585 41,450 97,308
element of an individual’s bonus Any Vie Gysin No award made 111,718 67,356 179,074
deferral1s made on a gross basis into Dawn Marriott-5irms - 21,856 17,270 39126
Deferred Shares or as a net restricted
share award The Deferred shares are Unvested DAB deferred awards at 31 December 2014
held for a penod of three years from the 2017 aveard 013 R ye— —
date of award This part 1s not subject to awar awar swar ota
performance conditions Andy Parker No award made 27,929 28,085 55,994

Gordon Hurst No award made 34,001 25,043 59,044
Matching award - this 1s awarded at aratio  Magg Bell No award made 27929 20,725 48,654
of twa shares for each gross share awarded - Gysin No award made 55,859 33.678 89,537
under the deferred award Matching
awards vest after a three-year holding Dawn Marriott-Sims T 10328 8835 19563
period to the extent to which performance
critena have been met Performance criteria for matching awards

EPS growth of RP1 + 4% per annum ~ 33% of the award vests
It 1s not planned to award any further EPS growth of RP1 +12% per annum - 100% of award vests
matching awards under this plan going Straight-line vesting occurs between these points
forward
Plan name Long Term Incentive Plan Unvested LTIP awards at 31 December 2014
(2008 LTtP} 2012 award 2013 award 2014 sward Total
Aht tTe An;wal Gre"ﬂal Mslet"}![%_T'fl‘P?OOS» Andy Parker 120,000 120,000 131,579 371,579
the Long Term tncentive Plan was
approved by shareholders Under the Gordon Hurst 120,000 120,000 83,333 323,333
plan rules the Committee can award Maggl Bell 120,000 120,000 74,561 314,561
up to the higher of three times salary Vie Gysin 120,000 120,000 74,561 314,561
or 165,000 shares Dawn Marniott-Sims 40,000 40,000 65,789 145,789

The vesting of awards will depend
on performance measured over a
three-year period

Performance criteria

2012 and 2013

EPS growth of RPI+ 4% per annum ~ 20% of the award vests
EPS growth of RP1+12% per annum - 100% of the award vests
Straight-line vesting occurs between these points

2014

EPS 18 75% vests for 6% per annum EPS growth increasing to 75% vesting for
12% per annum EPS growth

ROCE 6 25% vests for average ROCE of 14% increasing to 25% vesting for average
ROCE of 16%

For all LTIP awards, Capita’s average share price at vesting must not be below the
average share price at the date of grant




Executive Directors’ service agreements
Details of the service agreerents are set out below

Executive Directors Date of contract Notice period
Andy Parker 10 January 201 12 months
MNick Greatorex 1 January 2015 12 months
Gordon Hurst 17 December 2007 12 months
Maggi Bell 1 August 2008 12 months
Vic Gysin 10 January 2011 12 months
Dawn Marrnott-Sims 1 January 2014 12 months

Non-Executive Directors’ terms of engagement
In 2014, all Non-Executive Directors were considered to be mdependent of the
Company
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Non-Executive Directors Date of jairung the Board Expiry date of current

S — e _____ threeyearappomtment
Martin Boltand 1 March 2008 Not applicable
Gilban Sheldon 1 September 2012 31 August 2015
Paul Bowtell 28 June 2010 27 June 2016
Carolyn Farrbairn 12 May 2014 11 May 2017
Andrew Williams 1)anuary 2015 31 December 2017

Payments to former directors (Audited)

No payments (other than regular pension benefits and legacy share plan maturities
which were commenced In previous years) were made during the year ended

31 December 2014 to any past Director of the Company

Payments for loss of office (Audited)
No payments were made in respect of loss of office to Directors during the year ended
31 December 2014

Percentage change in remuneration levels
The table below shows change in base compensation, benefits and annual bonus for the
CEQ in the 20174 financial year, compared to that for the average employees

Chief Executive Officer All employees

To 31 December 2014 % change % change

£ 2014 v 2013 2014 v 2013

Base compensation 500,000 28 2% 36%
Benefits 16,788 2 8% 6 2%
Bonus 1,000,000 70 9% 93%

Ths all employee information has been taken using only the UK employees as it was
felt that using our overseas payroll would distort the nformation The CEQ base
compensation relates to Paul Pindar and 2014 relates to Andy Parker following his
remuneration review

As outlined in last year's remuneration report, base salanes of Executive Directors were
in increased in 2074 as part of a broader restructunng of their pay arrangements which
also mvolved a reduction in their maximum potential total pay
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Relative importance of the spend on pay
The table below shows the spend on staff
costs in the 2014 finanaial year, compared
to dividends

2014 £Em 2013 £m % change

Staff costs 1995 1,780 121
Dividends 1805 1591 135

Performance graph and CEO pay
Capita has maintained strong TSR
performance over a sustaned penod

The following chart compares the value of
an investment of £100 in the Company’s
shares with an investment of the same
amount in the FTSE All-Share Index and
the FTSE 350 Support Services index
assuming that all dividend income 15
reinvested

The Committee is of the opinion that

this comparison provides a clear picture

of the performance of the Group relative
to both a wide range of companies in the
United Kingdom and also a specific group
of companies within the same sector Over
the 10-year period to 31 Decernber 2014,
£100 invested in Capita on 1 January 2005
would be worth £369 at 31 December
2014 compared to £208 for an investment
i the FTSE All-Share Index and £271 for
an investment in the FTSE 350 Support
Services index

The tota! remuneration figures for the CEQ
duning the 2014 financial year are shown
in the table opposite Consistent with the
calculation methodology for the single
figure for total remuneration, the total
remuneration figure includes the total
annual bonus award based on that year's
performance and the LTIP award based on
the three-year performance period ending
in the relevant year The annual benus
payout and LTIP award vesting level as a
percentage of the maximum opportunity
are also shown for this year

Graph removed

The following chart 15 the same companson over a six-year penod starting
1 January 2009

Graph removed

Year CEO - single Figure of Annual bonus payout Long termincentive vesting
Total Remuneration against maximum rates against maximum

opportunity opportumty

204 £2,413,247 100 67 2%
2013 £2,326,250 75 545%
2012 £2,038,233 100 4775%
20M £1,833,308 - 56 02%
2010 £1,399,675 100 88 567%
2009 £1,621,793 75 100%

Note - the vesting rates for the long term incentives are averaged between the LTIP and the DAB vesting rates
for 2010-2013 and this is the actual vesting for the LTIP as there 15 no DAB matunity in 2014

Note for 2010-2013 were based on Paul Pindar as CEO The total period for 2014 15 based on Andy Parker
total remuneration

Approval of the Directors’ remuneration report

The Directors’ remuneration report, including both the Remuneration Policy and the
annual report on remuneration, was approved by the Board on 25 February 2015

Carolyn Fairbairn
Charr of the Remuneration Committee
25 February 2015
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Accounts

Our accounts section contains our financial statements,

notes and Auditor’s report.

Financial statements

Consolidated income statement
page 110

Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
page 110

Consolidated balance sheet
page 111

Consolidated statement of
changes in equity
page 112

Consolidated cash flow statement
page 113

Notes

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
page 114

Other information

Statement of Directors’ responsibility

page 161

independent Auditor’s report to the

members of Capita plc only
page 162

Five year summary
page 166

Company balance sheet
page 167

Notes to the accounts
page 168

Principat Group investments
page 175

Additional information for
shareholders
page 176




. . . Accounts Capita ple 119

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2074

2014 2013
Non-underlying Non-underlying
Business
Business  Othernon- disposal/ Qther non
Underlying disposal  underlying Total Underlying ctosure underlying Total
Notes £m Em £m £m £m Em, £m im
Continuing operations
Revenue 3 43723 58 - 43781 3,8509 453 - 3,8962
Cost of sales {3,166 9) {4 8) - (31717} (2,7809) {46 7) - (2,8276)
Gross profit 1,205 4 10 - 1,206 4 10700 (14) - 1,068 6
Administrative expenses 4,5 (629 1) (81 (1803) (817 5) {5531} (632) (139 9) (756 2)
Operating profit 7 5763 (z1) (1803) 3889 5169 (64 6) (139 9) 3124
Net finance costs 9 {40 6) - (381) (78 7) {419) - 266 {153)
Loss on business disposal 4 - (17 8} - (17 8) - {82 1) - (821)
Profit before tax 5357 (249) (2184) 2924 4750 (1467) (1133) 2150
Income tax expense 10 (99 1) 18 448 (52 5) {90 3) 148 324 (431)
Profit for the year 436 6 (231) (1736} 2399 3847 (1319) (80 9) 1719
Attributable to
Owners of the Company 4293 (231) (1703} 2359 3891 (1319) (80 0) 1772
Non-controtling interests 73 - (33) 40 {4 4) - (09) (53)
4366 (231)  [(1738) 2399 3847 (1319) (80 9) 1719
Earnings per share 11
- basic 6515p (351)p (258S)p 35 79p 5940p (2014)p (3227)p 2705p
Zdluted e e e e e 8458p. (348lp  (2562)p  3548p 587  (1990)p_ (1207)p _ _2674p
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2014
2014 a3
Notes £m £m f£rm £m
Profit for the year _ 2399 1719
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuanial (loss)/gain on defined benefit pension schemes 32 (67 2) 109
Income tax effect 0 128 (82)
(54 4) 17
Items that will or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange difierences on translation of foreign operations {6 3) 63
Gain/{loss) on cash flow hedges arising during the year 26 56 (103)
Reclassification adjustments for losses included in the income statement 26 60 26
Income tax effect 10 (z3) 09
93 (6 8)
T T 30 (63
Other comprehensive expense for the year net of tax (514) (48)
Total comprehensive income for the year net of tax 188§ 1671
Attnibutable to
Owners of the Company 1845 172 4
Non-controling interests _ 40 {53)




Caprtaplc N

Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Notes fm £m
Nen-current assets
Praperty, plant and equipment 13 448 8 4188
intangible assets 42,6194 23307
Financial assets 16 178 2 166 4
Deferred taxation 10 125 -
Trade and other recervables 8 735 776

3,332 4 2,994 5

Current assets

Financial assets 16 147 31
Funds assets 23 1182 1008
Trade and other receivables 18 988 1 8929
Cash 18 458 9 6108
— 5799 18076
Total assets 4,912 3 4,602 1
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 20 11282 1,023 5
Overdrafts 18 4298 4530
Financial habilities 22 164 8 792
Funds liabilities 23 1182 1008
Provisions 25 6% 6 622
Income tax payable 426 525

1,953 2 1,771 2

Non-current labilities

Trade and other payables 20 283 265
Financial liabilities 22 1,780 8 1,7299
Deferred taxation 10 - 71
Provisions 25 42 ¢ 527
Employee benefits 32 192 5 118 4
2,043 6 1,934 6
Total labilities 3,996 8 3,705 8
Net assets 9155 8963
Capital and reserves
Issued share capital 27 138 138
Share premium 49950 4912
Employee benefit trust & treasury shares 27 {03) (0 4)
Capital redempticn reserve 18 18
Foreign currency translation reserve {4 3) 20
Cash flow hedging reserve (14 8) (24 1)
Retained earnings 3547 3504
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 8499 8347
Non-controlling interests 656 616
Total equity 9155 896 3

Included in aggregate financial liabnlities 1s an amount of £1,306 8m (2013 £3,267 3m) which represents the fair value of the Group's bonds which
should be considered in cornjunction with the aggregate value of currency and interest rate swaps of £185 4m inciuded in ftnancial assets and £0 6m
included in financial iabilities (2013 £147 1m included in financial assets and £13 Smincluded in financial babilities) Consequently, this gives an
effective liability of £1,122 Om (2013 £1,133 7m}

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 February 2015 and signed on 1ts behalf by

A Parker G M Hurst
Chief Executive Group Finance Director Company registered number 2081330

25 Februaryf 01 ‘/‘-Q/ V\L/
g d )
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Employee Foreign
beneiit trust Capnal currency  Cash flow Non-
Share Share & treasury redemplien Retained  translation hedging controlling Total
capital  premium shares reserve earrungs reserve reserve Tetal Interests equity
£m Em £m £m £m £m Em fm Em fm
At 1 January 2013 138 4704 (0 4) 18 40B1 17 (173) 8781 - 8781
Profit for the year - - - - 1772 - - 1772 (53) 1719
Other comprehensive expense - - - - 17 03 (68) {48) - (4 8)
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year - - - - 1789 03 (68) 1724 (53) 18671
Share based payment - - - - 105 - - 105 - 105
Deferred income tax relating to share
based payments - - - - 80 - - 8¢ - 80
Shares i1ssued - 208 - - - - - 208 - 208
Equity dividends paid - - - - (1591) - - {1597) - (1591)
Put option of non-controlling interest - - - - (96 0} - - (96 0) - (96 0)
Acquisitton of subsidiary with
non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - 669 669
At 1 January 2014 138 4912 {04) 18 3504 20 (24 1) 8347 616 896 3
Profit for the year - - - - 2359 - - 2359 40 2399
Other comprehensive expense - - - - {54 4) (63) 93 (51 4) - (514}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 1815 (6 3) 93 1845 40 1885
Share based payment - - - - 1140 - - 110 - 110
Deferred income tax relating to share
based payments - - - - 57 - - 57 - 57
Shares 1ssued - 78 01 - - ~ - 79 - 79
Equity dividends paid - - - - {1805) - - (180 5) - (1805}
Movement in put options held by
non-controlling interests - - - - (13 4) - - (13 4) - {134)
At 31 Decernber 2014 138 4990 (03) 18 3547 {43) (148) 8499 656 9155

Share capital - The balance classified as share capital is the noninal proceeds on issue of the Company's equity share capital, comprising 2VAsp
ordinary shares

Share premium - The amount paid to the Company by shareholders, in cash or other consideration, over and above the nominal value of shares
1ssued to them

Employee benefit trust & treasury shares — Shares that have been bought back by the Company which are avalable for retirement or resale, shares
held in the employee benefit trust have no voting nghts and do not have entitlement to a dividend

Capital redemption reserve - The Company can redeem shares by repaying the market value to the shareholder, whereupon the shares are
cancelled Redempion must be from distnbutable profits The Capital redemption reserve represents the norinal value of the shares redeemed

Foreign currency translation reserve - Gains or kosses resulting from the process of expressing amounts denorninated or measured i one currency
in terms of another currency by use of the exchange rate between the twe currencies This process is required te consolidate the financial
statements of foreign affiliates intc the total Group financial statements and to recogrise the conversion of foreign currency or the settlement

of arecewvable or payable denormuinated in foreign currency ai a rate different from that at which the item 1s recorded

Cash flow hedging reserve — This reserve records the portion of the gain or loss on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that is determined
to be an effective hedge Also recorded here are fair value changes on available-for-sale investments

Retained earnings — Net profits kept to accumulate in the Group after dividends are paid and retained in the business as working capital

Non-controlling interests (NCI) - This represents the equity in a subsidiary that 1s not attributable directly or indirectly to the parent company




Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2014
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2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit from continuing operations 3889 312 4
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation 13 778 741
Amortisation of intangible assets (treated as depreciation) 14 91 33
Share based payment expense 28 1o 105
Employee benefrts 32 (10) 22
Loss on sale of property, ptant and equipment 7 09 21
Adjustment for non-underlying non-cash items
Accelerated depreciation on business closure 13 - 60
Amortisation of intangible assets recognised on acquisition 14 1471 1222
Accelerated amortisation of intangible assets on business closure 14 - 02
Contingent consideration S (9 4) 17
Non-underlying provisions expense 25 324 432
Movement 1n underlymng provisions (net) 25 (17 4) (11 0)
Net movement in payables and receivables 18 (28 4)
Cash generated from operations before non-underlying cash items 6412 5385
Asset Services settiement provision cash pad 25 (43) (12)
Disposal/closure provision cash paid 25 {18 8) {02)
Cash generated from operations 6181 5371
Income tax paid {937) (529)
Net interest paid {35 6) (372)
Net cash inflow from operating activities . e e 4ABBB 4470
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13 (1105) (128 2}
Purchase of intangible assets 14 (40 8} (16 9)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 7,13 53 12
Acquistuion of public sector subsidiary partnerships 17 - (389}
Debt repaid on the acquisition of public sector subsidiary partnerships 17 - (91)
Acquisition of other subsidiary undertakings and businesses 517 {3255} (2432)
Cash acquired with other subsidiary undertakings 17 297 158
Debt repaid on the acquisition of other subsidiaries 17 {21 5) (51
Cash disposed of with other subsidiary undertakings 4 (2 8) (6 0}
Deferred consideration paid 17 (35 5) -
Contingent consideration paid 17 (9 2) {14 4)
Purchase of financial assets 16 (10} 07)
Investment loan 16 (5 0) 02
Net cash outflow from investing activities o e 5188)  (4453)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of share capital 27 79 167
Dividends paid 12 (180 5) (159 1)
Capitat element of finance lease rental payments 9,29 {49) (100)
Repayment of loan notes 29 (102) -
Repayment of term debt 29 - (1850)
Repayment of bonds 29 (10 6) (881}
Proceeds on ssue of term debt 29 1000 2000
Proceeds on issue of bonds 29 - 750
Financing arrangement costs (03) -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (98 6) {1505)
{Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (126 6) {148 8)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the perrod 1578 3067
Impact of movement in exchange rates 25 (21) (01)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December — o 291 1578
Cash and cash equivalents compnse
Cash at bank and in hand 15 458 9 6108
Overdrafts 19 (429 8} {453 0)
Total 251 157 8
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Corporate information
The consolidated financial statements of Capita ple for the year ended 31 December 2014 were suthonsed for 1ssue in accordance with a resolution
of the Directors on 25 February 2015 Capita ple s 2 pubbc bmited company incorporated in England and Wales whose shares are publicly traded

The principal activities of the Group are given in the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 66

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

Underlying profit

The Group separately presents mtangible amortisation, acquisition contingent consideration movemnents, business disposals and closures,
acquisition expenses, movements in the mark to market valuation of certain financial instruments, and specific non-recurnng stems m the income
statement which, in the Directors’ judgement, need 1o be disclosed separately (see notes 4 and 5) by virtue of their size and ncidence n order for
users of the financial statements to obtain a proper understanding of the financial information and the underlying performance of the business

Sigmificant accounting judgements, estimates and assumnptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the Directors 1o make judgements
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial statements
and the reported ncome and expense during the reported periods Although these judgements and assumpttons are based on the Directors’ best
knowledge of the amount, events or actions, actual results may differ from these estimates

The key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing materal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliies
within the next financial year are as follows

> the measurement of revenue and resulting profit recognition - the Group makes use of estimates to determine revenue inrespect of percentage
complete/long term and construction contracts (see () and () below),

> the measurement of intangible assets other than goodwill in a business combination - this involves estimation of future cash flows and the
selection of a suable discount rate,

> the measurement and impairment of goodwill ~ the Group determmes whether goodwilt 1s impaired on an annual basis and this requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the intangible assets are allocated utihising estimation of future cash flows and
choosing a suitable discount rate (see note 15},

> the measurement of defined benefit obligations — this requires estimation of future changes in salaries and inflation, as well as mortality rates,
future pension Increases and the selectron of a suitable discount rate (see note 32), and

> the measurement of provisions reflects management's assessment of the prabable outflow of economic benefits resulting from an existing
obligation Provisions are calculated on a case by case basis and involve judgement as regards the final timeng and quantum of any financial outlay -
see note 25

(a) Statement of compliance

The consoligated financial statements of Capita plc and all of its subsidiaries (the Group} have been prepared n accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the Eurcpean Union, (IFRS} and as applied in accordance with the provisiens of the Companies
Act 2006

The parent Company continues 1o apply UK GAAP in the preparation of its individual financial statements and these are contained on pages
167 to 174 tn 2015, the parent company will be electing to apply FRS101 - Reduced Disclosure Framewark in response to the change in financial
reporting standards in the United Kingdomn and Republic of Ireland FRS101 applies IFRS as adopted by the European Union with certain
disclosure exemptions

(b) Basts of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under IFRS where certain financial instruments and the pension assets have been
measured at fair value The carrymng value of recognised assets and Liabitities that are hedged are adjusted to record changes in the farr values
attributable 1o the risks that are being hedged The conscolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterling and al! values are rounded
to the nearest tenth of a million (Em) except when otherwise ndicated

In accordance with the FRC's Going Concern and Liquidity Risk Guidance for Directors of UK Companies 2009, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources te continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly,
they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Annwal Report and Accounts

(c) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Capita plc and its subsidiaries as at 31 December each year

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company, using consistent accounting pelicies
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist between IFRS and local CAAP

All intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised profits anising from intra-group transactions, have been eliminated i1n full

Subsidiaries are consohidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group until control s transferred out of the Group Where there
15 & oss of control of a subsidiary, the consolidated financial statements inciude the resulis for the part of the reporting year during which Capita
ple has control and the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between the fan value of the consideration recesved and the carrying
amount of the assets {including goodwill) disposed of Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are attributed to the
non-controlling interests even if that results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued}
(d} Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows

The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments and interpretations with an initial date of application of 1 January 2074

IAS 27 Amendment Separate Financial Statements Reissued as IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as amended in 2011) previousty 1AS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (2008) Consolidation requirements previously forming part of 1AS 27 (2008) have been revised
and are now contained in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements There has been no matenal impact i relation to this amendment

1AS 28 Amendment Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures The objective of the proposed amendment s to provide addiional guidance to
IAS 28 on the application of the equity methad, a method of accounting whereby the investment 1s initially recognis